
AGENDA 
RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL MEETING - 6:00 P.M. 
TUESDAY, MAY 29, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . .. By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of 
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City 
Council are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City Government 
welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings often. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting. 

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH TITLE IN 
BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS 

A.. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. ANNOUNCEMENT IN OPEN SESSION OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED 
SESSION AS FOLLOWS: 

1) 2012/0529.01 - CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a) Name of Case: 
Steven and Sharon Wolff v. City of Rio Dell, Humboldt County 
Superior Court Case No. CV120162 

E. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 

F. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 

G. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

H. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. SPECIAL MEETING MATTERS 

Members of the Public are encouraged to attend and shall have an opportunity to directly address 
the City Council concerning any item described in this special meeting agenda before or 
during consideration of that item. 

-1-



1) 2012/0529.02 - Approve Purchase of Portable Mainline Camera Inspection System 
(ACTION) 1 

2) 2012/0529.03 - Employee Handbook (RECEIVE & FILE) 3 

3) 2012/0529.04 - Employment Agreements and MOU's (RECEIVE & FILE) 50 

4) 2012/0529.05 - Draft Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 (RECEIVE & FILE) 114 

J. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over 
which the Council has jurisdiction. Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be 
placed on the next regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the 
Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring 
immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 5 minutes. 

K. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
1. City Manager 
2. Finance Director 
3. Chief of Police 
4. Community Development Director 

1. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

M. ADJOURNMENT 

The next Regular meeting will be on June 5, 2012 

At 6:30 P.M. in City Hall Council Chambers 

-2-



To: Mayor and Rio Dell City Council 

Through: Ron Henrickson, City Manager 

From: Rick Chicora, Wastewater Superintendent 

Date: May 25,2012 

Subject: Camera Inspection System 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the City Manager authorize the purchase of the Cues K2 Portable Mainline 
Camera Inspection System. 

Budgetary Impact 

The costs for this project will be taken out of Wastewater Reserves. 

Discussion 

As you are aware, the City's Sewer Collection System is in dire need of repair. The City currently 
has a pipe patch repair kit, but we need a camera system to help locate problem areas to be repaired 
with that kit. The City requested proposals from different manufacturers and we received three bids. 
The low bidder ended up being Weco Industries which sells the Cues K2·DoHy Portable Mainline 
System. They met all the City's requirements in their proposal, which includes a software program 
that will help map the entire system and keep track of repairs. It will also work with the City's 
existing GIS system. Their bid price was $53,196.00 

I also discussed this system with several other communities that use their system and they aU have 
given me glowing reviews. 

Attachments: 

1. Weco-Cues Proposal 

J 



Item 

1 

! 
21 

I 
3! 

I 
4i 

I 
! 

5i 

6 

7 

630 Eubanks Court Suite K 
Vacaville, CA 95688 

Customer 

(800) 677-6661 Fax: (707) 446-7933 

Contact CITY MANAGER 
Company CITY OF RIO DELL 

Address 675 HILLTOP AVE 

City RIO DELL State CA Zip 95562 
Cell Fax 

Qty UIM Part No. Description 

I 
WECO lNDUSTR1ES IS PLEASE TO 

I QUOTE IN RESPONSE TO YOUR RFP 

I DUE 4-25-12 BY 4:00 pm 

I 
, I 

1/ EAI PORTABLE MAINLINE SYSTEM K2-DOLLY 
, I AS PER ATTACHED SPECIFICATION 

I I 
I I 

I SUB-TOTAL 

CA STATE SALES TAX@ 7.25% 

FREIGHT 
I 

I 

GRANDTOTALDELWERED 

COMPONENT BREAKDOWN PRICING 

1 
I 

FOR THIS RFP ONLY I 
I 

I I 
11 EAI CAMERA, SONDE, SPARE PARTS 

1\ EA TRANSPORTER, LIFT, TIRES 

11 EA PCU, CONTROLLERS 

11 EA 
REEL WITH CABLE 

11 EA' LAPTOP WITH SOFTWARE 
I 

EA I MANHOLE ACCESSORIES 

EA iTRAlNING ON SITE 3 DAYS 

SUB-TOTAL 

CA STATE SALES TAX@ 7.25% 

FREIGHT 

GRAND TOTAL DElIVERED 

Quote No. 42512 

QUOTATION !!!!!! 

Date 
Expiration 
Salesman 

Terms 
Delivery 

FOB 

Unit Price 

$49,600.00 

$49,600.00 

$3,596.00 

$0.00 

$53,196.00 

$11,236.00 

$11,462.50 

$8,183.00 

$7,676.83 

$9,496.75 

$500.41 

$1,044.51, 

! 

4/25/2012 
7/2512012 
LEIGHTON WHITE 
N-30 
DESTINATION 
DESTINATION 

TOTAL 

$49,600.00 . 

$3,596.00 

$Q.oo . 

$53,196.00 I 
I 

Weco .... . 
Shipping & Handling 

Offering Complete Solutions 
For Our Municipal and Contractor Customers 

VISit our web site- http:\\www.wecoind.com 

Taxes ~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Other 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

TO: Honorable Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Ron Henrickson, City Manager~ 

DATE: May 29,2012 

SUBJECT: Approval of May 2012 Employment Handbook 

ATTACHMENTS: May 2012 Employment Handbook 

Council Action: 

A. By motion receive and file the May 2012 Employee Handbook and place 
it on the Council June 5, 2012 meeting agenda for approval. 

B. Take no action. 

Background: 

The existing Personnel Rules (Employee Handbook) was adopted in August 1989 
and is, needless to say, out of date. The proposed new Handbookaddresses 
numerous changes which have occurred over the years both in operations and law. 
The Handbook incorporates previous recommendations from Liebert Cassidy as 
well as review by the current City Attorney, Russ Gans. 

Financial Impact: Not applicable 

City Manger Recommendation: 

The City Manger recommends the Council receive and file the Employee 
Handbook and place it on the June 5, 2012 Council agenda for approval. 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT 
OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the City of Rio Dell Employee Handbook 
dated May 2012. I have read and understand my rights to and responsibilities for fostering a safe, 
professional, and discrimination-free work environment as set forth in the Handbook. In particular, 
I have read the policy against Harassment as well as the Drug-Free Workplace policy. I agree to 
abide by these policies, as well as the other policies contained in the Handbook. I have also had 
an opportunity to discuss any questions with my supervisor or Department Head. 

In addition, I understand that, because the City of Rio Dell cannot anticipate every issue 
that may arise during my employment, if I have questions regarding any of the City of Rio Deli's 
policies or procedures, I will consult my Supervisor, my Department Head or the City Manager. 

I agree and understand that my relationship with the City of Rio Dell is "at-will," which 
means that my employment is for no definite period and may be terminated by the City of Rio Dell 
or me at any time for any reason, with or without cause or advance notice. I further understand 
that the City of Rio Dell may demote or discipline me or otherwise alter the terms of my 
employment at any time and at its sole discretion, with or without cause or advance notice. I 
understand that only the City Manager may change this at-will employment relationship, and then 
only if it is in writing. 

I further understand that the policies contained in the Handbook are guidelines only and 
are not intended to create any contractual rights or obligations, express or implied. Similarly, 
these policies shall not be construed to create any type of "fair" procedure prior to termination or 
other disciplinary action. I further understand that the City of Rio Dell has the right to amend, 
interpret, modify, or withdraw any of the provisions of the Handbook at any time in its sole 
discretion, with or without notice, except for its policy of at-will employment. 

I also understand and agree that if the terms of this Acknowledgment of Receipt are 
inconsistent with any policy or practice of the City of Rio Dell now or in the future, the terms of the 
Acknowledgment of Receipt shall control. 

Lastly, I understand and agree that this Acknowledgment of Receipt contains a full and 
complete statement of the agreements and understandings that it recites, that no one has made 
any promises or commitments to me contrary to the above, and that this Acknowledgment of 
Receipt supersedes all previous agreements, whether written or oral, express or implied, relating 
to the subjects covered by this Acknowledgment of Receipt. 

Employee Name (Printed) 

Signature 

Date 



CITY OF RIO DELL EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Revised 5-1-12 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1: PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS .............................................................................. 3 

1.01 Introduction ................................................................................................................ 3 

SECTION 2: EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY .............................................................. .4 

2.01 Accommodation Requests................................. . .............................................. 4 
2.02 Disability Discrimination Policy ..................... . ................................................ 4 
2.03 Employee Relations .................................... ~ .. , .. ,;.. . .............................................. 5 
2.04 Equal Employment Opportunity Policy .... , ... .,........... . ........................................... 5 
2.05 Harassment Policy ..............................• ;~,~ •.................... ;." ............................................ 5 
2.06 Immigration Law Compliance ......... ~"' .. ".~: .........................•.•....................................... 6 
2.07 Job Posting and Employee Referrals .. ,; ....................................................................... 6 
2.08 Pregnancy Discrimination Policy ..... ;.,~ •....................................... ,.. .............................. 6 
2.09 Pregnancy-Related Absences ................ :' ......... ,.?'"i ...................... ; ... : ...................... 7 
2.10 Sexual Harassment Policy ...................... "'~""~"~T;" .................................................. 8 
2.11 Workplace Etiquette ....... :'~.;.f.;Xi' ................... : .. ;;i.: ....................................................... 9 

SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT CLASSI~1~lf1~tt~,PRACii~~§ 
AND PROCEqURES .......... \.: .............. ~~.~ •.• ~ ••........... :~~~ ............................................. 10 

)~Bh~tW~ lity ....... '.' .. s;.,.. . ............................................. 1 0 
d Revr§!~,rJ of Rules;~;.{.?................. . ............................................. 10 
erencei~pecks ........ ;;: ....................................................................... 10 

[).i~~Q~f9~ ............. , .................................................................. 11 
.............................................................. 11 

" '/;'::/\> 
............ ·.·:.~·;·~~1~ .. ·... . ...................................................... ....... 11 

........ : .. :: ...................................................................... 12 
3. .. ... . ;;; •. i ............. ........................................................................ 13 

;:~~ ", . ~.~~.~~};~.~. ~~. ~~.~.~.~.~.t.: ::::: :::::::::::: :::::::::::::::::::::::::::: :::::::::::: ~ ~ 
3.11 ......................................................................................... 19 
3.12 Em Work Rules ......................................................................... 19 
3.13 Em nations .............................................................................. 20 
3.14 Gifts and ............................................................................................... 20 
3.15 Grievance ............................................................................................... 20 
3.16 Handling of Confidential Information ......................................................................... 22 
3.17 Involuntary Demotion ............................................................................................... 22 
3.18 Job Descriptions ....................................................................................................... 22 
3.19 Lay-Ofts ................................................................................................................... 22 
3.20 Lines of Authority ...................................................................................................... 23 
3.21 Management Rights ................................................................................................. 23 
3.22 Meet and Confer ....................................................................................................... 24 
3.23 Nepotism .................................................................................................................. 24 
3.24 No-Conflict with Collective Bargaining Agreements Clause ...................................... 26 
3.25 Outside Employment ................................................................................................ 26 
3.26 Performance Evaluations ......................................................................................... 26 

[1 ] 

5 



3.27 Personal Appearance ............................................................................................... 26 
3.28 Personnel Data Changes ......................................................................................... 27 
3.29 Personnel Files ......................................................................................................... 27 
3.30 Probationary Period .................................................................................................. 27 
3.31 Residency ................................................................................................................ 28 
3.32 Return of Property .................................................................................................... 28 
3.33 Special Salary Adjustments ..................................................................................... 28 
3.34 Skills Retention ......................................................................................................... 28 
3.35 Types of Appointment. .............................................................................................. 28 
3.36 Voluntary Demotion .................................................................................................. 28 
3.37 Whistleblower Policy ................................................................................................ 29 
3.38 Use of City Property and Equipment.. .................... ,::"'.; ............................................ 31 

SECTION 4: HEALTH AND SAFETY ..............................•• ,,;.~.~ .................................................. 32 

4.01 Anti-Drug and Drug Testing Policy ........... ~ ..................... ; .......................................... 32 
4.02 Carelessness Policy ......................... ".,;.: ............................ , ...................................... 34 
4.03 Concealed Weapons ........................ ~ .. ~ ................................ ,., .................................. 34 
4.04 Employee Health and Safety ............... ~ .................................... ; ................................ 35 
4.05 ViolencefThreats of Violence ................ " .................................................................. 35 

SECTION 5: BENEFITS AND LEAVta~.,., ........................... ~ ... ~ ................................................... 36 
~ ;y~;~::::~,' /': ' 

5.01 Administrative Pay Correcti~bs ........ ; .................. ~.; ................................................... 36 
5.02 Bereavement Leave ............. ;'.;.; ........ :.; ..• , ................... :" ............................................ 36 
5.03 Compensatory0I1 ......• ~. Off Policy; .. u ............ ~ ... , ............ ·! ......................................... 36 
5.04 Education ··~~~e ............................. ~?{ .• , •.••• , .................................................. 37 
5.05 Employee' efits ... 1:;,· ................. :, .•• ",.,: •. , ................ ; ................................................. 37 
5.06 Family an ·;,~dical Lec:ife (FMLA) ... ,c.;:, ................................................................... 37 

Hl ~i~;~~~~t<":i.;'i~:;,::.::::;.i'.::·::::::::·:·::::::::::::::::'::::'::::::::::::':::':::::::Ji 
5.11. Overtime pomSY~t;:....... .. ................................................................................... 40 
5.12/~~xdays .......... ":"~~;-/"""" ............................................................................. 40 

~: i ~ ~!!,ea:~~~~~~::::~ii::: ::::::: :::::::::::::::::::::::::: :::: .. : ::::::::::::::::: ::::: :::: :::: ::::::::::: :::: :::::~ 
5.16 Workplaoe;lt;lJunes. ,;,.;;> ................................................................................................ 41 

TERMS AND DEFINITI()N&i~~~~l~: ................................................................................................ 43 

[2] 



SECTION 1: PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS 

1.01 INTRODUCTION 
This Handbook is intended to help employees get acquainted with the City of Rio Dell and provide 
information about its employment practices. The City of Rio Dell shall conduct its business in a 
professional, courteous, and ethical manner. This Handbook exists to ensure the City of Rio Dell 
is sensitive to, and responsible for, the efficient, economical, and legal implementation of its 
business operations. 

The purpose of the Handbook is to emphasize that, as City of Rio Dell employees, we have a 
responsibility to the public, to our stakeholders, partners, aqg;polleagues, and to ourselves to 
conduct all facets of our business in a professional and ett:li9:~tmanner. It explains some of our 
philosophies and beliefs, and describes, in general terms,,~ "y of our employment policies. This 
Handbook is not intended in any way to create an eI11.Plq¥,.J contract, or any other contract, 
express or implied, nor is it intended to otherwise create\any le~#iQ¥enforceable obligations on the 
part of the City of Rio Dell or its employees. If at any time theresh9uld be a conflict between a 
description in this Handbook and other employment contracts, the.t~£ms of any superseding 
contract will govern. Although this HandbopKis not intended to b~{~n official policies and 
procedures manual, we hope that it will serve~$ a useful r~ference d6Syrnent for employees 
throughout their employment. In addition to this HaQgl;>pok,J~wenforcemeni;0!tiPers employed by 
the City of Rio Dell Police Departm~m~hould also :rer~f;fq{Jfle California PuBlic Safety Officers 
Procedural Bill of Rights Act (Califorijj~'~~y~rnment cot'i:~~~§ 3300-3312), which bestows certain 
rights upon specified peace officers, a~;,t;;fat~'Qtn the Act. ;;J7.'(,!r;thermore, law enforcement officers 
employed by the City of Rio Dell Police'il1epartm~nt are exp~~t~d to perform their job duties in 
accord with the Rio Dell Police DepartmeritPolicyManual. ... ' 

This Handbook supef~~~~ih§irePlaces a(tt>reVjoUsh~n~~B9~s, personnel policies, practices, 
and guidelines. 

Because the City of R'i~~~~ is. ·· .•. ,!'l.~tgntly-Chal"l~ing organization, it, acting through the City 
Council, re.~~'f{~~~9:~Rletea . rtt6~d~)te, mo~.lfy, or delete provisions of this Handbook, or 
the polici~§~:and proG~( '" s o,;I;)Jch theY:~~>,. t>e based, at any time without advance notice, 
with the exception of its ill Efuplpyment policy. Employees will be advised of changes that 
occur. 

To obtain inf()ffil~ 'on regardingl;~J?ecifice'm'ployment policies or procedures, whether or not they 
are contained in andbook~~{;pployees should contact their Supervisor or Department Head, 
or the City Mana " > If you ~~~d an explanation in another language, please contact your 
Supervisor or Depart . H ., .for assistance. The City of Rio Dell wants all employees to 
understand the City's po . procedures and the services that the City of Rio Dell provides 
to the public. You are enc" ged to bring suggestions for improvement to the attention of your 
Supervisor or Department Head. 

No one, other than the City Manager, has the authority to enter into any employment or other 
agreement that modifies City of Rio Dell policy. Any such modification must be in writing and 
signed by the City Manager and the affected employee and approved by the City Council. 

This Handbook is the property of the City of Rio Dell, and it is intended for personal use and 
reference only by employees of the City of Rio Dell. Circulation of this Handbook outside of the 
workplace requires the prior written approval of the City Manager. 

[3] 



Employees are required to sign the Acknowledgment of Receipt form that will be distributed at the 
time employees receive this Handbook. This should be returned to your Department Head, the 
Finance Director or the City Manager as soon as possible. This completed form will be retained in 
each employee's official personnel file and will provide the City of Rio Dell with a record that each 
employee has received this Handbook. This Handbook is intended to apply to all employees. 

SECTION 2: EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

2.01 ACCOMMODATION REQUESTS 

The City of Rio Dell will seek to provide reasonable accommQ~:iti6n for the disclosed physical and 
mental limitations of a qualified disabled employee or appIiG~~ias required by the Americans with 
Disabilities Act or applicable state law. Reasonable;a,e¢<>mmgdation varies depending on the 
individual circumstances and will be evaluated on a ca$Ei~by~ca~e,p,?sis. 

A qualified individual with a disability is anyon~.'Vllpo can perform th~~~~ential functions of his or 
her job with or without reasonable accommodation for the disability. Adisabilily is a physical or 
mental impairment that substantially limits oneer more major life activiti~s that may include 
walking, seeing, speaking, working, or caring for Otl~¥S, self. " 

To make an accommodationr~Ai.J~st, please;cl~#Jmunicate your request to your 
Supervisor/Department Head. If you fe~luncemfortable ITIa:I<!til~ an accommodation request to the 
person(s) previously listed or you belj~ve youraccomrli~ij,~!ion request was not properly 
managed, report to City Manager. ' ',., 

2.02 

The City of Rio Dell p;~~r~its anddg~snot toler'~t~ discrimination against any qualified individual 
with a disability •.• Ilqualifrei~\nqtV,ii~~~!S •. With a di~~t:>ility are guaranteed the same employment 
opportuniti~§'~Sio' ploye~~iof applicart!? N6:i:~.erson, no matter his or her title or position, 
has theailthority, e,~ed,a~t\:J{iI, apparen.t9f implied to discriminate against a qualified 
employee;gf applicant wlthj~;disabm~y{,. • 

The City OfRi~;i!311 will ma~:i~ll,idecision~;conCerning recruitment, placement, selection, training, 
hiring, advancer t, dischargei'{ir:.other terms, conditions, or privileges of employment based on 
job-related qualifie 'W)v(lsand abQtij~s. ' 

The City of Rio Del;1ii~1qbj!?it~.V~;bal, physical, or visual conduct that belittles or demeans any 
qualified individual with a(fj~~aifay. 

'y;~<,,,(,"/h/ 

Violators of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, for any act 
of disability discrimination reasonably believed to have been committed. 

If you have any questions, problems, or complaints regarding a violation of this policy, or disability 
discrimination in general, you must communicate your concerns to your Supervisor/Department 
Head. If you feel uncomfortable doing so or if your supervisor is the source of the problem, 
condones the problem, or ignores the problem, report to the City Manager. 

[4] 



You are not required to directly confront the person who is the source of your report, question, or 
complaint before notifying any of those individuals listed. Nevertheless, you are required to make 
a reasonable effort to make disability discrimination known should it exist. 

2.03 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 

Our experience has shown that when employees deal openly and directly with management, the 
work environment can be excellent, communications can be clear, and attitudes can be positive. 
We believe that the City of Rio Dell fully demonstrates its commitment to employees by 
responding effectively to employee concerns. If you have concerns about work conditions or 
compensation, we strongly encourage you to express these cOlJcerns openly with your Employee 
Association President and with your Supervisor/Department{itt~ad. In addition, we affirm our 
commitment to retaining positive relationships with all existi~g;p:argaining associations. 

~,_:;;,_,c/}:, c 

2.04 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY POLlQW: 

The City of Rio Dell is an equal opportunity erY1Rfg~4r. It is our policYJO grant equal employment 
opportunities to qualified persons without reg~rfJ to race, religion, ~I~r, national origin, sex, 
sexual orientation, pregnancy, age, veteran "Ofmilitary status or non .... j~.9. physical or mental 
handicap or disability or other classification prote~t~9 by ap . able federal~~.tate or local laws, 
except where there is a bona fide oCCLJpational disatlillty./" City of Rio DellwiJI provide equal 
opportunities in employment, proniCiii9r;l,yvages, benefjt~and all other privileges, terms and 
conditions of employment. All recruitiH~jfiirlJ;l~, training an·~~·promoting for all job classifications is 
done without regard to race, color, reiI'; [I,S~){';;~9.e or nat(' I origin except when a bona fide 
occupational qualification exist. All deci' .5 on:empJoyment i}} ,'~rnade to further the principal of 
equal employment. AUPfomotk)n decisio'ti~\ViII co~tin 0 be ma,de in accordance with Equal 
Employment Opportuqj:!W·~rihdjp~I$. and only;Y~lidjpb·:t~;.~nts\Nili be used. 

The City of Rio Dell P~~~\Qi!ts and~~~s not tOI~f~te/discrimin:ti:n against anyone on the basis of 
race, color, religion, sex, ~g~, n~ti~QYqJi .. 9rigin, ve(~fan status, or disability. The City of Rio Dell 
prohibits ver:b,~JiP~¥Scic:al, orvi~Y?!ig6ff€itipH~~t beli~~s or demeans any individual on the basis of 
race, cOlqri~ri:mgjo'h/~~~.age,h~~i9nal orlgifi)~~trrarl';status, or disability. No person, no matter 
his or h~rji{le or positron~)}9~s ttle!~.Ylhority, e5<pi~ss, actual, apparent or implied, to discriminate 
against any~mployee or arfAU~ant 61itl1~ City of Rio Dell. 

2.05 

The City of RiOo~~~~,hibits a~li:toes not tolerate harassment of any employee or applicant or 
the creation of a hostIl~?. int'ible working environment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, national origin, vet~f S, disability, or as a result of filing a complaint against the City of 
Rio Dell. No person, no r his or her title or position, has the authority, expressed, actual, 
apparent or implied, to harass any employee or applicant of the City of Rio Dell. 

If you are harassed, you must report the act of harassment to your Supervisor/Department Head 
immediately. If you feel uncomfortable doing so or if your Supervisor/Department Head is the 
source of the problem, condones the problem, or ignores the problem, report to the City Manager. 

You are not required to directly confront the person who is the source of your report, question, or 
complaint before notifying any of those individuals listed. If the claim of harassment relates to the 
City Manager, your complaint should be submitted to the then current Mayor for the City of Rio 
Dell. Nevertheless, you are required to make a reasonable effort to make harassment known 
should it exist. 

[5] 

9 



2.06 IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE 

The City of Rio Dell does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of citizenship or national origin 
but, at the same time is committed to employing only U.S. citizens and aliens who are authorized 
to work in the U.S. In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, each new 
employee, as a condition of employment, must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification 
Form 1-9 and present documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility. 

2.07 JOB POSTING AND EMPLOYEE REFERRALS 

Our job posting program gives you the opportunity to showy~ur interest in open jobs and to 
advance within the organization according to your skills and~~erience. In general, we post all 
regular, full-time job openings, although the City of RiQ. 'Ei~i" reserves its right to not post a 
particular opening. . 

Job openings will be publicly posted and normall; ,~~rriain Open~9{ 10 days. Each job posting 
notice will include the dates of the posting periq , ....... t5 title, departrri~nt.location, grade level, job 
summary, essential duties, and qualifications (rec:jJjired skills and abilities~; 

To be eligible to apply for a posted job, you mlJsf';.h~ve p~rf9rmed compet~ntly for at least 90 
calendar days in your current positi0r:l~;\You are not ej\~jl:;>l~i!oa'pply for a postegjob if you have a 
written warning on file, or are on SU~~~flSi?n. You maY:e>~ly apply for posted jobs for which you 
possess the required skills, competenGi~S;~hg;qualificatiOh:S~ 

To apply for an open position, submit aj~Q.po~il~~~~pPlicati~~·(g(the Department Head. List your 
job-related skills and ac, f'rnents ont~~ appliS~ti9Jl1 .. Also teU;'f1ow your education and your 
work experience hereQ>~,make youquaUfi~~:'fortfj~;new position. 

We encourage you toi~l~;With y~U~~supervis~t/~~;partment~~ad about your career plans. We 
also encourage your Sup~~j~or/D~p':~(b11ent Head to support your efforts to gain experience and 
advance withjnth~gity of RiO';~~lh;~'}; '. . .. ' 

After you~pply for alb~iiyou~'§Up:~rvisor/[)J~'Yijment Head may be contacted for information 
about your. performance, ~kU, andY':\ ndance. Any staffing limitations or other circumstances 
that might aff~pt a possible tt' fer ma'iso be discussed. 

~ - - , . ", - "- / ---"' 

Job posting iS~;~~y to inform{~!~. of op~~ jobs. In addition to posting, the City of Rio Dell may 
use other recruitin'gT~~Mrces to en jobs. 

--, -t;'~> 

2.08 PREGNANCY D1Se 
'-;'j,~-,~;"; 

v,',;' 

The City of Rio Dell prohibits and does not tolerate discrimination against anyone on the basis of 
pregnancy. The City will treat all applicants and employees who are pregnant the same as any 
other applicant or employee with regard to job-related functions, benefits, opportunities, and 
purposes. No person, or employee, no matter his or her title or position has the authority, 
expressed, actual, apparent or implied, to discriminate against a pregnant employee or applicant 
of the City of Rio Dell. 

The City of Rio Dell will not deny a job or remove a pregnant employee from a position because 
the employee is pregnant, conSidering pregnancy, or experiencing any pregnancy-related 
problems. All decisions regarding a pregnant employee's placement in or continuation in ajob will 
be based on the same considerations that govern all employment decisions - the employee's 

[6] 

10 



ability to satisfactorily perform the essential duties of the job and the safety and health of the 
employee, other employees, and third parties. 

Violators of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, for any act 
of pregnancy discrimination reasonably believed to have been committed. 

If you have a question, complaint, or problem concerning pregnancy discrimination, you should 
relate such question, complaint, or problem to your Supervisor/Department Head. If you feel 
uncomfortable doing so or if your SupervisorlDepartment Head is the source of the problem, 
condones the problem, or ignores the problem, report to the City Manager. If the complaint relates 
to the City Manager, your complaint should be submitted to the then current Mayor for the City of 
Rio Dell. 

You are not required to directly confront the person WhOis.!~~§ource of your report, questions, or 
complaint before notifying any of those individuals Iisted~~·N~"e.#tneless, you are reguired to make 
a reasonable effort to make pregnancy discriminati0l'lknbwn sh6uldit exist. 

2.09 PREGNANCY-RELATED ABSENCES 

Employees of the City of Rio Dell shall be entitled to mat~rVjty/paternitY"l~ave for the birth or 
adoption of a child and complications of pregnancy as;mandat~(j by state andfe~eral law. 

/'::;"'\ "«' '. ';:"'. >0;,(" ,,'." 

The City of Rio Dell shall not refusei~?~ilgw~n empIO~~~cW.hO either becomes pregnant or their 
spouse becomes pregnant while empr6~~dWi!l1tbe City of {ij.9 Dell, or is involved with the child 
birth procedure, adoption procedure or rel~~ed rned;~al conditiol1~to either: 

A. 

B. 

.' ".,;c 

TElR~i~av.e on 
feder~I:;igWl 

·'/::r;"i/,/ 

"tIh j;-, 

'."<';',/ ''i/'', 

~~¥~~PlqyrT1~~t granted by the City 
affectE:;tf. • ~.. 're sirni'~f:ln their ability or inability to work, 
or sick i~~ve or any oth~r accrued leave which is made 
to tempti'tarily disabled employees; 

of~$eij~~ncyr~Iated disability as defined by state and/or 

Maternity/paternity leave sh'~'\ tak~!~~'~;!4pject to the following conditions and regUlations: 

A. 

'.;,t>">. -

+ disab~~8 because of pregnancy, childbirth, or a related 
ntitled to an unpaid pregnancy leave for up to 4 months; 

B. Reque~K ~.. ancy disability leave must be submitted in writing and must be 
approved D employee's Supervisor or Department Head before the leave 
begins. The' quest must be supported by a written certification from the attending 
physician stating that the employee is disabled from working by pregnancy, 
childbirth or a related medical condition. The certification must state the expected 
duration of the disability and the expected date of return to work; 

C. All leaves must be confirmed in writing, have an agreed-upon specific date of 
return, and be submitted to the Department Head prior to being taken. Requests 
for an extension of leave must be submitted in writing to the Department Head 
prior to the agreed date of return and must be supported by a written certification of 
the attending physician that the employee continues to be disabled by pregnancy, 
childbirth, or a related medical condition; 

[7] 

/1 



D. Pregnancy leaves are without pay. However, the employee may first use accrued 
sick leave, vacation leave, and then any other accrued paid time off during the 
leave; 

E. An employee on pregnancy disability leave may receive any group health 
insurance coverage that was provided before the leave; 

F. Sick and vacation leave do not accrue while an employee is on unpaid pregnancy 
disability leave; 

G. Upon the expiration of pregnancy leave and th~:(}tty's receipt of a written 
statement from the health care provider that1 '~mployee is fit to return to work, 
the employee will be reinstated to her origj~:; •• 9r an equivalent position, so long as 
it was not eliminated for a legitimate bu~iti~$s re~$pn during the leave; 

>.' :.;> ';'<.\ 

H. If upon return from leave an emplp;¥~~ls unable to~~Jt9rm the essential functions 
of the employee's job because 9f,<~;ipfiysical or mental iji~~ibility, the City will 
initiate an interactive process wltflithe employee in ordertQ'identify a potential 
reasonable accommodation; .'. . . 

I. An employee who fails.lpl~turn to work·;~ftertii~termination of the employee's 
leave loses employee'~ife,;.jns~atement rigHl$~ 

/ :~::::~ : :',' J.~.:: "»< ; 
Paternity leave is the time a father ma~;t~k,e()ff~t1hebirthC>f;f~90Ption of a child. The leave can 
fall under the rules of. F:M~~. or employije may PQ~sit:>ly use;~~cumulated sick leave. The 
employee may be abl~; ·.a~¢.;\JJ? to six W'~~ks le~~~:lt~h~ emp'oyee would like to apply for 
paternity leave, plea~~: ak wjtW)~lJIployee'sli)egadMEmt He~tlpr the City Manager. 

";""{..,;;'0 > '·c ,. • ,,' :"><; '/' "'.', • 

2.10 
;'::':: A;'~ . ':.::',.; 0 

The Cityof'~jg;ili~i ohibif~>'~ijd doesf)pt Jole~te sexual harassment. The City provides 
procedure~for victf' . ~!;. sexiI~j~"harassmentHQ report sexual harassment and disciplinary 
penalti~sfor those who\diip£nit sej~~1 harassrnent. No person, no matter his or her title or 
position, has~~}e authority, exg.r~ssed,~~~al, apparent or implied, to commit sexual harassment. 

~-:. >t~:,,· 
;,<'/ 

Sexual harassrlr 
any other verbal 

includes a~~:~nwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and 
. sical cong;"~t of a sexual nature where: 

• Submission is rrt~~.~t>< . ress or implied term or condition of employment or status; 
• Submission to or rej:,:J6n of the behavior is used to make an employment decision (such 

as hiring, promotion,(f~ termination); and 
• The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonable interfering with a person's work 

performance or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment for work. 

The City of Rio Dell prohibits and does not tolerate any employee, manager, vendor, or visitor, 
male or female, to harass any employee or applicant or to create a hostile or intolerable working 
environment by exhibiting, committing, or encouraging: 

• Direct or implied threats that submission to sexual advances will be condition of 
employment; 

• Material such as pornographic or sexually explicit posters, calendars, graffiti, or objects; 

[8] 

I~ 



• Unwanted, unwelcome, and unwarranted sexual advances, including, but not limited to, 
requests, comments, or innuendoes regarding sex, including sexual jokes, gestures, 
statements, or stalking; 

• Intentional or malicious physical conduct that is sexual in nature, including, but not limited 
to touching, pinching, patting, brushing and/or pulling against another's body or clothes; 
and 

• Physical assaults on other employees, including but not limited to rape, sexual battery, 
molestation, or any attempt to commit such acts or assaults. 

The City of Rio Dell will determine what constitutes sexual harassment based on a review of the 
facts and circumstances of each situation. The City of Rio Dell hereby provides notice of its right 
to use third parties to investigate claims of sexual harassment/ i ;;', 

Violators of this policy are subject to disciplinary action,uPI~i;~nd including discharge, for any act 
of sexual harassment reasonably believed to have beeneoml1lin~d. 

If you are sexually harassed, you mustr~port the adlpf harassment to your 
Supervisor/Department Head immediately. i1fYoU feel uncomfortaQJ~ doing so or if your 
Supervisor/Department Head is the source of th~problem, condones th~.;pr()blem, or ignores the 
problem, report to the City Manager. If the complaitltrelate~;Jgthe City Ma}1:ager, your complaint 
should be submitted to the then current Mayor for the:i~jty Qt~iP Dell. 

You are not required to directly conf;ct~ttff~H~rson Wh~i~t6~ source of your report, questions, or 
complaint before notifying any of thosei1geivlctijgjslisted. NeYertheless, you are required to make 
a reasonable effort to make sexual harassmenfkrlownshould"t!exist. 

2.11 WORKPLACE E~I'liueTrE 
~>,r/";;J:: - :,,~;,::-

The City of Rio Dell c~~;t:J~ a bette~~lace to worRwhen all employees show respect and courtesy 
to each other. Sometime~\,there .af~iProblems When employees do not realize that they are 
bothering orgn~<l}'ipg oth~r:;I?:~Si1~JeclfE~h!~ happE;}.llI to you, you should first try to solve the 
problembYm:>litels?teJ!i(lg youtC'9;.)lYorker wfi~til)J::>othering you. 

, ." ",,' . \", .' 

In most o~~~s, if you use)~!;tr:tesy at39.~ommon sense, the problem can be fixed. We encourage 
you to keep~~} open mind. Iff~r'l?ther errl~J?yee tells you about something that you are doing that 
makes it haracfprthat person tcYwork, try tb.lInderstand the other person's point of view. 

The following are e guideli and suggestions for how to be considerate of others at work. 
You will not necessarl ;;pe dis ed if you do not follow these suggestions, but the guidelines 
will help you get along:·:w· .... ers. If you have comments or suggestions about workplace 
etiquette, contact the Sup~: .;~t5r/Department Head. 

• Keep the area around your work space orderly and picked up. 
• Avoid public accusations or criticisms of other employees. Address such issues 

privately with those involved or your Supervisor/Department Head. 
• Be conscious of how your voice travels, and try to lower the volume of your voice when 

talking on the phone or to others in open areas. 
• Keep socializing to a minimum, and try to conduct conversations in areas where the 

noise will not be distracting to others. 
• Try not to block common areas while carrying on conversations. 
• Refrain from using inappropriate language (swearing) that others may overhear. 

[9] 

/3 



• Avoid discussions of your personallife/issues in public conversations that can be easily 
overheard. 

• Monitor the volume when listening to music, voice mail, or a speakerphone that others 
can hear. 

• Clean up after yourself and do not leave behind waste or discarded papers. 
• Conduct should be in a professional manner at all times. 
• Dress appropriately. 
• Maintain proper hygiene. 

SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFIC.TIONS, 
PRACTICES AND PROC~"DkES 

3.01 ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY 

We expect all of the City of Rio Dell empIOyeeS;!9;i~reliable and punc~~al. You should report for 
work on time and as scheduled. If you cannot~,w:e to work or you will6~late for any reason, you 
must notify your SupervisorlDepartment Head as!)pon as possible. 

Unplanned absences can disrupt wO~k,inconvenienge9tn~~~mpIOyeeS, anda'fi~~t productivity. If 
you have a poor attendance record .. pte)5:cessive tardin~~s, you may be subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including terminatiori:Olerijplpyment. 

Excessive tardiness occurs when an em~19¥~:~t~t~t~{9WOr~~6~t~~urning from breaks more than 
three times during anY~Q ... d~y,period. ~~~essiv~~~b~~£lteeism9ccurs when the number of 
absences exceeds 3 d~Y$1n anytlJree-monthpl3riQg~;; . . 

3.02 AMENDMENTANQ REVISil~N OF RUJ~~"> 
Recommepg~ttqnsf9ramenQil'lel1ts~htJ}.t7Xi~ioriti(i)f these rules may be made by the City 
Manag~.n;;~lectea offlbJaJs, anYdQly recogni~~ld,~mployee's association and the City Attorney. 
propose~i .• ~mendments or.t~visiOQ~ .• ~hall bepu5licly posted for at least five (5) consecutive 
business;d~¥~. prior to con$~~~ration'{)Yithe City Council at a regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting. A~<.,tQe time of eQr;:U5ideratiQ)1lany interested party may appear and be heard. 
Amendments Ja:~:g!revisions s~~U become: effective upon adoption by resolution by the City 
Council foliowing:§l,Iph hearings.,and as agreed to between the City Council and any duly 
recognized employe~~~§sociatioH~~tf such amendments and revisions are within the scope of meet 
and confer requiremer'its~.; '.' 

~ /' ~- ,.' ~ 

3.03 BACKGROUND/REESRENCE CHECKS 

To ensure that individuals who join the City of Rio Dell are well qualified and have a strong 
potential to be productive and successful, it is the policy of the City of Rio Dell to check the 
employment references of all applicants. 

The responses to such inquiries will confirm only dates of employment, wage rates, and positions 
held. 

[10] 

1'-1 



Prior to making any commitment to prospective full-time employees, the City of Rio Dell shall also 
(unless prohibited by law) perform a background investigation to evaluate a job candidate's 
qualifications, character, fitness, and to identify potential hiring risks for safety and security 
reasons. A background investigation would include criminal history, social security number trace, 
past employment verification, and credit score. Any offers of employment may be made to 
prospective employees contingent upon the results of such background check. 

3.04 CAUSE OF IMMEDIATE DISCHARGE 

Willful or neglectful misuse, damage, or destruction of public or private property, City vehicles, or 
City equipment or willful violation of any municipal rule or regulation, City ordinance, state or 
federal law could be the cause for immediate discharge from en:rployment with the City of Rio Dell. 

3.05 CELL PHONE POLICY 

The City of Rio Dell has established a Cell Phone pOlicy pursuant}o Resolution No. 1030-2009 
and allows employees whose job duties includ.~{\ffe frequent nee(jcfor a cellular phone to be 
issued a City-owned cellular phone, or to be eOfi~l~d to receive extra GQ~pensation in the form of 
a cellular phone allowance to cover business,;,;rfih:~ted use of their persori~.IIY owned device and 
service plan. There are three levels of allowahd,~s based upon City neectand usage criteria. 
Employees should contact their SURervisor for speyific information regarding cellular phone 
allowances. 

In the interest of safety, employees (e<' tirlglfiYienforcem~nt officers) are expressly forbidden 
from using cell phones while driving eif • on eltY;:9\Jsiness &rtl~ring City hours. This includes 
writing, sending, or readingtext-:based communication~;s.l,Jch as t~?<t. messages or e-mail. 

'.' '. " 

If your job requires yQ:ujdkeep yol.rrcell phonetui~~d on at tifnes while you are driving, you must 
use a hands-free devlc~or safelypl,J1I off thetQ:[d and park your vehicle before talking on the 
phone. Employees are expressly piphibited fromtp\pcing any phone calls while operating a motor 
vehicle whiledrjviogon CitY bu.§inesgJanC!lor City tiin~. 

,"",< '" .' , . . 
Failure.t9comply withtl1j$policy IT!a~result inai~~ipline, up to and including termination. 

3.06 COIlMUNICATIONSPQLlCY' 

Electronic comrtiLinjqations, inch:..\ging the contents of the City-owned computers and telephones 
are the properties'Q~\tt)e City otf.~io Dell. This policy is meant to set forth guidelines regarding 
access to and discld~~fe of inf9lmation/messages sent or received by the City of Rio Dell 
employees using the sY$l~W.l"~is policy may be changed at any time. The Internet, electronic 
mail, phone mail, or any otf)~r'bommunication or information system of the City of Rio Dell is not 
to be used in any way that may be disruptive, offensive to others, or harmful to morale. 

The City of Rio Dell electronic communication systems, including computers and telephones 
(including all hardware and software and all contents) are the exclusive property of the City of Rio 
Dell. 

The City of Rio Dell treats all computer files, including electronic mail (e-mail)sentorreceived.as 
business information. The City has the capability to access, review, copy, and/or delete any 
computer files, including e-mail sent or received. If employees make incidental use of the 
computer system for personal files or e-mail, employees should not expect personal files or e-mail 

[11 ] 

15 



to be protected from review by other employees. Accordingly. employees should not use the City 
of Rio Deli's computer system to create or transmit any information they wish to keep private. 

Confidential Information: Employees must exercise extreme caution when creating or transmitting 
City of Rio Dell confidential information. Confidential information should not be transmitted to any 
individual not authorized to receive such information. 

E-mail: When transmitting messages via e-mail, employees should consider that e-mail 
messages can be read by persons other than the addressee and that the message may be later 
disclosed to outside parties or a court in connection with litigation. Because of these concerns, 
the City of Rio Dell employees are required to maintain the highest standards of courtesy and 
professionalism when transmitting e-mail. 

\~- '", ; 

City of Rio Dell computer systems should not be used {91s§licit or proselytize for commercial 
ventures, religious or political causes, or outside organj~fi6nsthat are not authorized by the City 
of Rio Dell. 

Internet: The City of Rio Dell provides employ~~sWith access to thell1ternet for business-related 
purposes. The City of Rio Dell has the capabltlty to review web-site acc~§s. Employees should 
not have any expectation of privacy regarding the web-sites acpessed througtlthe City of Rio Dell 
computer system. Computer systems may "leave tf~.~ks"~t~web-sites vislt~.~:,.Because of the 
nature of City of Rio Dell business, 911Y incidental useiof,tlie Internet for personal use must be 
conducted with the highest levels of professionalism. .. 

Employees may not use the City's Intern~tconh~¢tiol1 to dOWtll~9d games or other entertainment 
software, or to play games .p\{,er the Internet, . . ) . 

Software: The Ci.ty~f Rio De,1fprohibits tM~9~author1ii(akHse of software. The City of Rio 
Dell expects its emplbYe:e,~ to condlJpt themseh(e§ responsiblY-in this regard. Employees should 
refrain from making or\.jliigg unauthorized copj~s, of software programs. Employees may not 
install any nop-G}ty owned~Qftw~fe:PJ:Pgrams onarlY City computer without the approval of the 
City Manag~.~ . '. . ." .' 

ViolatofS';gfthiS policy are.~~bjectl()diSCiplinaryaction, up to and including discharge, for any 
violation r'e~:Sqnably believeft~9have Been committed. 

3.07 CODE·<lF·t;THICS 
,. 

1. Purpose,·. 

A. It is the P6ii~~i.~tihe City of Rio Dell to uphold, promote, and demand the highest 
standards of ethics ff6fu all of its employees and officials, whether elected, appointed, or 
hired. City officials and employees shall maintain the utmost standards of personal 
integrity, truthfulness, honesty, and fairness in carrying out their public duties; avoid any 
improprieties in their roles as public servants including the appearance of impropriety; 
and never use their City position or powers for improper personal gain. It is further the 
policy of the City that the public's right to know of complaints of violations of the Code of 
Ethics by City-elected officials far outweighs any right that these matters remain secret 
and private and that full access to information concerning the interests that seek to 
influence governmental decision-making must be assured as a fundamental and 
necessary precondition to the sound governance of a free society. 

[12] 

1& 



For further information, refer to Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) Title 1, Chapter 1.10. 
Governing Authorities 

The following is a list of agencies responsible for enforcing federal, state, and 
local laws and investigating issues surrounding improper governmental actions: 

Rio Dell Police Department 
(707)-764-5642 

Humboldt County Grand Jury 
(707) 476-2475 

District Attorney's Office 
(800) 962-8261 

Fair Labor & Housing 
(800) 884-1684 

3.08 "AT-WILL" EMPLOYMENT 

We sincerely hope that your employment relationship'iVith tq~~~ity of Rio Dell~jlJ be satisfying 
and mutually beneficial. We neverth~!~~s believe there'~~e"$ome things you must' know. Your 
employment relationship with the City QfR!o,pell is "at-willl~'This means that you are entirely free 
to terminate your employment at any titq~, eithrrt/ith or witH9yta reason. It also means that the 
City of Rio Dell has the very same righta$ youanaf~.n termina't~ your employment at any time, 
with or without cause or advance notice. . ... . ' .. 

This represents an int~gfatedagr~~JJ,ent withr~§p;~~t;~hthe'~t .. :Wili nature of your employment 
relationship. No repre~e:ntative or employee oHti~lCity of Rio Dell, other than the City Manager, 
has the authority to entehptq a contr~ry agreeme~l. Even then, a contrary agreement is 
enforceable OqIYJfi~.is setfot!/:l.ina.~ritt~n agreem~f1t that is signed by both you and separately 
affirmed aJ'l~a<t()pt~~tiby the City,COllllcil. . 

3.09 

1. . >:[ermination 

a. Voluntary l'~rmination 

The City of Rio Dell ~~,r'QQPSid~f~n employee to have voluntarily terminated his or her 
employment if an employe§gd~s any of the following: 

[13] 

)7 



(1) Elects to resign from the City of Rio Dell; 

(2) Fails to return from an approved leave of absence on the date 
specified by the City of Rio Dell; or 

(3) Fails to report for work without notice to the City of Rio Dell for three 
consecutive days. 

b. Involuntary Termination 

An employee may be terminated involuntarily for reasons that may include poor performance, 
misconduct, or other violations of the City of Rio Dell's rules ofg~f1duct as set forth below. 
Notwithstanding this list of rules, the City of Rio Dell reserve~J~~'Hght to discharge or demote any 
employee with or without "cause" and with or without priorJ1q~te. 

":., ;",,~ \~:~~; 

c. Termination Due to Reorgani~ti6ri~, Econi:)ooics or Lack of Work 

From time to time, the City of Rio Dell (acting th{Q~gfithe City Manage,rl("i1ay need to terminate 
an employee as a result of reorganizations, jol:j/~jii1linations, economic'dPWt;'turns in business, or 
lack of work. Should the City of Rio Dell considei$,-!ch termingtions neces$;~"ry, it will attempt to 
provide all affected employees with advance notice:\vb~n praRliQal, or whenr~q~ired by law. 

2. Discipline and Rules of Conduct if aboJ~ch§~~~d accepted, thi~ShOUld be 2 now. 

a. Policy 

Employees are expectecj.topbs~rve certain$tandardsZ~f,:jQPpe~JrijlanCe and good conduct. 
When performance OC~Ohductdgi~ not meet;~itY~faiO O~l!i~t~ndards, the City of Rio Dell will 
endeavor, when it deems approprl~t~, to provlc(~"tl'l~employee:areasonable opportunity to 
correct the deficiency. If,ttQwever, th~ employe€i;il~ils to make the correction, he or she will be 
subject to discipline, up tOi;inc;t in~ludi.n,gdischarge\>iFurther, this policy does not alter the at-will 
nature of e§qf:!~rrrpJQ¥ee's eme1Qyment. . 

, . ",,'. , '// ,." ';/< 

The rUleS{;~t forth b~I()~A~r~ int~'ndedto provid~$rnployees with fair notice of what is expected of 
them. Hb '., er, such rules)~~nnot ia~J1tify every type of unacceptable conduct and performance. 
Therefore, oyees shoula~~aware ~ij~t conduct not specifically listed below but which 
adversely aff~w is otherwise:,c;tetrimentalto the interests of the City of Rio Dell, other 
employees, client§t~f customerstQ{ other third parties), may also result in disciplinary action. 

b.~iB~rform~m4~~ 
Employees may be disciplin~~!f6r poor job performance, including but not limited to the following: 

[14] 

)8 



(1) Unsatisfactory work in terms of quality or quantity; 

(2) Rudeness, lack of cooperation, or similar conduct; 

(3) Excessive absenteeism, tardiness, or abuse of break and lunch 
privileges; 

(4) Failure to follow instructions or City of Rio Dell procedures; or 

(5) Failure to follow established safety regulations. 

c. Misconduct 

Employees may be disciplined for misconduct, including b4~Jloflimited to the following: 

(1 ) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

err 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11 ) 

(12) 

(13) 

(14) 

(15) 

Insubordination; 

Dishonesty; 

Theft; 

Discourte~y; 

Misusingj'()rd~~t{oying Cityof~io Dell property or the property of 
another on~itypi~mj!§es; 

Viglating conflipt of inte~~,struJes; 

Dis61~sjng or uSiq~·~~6flgential· or proprietary information without 
authC)ti~tion; ., ... 

< " . . 

F~J$,i~ijrflf~J"altering Say records, including application for 
em@J9ymenf;' . . . 

"">'. , 
!nterfering.with the work performance of others; 

Altercations;>, 
'.;'/"; /; " 

Har~~sihg, including sexually harassing, employees, clients or 
cu.~lQiners (or other third parties); 

~ij~g under the influence of, manufacturing, dispensing, 
'distributing, using, or possessing alcohol or illegal or controlled 
substances on City of Rio Dell property or while conducting City 
business; 

Gambling on City of Rio Dell premises or while conducting City 
business; 

Sleeping on the job or leaving work without authorization; 

possessing a firearm or other dangerous weapon on City of Rio Dell 
property or while conducting City business; 

[15] 

19 



(16) Being convicted of a crime that indicates unfitness for the job or 
raises a threat to the safety or well-being of the City of Rio Dell, its 
employees, clients, customers (or other third parties) or property; or 

(17) Failing to report to the City of Rio Dell, within five days, any 
conviction under any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in 
the workplace. 

d. Attendance 

In addition to the general rules stated above, employees may be disciplined for failing to observe 
the following specific requirements relating to attendance: 

(1 ) Reporting to work on time, ?~I;t3 ?g to established work schedules, 
observing the time limits fQrr~s d meal periods, and obtaining 
approval to leave worke~Hy;and " 

(2) Notifying the Sup~ryisor in advance of i:iijJicipated tardiness or 
absence. " '.' 

e. Discipline Procedure 

Although discharge or demotion for p~~t,~erformancerrit:ly~~preceded by an oral warning and/or 
a written warning, the City of Rio Dell r~~~rV~~}he right top{o,Qeed directly to a written warning, 
demotion, suspension or termination forwi~cofld~~tor perfo":'/ ce deficiency, without resort to 
prior disciplinary steps, when the City of Rib;Dell,·ln·t~:t~s()le disc'·.·;n, deems such action 
appropriate. A copy of a!lY·~f~e§pondence·t:>Jaced irtth~.pwsonri~1 tile will be available to the 
affected employee. . ...... . .... ' . 

f. DI~cjplinary Agtion 

(1) G9nq~etR~sulting InDl~charge 
, ',' :.', .. , '.' / .. : .: .... ;.............. ..... . :"··;': .. ~:.·.:;;v.;.' .. " .'. . , '; 

A first vj()l~tion of this policy,yvill rS$ult in immedialedischarge, whenever the prohibited conduct: 

In'liQI¥es fighting or causing injury to the employee or any 
othe~~erson, or, in the sole opinion of management, 
endangered the safety of the employee or any other person; 

Results in significant damage to City of Rio Dell property or 
equipment, or, in the sole opinion of management, posed a 
risk of significant damage; 

(c) Involves the sale or manufacture of illegal drugs or other 
controlled substances; 

(d) Involves the possession, distribution, or dispensation of 
illegal drugs or other controlled substances or alcohol; 

(e) Involves an employee who had not completed the 
Introductory Period or was a casual, seasonal, or temporary 
employee; 

[16] 

,J../) 



(f) Involves the failure of an employee to report a criminal 
conviction, as required below; 

(g) Involves insubordination and outspoken or mutinous attitude 
toward those in charge or a flaunting disregard of the 
authority of the Supervisor or willful disobedience; 

(h) Involves inexcusable absence without leave; 

(i) Involves possession of a firearm on City of Rio Dell property; 

U) Involves inexcusable negl~et of duty; 

(k) Involves dishonesty; or 

(I) Involves willful disobedience: 

g. Discretion to Apply Lesser DisCipline 

Under the circumstances other than those descrlb~q immediately above, th~City of Rio Dell, in 
the sole discretion of management, may elect not to;9i~char~)~~n employee fQr~ first violation of 
this policy if, under the circumstances,. involved, it deern~\ thi$tg:ppropriate. . 

h. Effective Criminal Conviction 

An employee who is convicted under a crlmi,nal drl.J~f~~~tute f~r aviplation occurring in the 
workplace or during anyGity.ofR,io Dell-relat~d activity{9r~vent wiflpe deemed to have violated 
this policy.' '. . . 

i. Written Warning 

An employ~e'{\ll1?!i~ not discnarg~~Jora first violati91"l of this policy will receive a final written 
warning al"l~rpr~fHfnfll~p:iate suspension, Witl1~lJtpa¥~at the sole discretion of the City of Rio 
Dell. Aqppy of any corre~pondenG~ placed in th~personnel file will be made available to the 
subject ern:p.lpyee .' 

3.lSxtt Interview 

Employees who le:a:~~the City o(~lo Dell for any reason may be asked to participate in an exit 
interview with the CitY:I\t1~nagerfQF·designee). This interview is intended to permit departing 
employees the opporturiityto q("':):rolllunicate their views regarding their work with the City of Rio 
Dell, including job duties, jobtrafning, job supervision, and job benefits. 

At the time of the interview, or as otherwise specified by the City of Rio Dell, employees are 
expected to return all City-furnished property, such as uniforms, tools, equipment, 1.0. cards, 
keys, credit cards, documents, and handbooks. Arrangements for clearing any outstanding debts 
with the City of Rio Dell and for receiving final pay also will be made at this time. 

4. Employment At-Will 

Nothing in this guideline is intended to alter the at-will status of employment with the City of Rio 
Dell. Either the City of Rio Dell or you may terminate the employment relationship at any time, 
with or without cause, and with or without prior notice. The City of Rio Dell reserves the right to 

[17] 

.:J.I 



terminate any employment relationship, to demote, or to otherwise discipline an employee without 
resort to the above disciplinary procedures. 

3.10 E·MAIL RETENTION POLICY (City of Rio Dell Resolution No. 1000·2008) 

Generally, e-mail messages are temporary communications which are non-vital and should be 
discarded routinely. However, depending on the content of the e-mail, it may be considered 
public record. Accordingly, employees have the same responsibilities for e-mail messages as 
they do for any other public record and must distinguish between records and non-record 
information. 

While City electronic e-mail retention is for a maximum.~:etiod of 180 days, an e-mail 
communication should be deleted as soon as practicable,ff6futhe system. It is the policy of 
the City of Rio Dell that e-mail is not to be used tqi~t&,i1J or store public records of any 
department. Communications or records intended orJ"~~'UireQ"b:}:' law to be retained shall be 
printed in a hard copy and filed or stored as apprqpriate or saved~p designated electronic files 
or other media as required by any department~fj'o:f city procedur~~" It is City policy that all 
departments adhere to their legal record rete~ti~iHequirements. E-miiij.l.should be printed and 
filed in the appropriate location if any law reqalJ;~s a communication fqQe kept for a period 
greater than 180 days. Employees should see~~~idance; .• trpm their Depa.rtment Heads in 
order to ascertain the specific timerequirements;.;~ppli~§tsl$ to the docum~J]ts generated, 
received and or maintained by their de~artment. .' ....... ". . '.' 

'c" '" 

E-mail ShouldbeconsideredacommUPiCatlQ~;tool.no;<a: rage mechanism. Back-up tapes 
are for disaster recovery purpose onIY'i.~et~Wtlp~ .. i~ the r ......... 8nsibility of the sender of the 
message, not the back-l,Jgp.r:9t~SS. Backu.Rt).copies~r~~n.Qt fortti~{2urpose of records retention. 
Back-up tapes should oeretainect no moretijpn six;6jQn'tn$~'" 

Regardless of retentiQtirequirements, e-m~L~~~d<all O~h;~V)~lectronic or paper documents 
pertaining to threatened Of {lctual r~gal proceedihgs must be retained until the litigation is finally 
concluded. . 

The de{iJjit{Oll of PUbli6i~po~dS ir'leludes any ~ritiD9 containing information relating to the conduct 
of the puJlli9's businessptep{lred, o;VVJl~d, used or retained by the City. The definition includes 
electronicr~8Q[ds, includin~{~rnails. Ttle.gefinition does not include preliminary drafts, notes, or 
interagency of;:~i('ltfa-agency merporandatQ~t are not retained by the City in the ordinary course of 
business. . ..... . . 

Because of syste~~~~p:acitYC9nCerns, personal correspondence and interdepartmental and 
intradepartmental e-mail~;§h~~lg;routinely be deleted unless either the sender or the recipient 
would have retained the Wr;it,~g' had it been sent in any other form. E-mail from outside the City 
should be retained by the reCIpient, if he or she would have retained the document if it had been 
sent in any other form. 

The sender of the e-mail is responsible for ensuring proper retention of e-mails sent within the 
City. All other copies are duplicates and may be deleted. However, if a record e-mail was sent by 
an outside agency, a member of the public or anyone outside the City, the recipient is 
responsible for retention if required. 

E-mail itself is not considered a record category; it is a means of transmission of messages or 
information. Retention or disposition of e-mail messages must be related to the information they 
contain or the purpose they serve. Thus, the retention period is determined by the content of the 

[18] 



e-mail, not the medium. Record e-mails may be deleted upon expiration of the statutory 
retention period (or after 180 days if there is no statutory retention period) or as appropriate on 
authorization of the City Council, 

Attachments should be retained or disposed of according to the content of the attachment itself, 
not the e-mail which transmits the attachment. Thus, attachments should be retained if they 
constitute a document which the recipient or the sender would ordinarily retain in the ordinary 
course of business. 

E-mail will be deleted after 180 days. 

E-mail is not used to store public records. 

E-mail that requires storage for a period of greater than18~)'Qays should be printed and filed 
or saved as a document for electronic storage in your.ne1W6rKf9Iders. 

3.11 EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS 

We rely on the accuracy of the information Y9&put on your employr1'rentapplication. We also 
expect that you and your references give accurc~liii~~Qd truei?tQrmation doring. the hiring process 
and employment. If we find that any information is ;'Ai1.~I~agim~jfalse, or wasl~f:tout on purpose, 
we may reject an applicant from fU~~fconsideratio·~·i.af.~ij'e·person was alrea'Oy hired, it could 
result in termination of employment. App1i(}qtiQns will remajnpn file for one (1) year. 

n""',' ,', ,.,; 

3.12 EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND WOBKRUfu~~: 

We expect you to fOIl9~~ertain W9fk rules af1l~,~olJg)~~i'~JUf~~ltinX~yS that protect the interests 
and safety of all empl()~~es and tn~.pty of Ri6{~~JIFt' . . .. ' 

. ' 
While it is impossible to lisr~\(~ry.9"~tipnJhat is uria~eptable conduct, the following lists some 
examples. Emp'I~¥~~~'Nho br~(~I$?~dr'Kr'4J~~§uch a~.tbese may be subject to disciplinary action, 
up to and.if1~ludln§ teFfflipptiorrqfj~mploymeflt,~ 

.'fOeft or inappr()ptj~te rem~¥~1 or possession of property; 
• Fal~jliGation of time(' pingr~~~ds; 
• Wo~.iJg under the ih . ,ynce oH~lcohol or illegal drugs; 
• posse$~]~p, distribut '" sale, transfer, or use of alcohol or illegal drugs in the 

workplac9,Iwnile on , or while operating employer-owned vehicles or equipment; 
• Fighting ortht~~te9~ '.' '.' iolence in the workplace; 
• Negligence orimp,T§ , sr conduct leading to damage of employer-owned or customer-

owned property;" '. 
• Violation of safety or health rules; 
• Smoking in prohibited areas; 
• Sexual or other unlawful or unwelcome harassment; 
• Possession of dangerous or unauthorized materials, such as explosives or firearms, in 

the workplace; 
• Excessive absenteeism or any absence without notice; 
• Unauthorized use of telephones, mail system, or other employer-owned equipment; 
• Violation of personnel policies; 
• Unsatisfactory performance or conduct. 

[19] 



Employees may terminate their employment at any time they want, with or without cause or 
advance notice. Likewise, the City of Rio Dell may terminate your employment at any time, with or 
without cause or advance notice. It is common practice to give two weeks' notice to your employer 
before terminating your employment, although there is no right to prior notice. 

3.13 EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS 

Employees of the City of Rio Dell must be in possession of a valid California Driver's license while 
employed with the City. Employees of the City could be asked to drive a City vehicle at any time 
to make deliveries or for any number of job situations. For that reason a job applicant will be 
asked to submit to a medical and drug test before being hired to work for the City. 

3.14 GIFTS AND GRATUITIES 

No employee shall solicit or accept any gift, gratuity, ordiscountfor City services rendered, bids 
or contract awarded, or for any other reason conne.~t~d with thee~ercise of his or her duties and 
responsibilities as an employee. 

3.15 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

1. Consideration of Grievances 

This procedure is established in orde(c19;provide opportun~ies for City employees to bring forth 
their view relating to any alleged unfairfGf improp~r aspect of. their employment situation and to 
seek a resolution of such matters. . ... 

Definitions: 

A "grievance" shall me~ii.~ statem~nt by a grievant that a controversy, dispute or disagreement 
of any kind or character exists a~i~i~~,9lJt of or in?ny way involving interpretation of rule, policy, 
M.O.U., or~.irn<aA~ei.:r~~0Iutiol1j.9tpfacti¢~1>Qr that an employee has been treated unfairly or 
inequitabJ¥1::Qr;t~a( tfi~(~'~?<istsi:ic!~9iflditionwh)<?Jlj~?pardizes employee health and safety which is 
beyond,th¢ control of tn~.;~rievanf£/The grievance procedure shall not be used for disciplinary 
appeals. .. .... . ., 

A "grievant" sh~Jkmean an emplPyee ~r!gtd\.Jp of employees filing a grievance. 

In any instance ot',k. ance, t~~Aemployee concerned shall first make efforts to resolve such 
grievance with his/he Qepa.r;fCnt Head. If the efforts to resolve the grievance with the 
Department Head are rit>~~a~' ctory, the employee may submit his/her complaint in writing to 
the Department Head. . .. '. .. 

Upon receipt of the written complaint, the Department Head shall make such investigation as 
required under the circumstances and reply in writing to the employee within ten (10) working 
days after receipt of the statement from the employee. 

If the employee wishes to discuss the grievance further, he/she shall within ten (10) working days 
of the receipt of the reply from the Department Head submit a written request for a meeting with 
the City Manager. If the complaint relates to the City Manager, your complaint should be 
submitted to the then current Mayor for the City of Rio Dell. 

[20] 



The requested meeting will be held by the City Manager at the earliest date possible at which the 
employee, the Department Head, and any other persons invited by the City Manager may be 
present. The decision made by the City Manager as the result of the findings and conclusions 
determined at this meeting shall be communicated to the employee within ten (10) days following 
the meeting. This decision may be appealed to the City Council. Written appeal must be made to 
the City Council within ten (10) working days of receipt of the City Manager's decision. The City 
Council shall hear the appeal within thirty (30) days. The City Council's findings and 
determinations shall be communicated to the employee within ten (10) days following the hearing. 

2. Employee Rights 

No reprisals whatsoever shall be invoked against any empIQ~~~ for processing a grievance or 
participating in the grievance procedure. Paid release time$I;l~lf be provided when approved by 
the City Manager for participants in the processing of gri~v~ri~s. Such release time will be given 
with due consideration of the needs of the City for serviceS l11qJ4ding scheduled hearings before 
the City Council. When scheduling conflicts ar.ise as a resl:)U. of such needs, reasonable 
extensions of time shall be granted. . , 

The employees participating in the grievancepiogedure may be represe~tE:ld, at the employee's 
option, by one duly recognized Employee Associ~tion Repr~§entative afarl¥or all steps of the 
grievance procedure, provided, how~ver, the EmpJoYee A~~Qciation Repre~~~tative has been 
designated as a representative of th,~;:a,~s,ociation, in wntingrat least ten (10) da'Ys in advance of 
such step in the grievance proce<:luire,.. The total hJ.i,fl1ber of designated City employee 
representatives shall be limited to thre:~c~nnufut,>;~r, one from~~ch of the three City Departments, 
together with any paid professional non~tvplo~ereRresentattVe.of a duly recognized employee 
association. Designationo ployee rept'tsentafiv~~may be~l,lbstituted upon ten (10) days 
advance written notice. Y ,. Multiplegrieva~t§pr~~$:rlting tile same or substantially similar 
issues shall be limited., ' .presentc~t!}tejt1the abser:'lg~?.of a legal conflict of interest. 

3. Hearing 

Step.,tk"fij~~}p~9ring~~~f2~:;{h~G1ty ~()~ncilstJall be informal. 
"',"</, ,'c 

stili;: There ~~a.ll;be ~;¥bimal rules oUividence. 

St~Ji~k~'Ihe emplo:~' all ~;i~~flt his/her own case or designate a representative 
:.wb.o need not n attorriey but may be an attorney. 

Step 4: 

Step 5: 

c>:ti{::;.:~ 

nd/or the Department Head shall present his/her own case. 

The C'i;~~i~f(Q ey, if he/she is present, shall not serve as an advocate for either 
party. HisfflEi responsibility would be the same as at a regular City Council 
meeting, to advise the City Council as to the law and its bearings in the matters 
under discussion. Nothing herein shall, however, prohibit the City from 
retaining independent counsel to represent the City's interests. 

Step 6: All hearings shall be closed to the public except at the request of the affected 
employee. Upon written request for a public hearing, the hearing shall be open. 

Step 7: All appeals proceedings shall be tape-recorded. Recordings and records of 
appeal proceedings shall be maintained by the City Clerk for a period of two (2) 
years after the final decision is rendered by the Council. Employees may be 

[21] 



allowed copies of said tapes at cost at any time within said two (2) year period. 
Either party may request a stenographic reporter to record the proceedings. 

The cost of a stenographic reporter shall be borne by the requesting party. In 
the event a transcript is requested by either party to a proceeding, the original 
and one (1) copy thereof shall be filed with the City Clerk after its preparation by 
the stenographic reporter is completed. 

Step 8: Any court action brought by either party must be brought within ninety (90) days 
of the final decision of the City Council. 

3.16 HANDLING OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
i /~;: ~ /' " 

Some employees will work with information that is of a c;9;Qfi(l~ntial nature. If an employee is 
given such information, they are expected to keep theln(jrmation confidential and should not 
share the information with unauthorized persons. . 

Violators of this policy are subject to disciplinary;a~fon, up to and~jncluding discharge, for any 
violation reasonably believed to have been comr;niHed. . . 

3.17 INVOLUNTARY DEMOTION 

The Department Head may demote afl~~[lployee whose~p~lity to perform his reqtJired duties falls 
below standard or for disciplinary purp~~es;Noemployeesball be demoted to a position for 
which he does not possess the minimumjqw:i'jfj~~ti,cms. Invol~l:1tpry demotions shall be made in 
accordance with the City's progressive dl~ciplinepoli:¢y. . 

3.18 JOB DESCRIP17la~§ 
/:;;J}~~~;;' 

<>F)>'i 

We try to have accuraf~zd~b descjiptions for all"jpbs at the City of Rio Dell. A job description 
includes the following sectj~n~: jfi>~~jJ'lfwmation; j~? summary (gives a general overview of the 
job's purp .;; ... ~~.~~[ltial dOti~~,.~h(freSP9~sibilitfe,~; supervisory responsibilities; qualifications 
(include i

' att6n{a~~tQr, expefi~QGe, langtl~gEt.~kiHS, mathematical skills, reasoning ability, and 
any ce ion required)t<p))ysicaf~~mands; and.work environment. 

We use;:lW~r)'Ob descri;itd~~. to;h~'R. new employees understand their jobs and their 
responsibilitie~ e also use 19b descri'Ptions to identify the requirements of a job, set up the 
hiring criteria, s ndards fciijt;~mployee performance evaluations, and establish a basis for 
making reasonable" QmmodatiSi'tls for individuals with disabilities . 

. /.>,'<_';:'::.C 

New job descriptions are~t~~,'when a new job is created. We review existing job descriptions 
and change them when aI~ anges. You can help by making sure that your job description is 
accurate and describes your job duties. 

Your job description does not necessarily cover every task or duty that you might be assigned. 
You may be assigned additional responsibilities as necessary. If you have questions or concerns 
about your job description, contact the City Manager. 

3.19 LAY-OFFS 

Whenever it becomes necessary for employees to be laid off because of lack of work or lack of 
funds, all temporary or part-time employees of the Department shall be laid off before any 

[22] 



permanent employees. If additional reductions are necessary, permanent employees shall be laid 
off in reverse order of their seniority within a Department in the same job title. Except in 
emergency situations, employees laid off shall be given written notice of such layoff at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the effective date of the layoff. The names of permanent employees laid off 
shall be placed on a re-employment list for the Department involved in the lay-off. Persons on 
such lists shall retain eligibility for appointment there from in order of accumulated seniority for a 
period of two (2) years from the date their names were placed on the lists. Probationary 
employees shall receive credit for time previously served on probation if rehired within said two (2) 
year period. 

3.20 LINES OF AUTHORITY 

Each employee is responsible to his or her Department h!~~d$for proper performance of duty, 
conduct on the job, compliance with rules, regulatiotlS;'ilnd policies applicable to his/her 
employment. All requests, questions, suggestions, anp,'griev~ri~~s shall first be submitted to an 
employee's Department head who will take appr()priafe actionif!>8ccordance with department 
policy and these rules. 

Line of authority within the administrative organl~tion of the City shall be~s follows: 

City Council 
City Manager 
Department Head 

3.21 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

The City shall retain, Wll~tf1~~3~~I;:l[CiSed or09t, s~lelyan<J,.I;:l}}Cluii~eIY, all express and inherent 
rights and authority ~uf$uant to law with resR~cHpdeterrl\ir1iA9 the level of, and the manner in 
which, the City's activitlsa~~re condy~ted, mana9,~p, and administered, and it is the exclusive right 
of the City to establish an:ttmaintaindepartmenft;lll"ules and procedures for the administration of 
its departmel)ts. .;. 

, ;~,.;::><;.<,,; , 

The CitM;ij~~;ihe ex~J6~i't~;righf~~nq:authoritYtqc~~hedule work and/or overtime work as required 
in the ma~b~r most advanti;lg~ous t6.!:n~ City. . . 

Every incid~ijputy connedt~~; with~?~R~rptions enumerated in job descriptions is not always 
specifically des neverthe1.~~s, it is intended that all such duties shall be performed by the 

.~':,/~""--

employee. 

The appointing authorityr~~ 
Employee Handbook. Th~{: 

1~\j¥ 
v~fhe right to discipline or discharge employees as set forth in the 

;/reserves the right to layoff personnel of the City at any time. 

The City shall determine assignments and establish methods and processes by which 
assignments are performed. 

The City shall have the exclusive right to transfer employees within departments and to positions 
outside a department in a manner most advantageous to the City. 

The City shall have the authority, without prior meeting and conferring, to effect reorganizations 
and reallocation of work of the City. 

[23] 



The City has the right, without prior meeting and conferring, to contract for matters relating to 
municipal operations, including contracting out bargaining unit work. The right of contracting or 
subcontracting is vested exclusively in the City. 

The inherent and express rights of the City, including those herein specifically referred to that are 
not expressly modified or restricted by a specific provision hereof, are not in any way, directly or 
indirectly, subject to meeting and conferring or the Grievance Procedure herein. 

3.22 MEET AND CONFER 

Contract negotiations for contract employees shall be the responsibility of the City Manager. The 
City Manager shall meet and confer with any duly recogniz~~F~mployee Association under the 
Meyer-Milias-Brown Act, on those matters which are sub' )'10 the "Meet and Confer" process 
specified under Section 3505 of the California Gover? <J.Code or as otherwise agreed to 
between the City of Rio Dell and any duly recognized ~tT;lployeeAssociation pursuant to the terms 
of any Memorandum of Understanding then in effect . 

3.23 NEPOTISM 
.. 

No person shall be hired in a temporary or perm~n.~mpositiQ[I.jn any dep~'rtme~t of the City who 
is the spouse of any other employeepf the City worj{in~jn~the department inwpich that person 
seeks to be employed. In addition, n~\R~r$on who isa·r~I.$.t1ve to a City employ~e shall be hired 
over any other applicant unless mosLq~ajifj~5t .' Documef1ta,tion of qualification comparison must 
be kept in recruitment folder for at leasf~he (1)}y;e,gf. . . 

, ~: _",i_ ", " ~" ,~." ./ 

Definitions of Relationships;, 
<;:~ :,;, , 

",;. 

Relative· An empIO~~~:~ pare~f.~tf3P-parentf~ppuse, don,e~lic partner, significant other, child 
(native, adopted or step}j~~ibling, or:gr:andparenC 

',-" y.",.' •.• ,/._~ " , 

B 'C>lIruu:.·c.U· ·w.~'.:al',n 

consulta 
partnership, 
interest, cOrYIn.c ... : 

-; :. ,: ; ,:- '. ;. ':~';--

hip -1J]~Jt!~~s:m~rriage'~911abitation, dating, or any other intimate 
.'. friend~S!p. 

",.~\ ,),' -

~·gt(.;'?l~ an e~ployee, independent contractor, compensated 
rrii1:.· ... >t"\cr, sHijr~tlOlder, or investor in an outside business, company, 

or ottlersJransaction where the Department employee's annual 
or obligation is greater than $250.00. 

Conflict of Interest ..... "<=>r,r<=>I1,,<=>n or potential conflict of interest in which it reasonably 
action, inaction, or decisions are or may be influenced by 

relationship. 
appears that a 
the employee's personal . 

Supervisor· An employee who has temporary or ongoing direct or indirect authority over the 
actions, decisions, evaluation, and/or performance of a subordinate employee. 

Subordinate· An employee who is subject to the temporary or ongoing direct or indirect authority 
of a supervisor. 

Restricted Duties and Assignments 

While the Department will not prohibit personal or business relationships between employees, the 
following reasonable restrictions shall apply (California Government Code §12940(a)): 

[24] 



(a) Employees are prohibited from directly supervising, occupying a position in the line of 
supervision or being directly supervised by any other employee who is a relative or with 
whom they are involved in a personal or business relationship. 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

1. If circumstances require that such a supervisor/subordinate relationship exists 
temporarily, the supervisor shall make every reasonable effort to defer matters 
involving the involved employee to an uninvolved supervisor. 

2. When personnel and circumstances permit, the Department will attempt to make 
every reasonable effort to avoid placing employees in such supervisor/subordinate 
situations. The Department however, reservesJI1~right to transfer or reassign any 
employee to another position within the sam~cl~,Ssification as it may deem 
necessary in order to avoid conflicts with any?prpvision of this policy. 

Employees are prohibited from participating in, contriputing to, or recommending 
promotions, assignments, performance ev~luation, transfer'S.pr other personnel decisions 
affecting an employee who is a relativ~~~fWith whom they af~.i.nvolved in a personal or 
business relationship. .... . . 

Whenever possible, FTOs and other trainerswilInotbeassigned to trair! relatives. FTOs 
and other trainers are prohibit~~from entering in~()ortnaintaining persdn~' or business 
relationships with any employeez~ft~y,are assigned to train until such time as the 
training has been successfully c()JnPl~t~dand the em~1Qyee is off probation. 

In order to avoid~.~~H~) .. ()r perceiv~d~o~flicts ()fintere~t:\m~rnbers of this department shall 
refrain from d~.¥.~lqplngiJ::~r maintainif'lQ personal ()f/inancial relationships with victims, 
witnesses or.()tti~r indivlati?ls during;th~.~qurse of.pr, as a direct result of any official 
contact. .• . . . . 

Exceeit>~~reqUir~d;·~r·)b~:·perf?"rn~nce of official duties or, in the case of immediate 
rel~tiX~~ji~rnpJF!~ees S~~I'~~6t deve!~~Rr majntain personal or financial relationships with 
al;lt!/irldividuals(§);whotij~y know" tif.reasonably should know are under criminal 
lf1¥~~tigation, cOr)VJ~~~d fe'Q.t;!~ •. parolees;)' fugitives, registered sex offenders, or who 
end~g~ in serious viae 'ons of~tate or federal laws. 

f/<,',A;"\- ' 

EmploY~~~!i~sponsibili 

Prior to entering:~~~~;'~~y per 
employee knows or rei:t;;) 
this policy, employees sha 

I or business relationship or other circumstance which the 
.5 uld know could create a conflict of interest or other violation of 
ptly notify his/her uninvolved, next highest level of supervisor. 

Whenever any employee is placed in circumstances which would require the employee to take 
enforcement action or provide other official information or services to any relative or other 
individuals(s) with whom the employee is involved in a personal or business relationship, the 
employee shall promptly notify his/her uninvolved, immediate supervisor. In the event that no 
uninvolved supervisor is immediately available, the employee shall promptly notify dispatch?? to 
have another uninvolved employee either relieve the involved employee or minimally remain 
present to witness the action. 

[25] 



Supervisor/Department Head Responsibility 

Upon being notified or becoming aware of any circumstances(s) which could result in or constitute 
an actual or potential violation of this policy, a SupervisorlDepartment Head shall take all 
reasonable steps to mitigate or avoid such violations whenever possible. Supervisors/Department 
Heads shall also promptly notify the City Manager of such actual or potential violations through 
the chain of command lines of authority. 

3.24 NO-CONFLICT WITH COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS CLAUSE 

Any applicable Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entered into between the City and any 
employee or employee organization shall have control overm;~§e rules and regulations where 
these rules and regulations are silent or inconsistent. Th~~~!fUles and regulations shall control 
where Memoranda of Understanding are otherwise silent. ... , " 

3.25 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

You may hold an outside job as long as you c~nsatisfactorily perforffl"¥9ur job at the City of Rio 
Dell and the job does not interfere with the City's,s(;heduling demands. .., 

We hold all employees to the s8rTle performan<~~. stc:m~~rds and schedfjli{lg expectations 
regardless if they have other jobs. Irr't ' ~rto remain 911lpl9yed at the City of RidDell, we will ask 
you to terminate an outside job if we' ..... mi.gethat it is img~~ting your performance or your ability 
to meet our requirements, which may c~a.nge·O¥eJ time. ", 

~/~ ''; -, , ' s' '/ ~, 

You may not have an 04 .. 
may not get paid or g~ 
for something you pr . 

. b that isa'90nflict ofil1t~rest wit~'1Pe City of Rio Dell. Also, you 
'n return from a p:e~9n()~tside tRe City of Rio Dell in exchange 

or a sejyice you prqviq~~s partofyhur City job. 

3.26 PERFORMANri~~~NALU~~i~NS 
We enco. 
day-to- ...... . 

for any Ii 
job respon 

'ifY<:>i.lJ~~{.your~~~~rvisor ·to.djs~uss.job performance and goals on an informal, 
sis. ForM~~D~rform~~i¥:~evaluation~,are done at the end of your introductory period 

·ob. The intr6... ory pe.Q~g is a time for you and your supervisor to talk about your 
'ties and the '?c\;prmai1~if:~quirements of the new job. In addition, you and your 

. "Ie formal pe;~" mance!~valuations to discuss your work and goals, to identify 
ses, and to .ourage and recognize your strengths. 

Performance evalua.~ .• ~;c~r y done every 12 months around the time of the anniversary of 
your original hire date d~;i§ ted in a specific employment agreement. Step increases in pay 
and/or benefits are depen ,on having received a satisfactory performance evaluation during 
the performance review immediately preceding the increase. 

We may give merit-based pay adjustments to some employees to recognize truly superior 
employee performance. These adjustments are based on a number of factors including the 
information documented by the formal performance evaluations. 

3.27 PERSONAL APPEARANCE 

Personal appearance means how you dress, how neat you are, and your personal cleanliness 
standards. Your personal appearance can influence what customers and visitors think about the 
City of Rio Dell. Personal appearance can also impact the morale of your co-workers. 

[26] 

30 



During business hours or whenever you represent the City of Rio Dell, you should be clean, well 
groomed, and wear appropriate clothes. This is particularly important if your job involves dealing 
in person with customers or visitors. 

If your Supervisor/Department Head finds that your personal appearance is inappropriate, you will 
be asked to leave work and return properly dressed and groomed. If you are asked to leave, you 
will not be paid for the time you are away from work. See your Supervisor/Department Head if you 
are not sure about the correct clothing standards for your job. 

Where necessary, the City of Rio Dell may make a reasonable accommodation to this policy for a 
person with a disability. 

3.28 PERSONNEL DATA CHANGES 

It is important that the City of Rio Dell have certainp~rsonal infd~~tion about you in our records. 
You need to tell us as soon as there is a chan{;)~~tb your mailing:'a;d(jress, telephone numbers, 
marital status, dependents' information, educgti~#al accomplishments; and other possibly related 
information. We also need to have information ~J1()ut who to contact in ca$~pf an emergency. To 
change your personal information or if you have questions about what information is required, 
contact the Human Resources Department. . . . . ..' .. 

3.29 PERSONNEL FILES 

The City of Rio Dell has an official petsonnel'fil~<.f9r each~~JT1ployee. These personnel files 
include confidential info~'?:l~liq~.>~bout appli~~nts anct:emp.!pyees.,e.1I requests for information on 
prospective, current o,pi/f~liheferriR!oyees snQldd be~irecte9itpthe City Manager. This system is 
maintained for the pr<it~ption ofetilployees a~qt~rcompliafitt~with laws pertaining to personal 
privacy. . "'/ . " 

3.30 

The city'~i~~OD~II~:;'~~Rf9b~~;i8~~l'¥ periO~fbrf'l.ew employees. During the probationary period, 
we will ev' ate your wor~·,·.Opbits 'a.l1P abilities to make sure that you can perform your job 
satisfactoril~ e probationa(j1(period alsp gives you time to decide if the new job meets your 
expectations. 

_~7!{<[~ ,T'J,'?1"': 

If you are absent for a ~1~OC1fj';)~mount of time during your probationary period, the length of the 
absence will automatically"'e" nd the probationary period. We may also extend the probationary 
period if we decide it was not long enough to evaluate your performance. This could happen 
either during or at the end of the probationary period. 

When employees satisfactorily complete the probationary period, they are assigned to the 
"regular" employment classification. 

During the probationary period, new employees are eligible for those benefits that are required by 
law, such as Social Security and Workers' Compensation Insurance. They may also be eligible for 
other City benefit programs, subject to the terms and conditions of each benefit program. Be sure 
to review the information for each benefit program to see the exact requirements. 

[27] 

31 



Resignation means that you voluntarily terminate your employment at the City of Rio Dell. If you 
decide to resign, we would like you to tell us in writing at least two (2) weeks before the date you 
will leave. Although advance notice is not required, you will be helping your co-workers because 
there will be more time to reassign work and replace you if necessary. 

3.31 RESIDENCY 

Persons accepting full-time employment in the service of the City of Rio Dell in an on-call or 
emergency service position may be required to establish residency within ninety (90) days of the 
date of employment within thirty (30) minutes driving time of place of work when in the 
determination of the Department Head or City Manager such r~sponse time is warranted by the 
employee's duties. "Driving Time" assumes conformance witQJr~ffic laws and regulations. 

3.32 RETURN OF PROPERTY 

The City of Rio Dell may loan you property, materj<31~ or writtenil1fprmation to help you do your 
job. You are responsible for protecting and controlling any property we,tqan you. 

If you stop working at the City of Rio Dell,. you must return all CitY~Of Rio Dell property 
immediately. . 

If you do not return our property and.lMt'I~ .Iaw allows, W:~may take money from your regular or 
final paycheck to cover the cost. We m~yal§9)ake legalaclipn to get back our property. 

~:::, " , 

3.33 SPECIAL SALARY ADJUSTME'f'ims 

The City Manager, supj~~t'to pribr;!!pproval bytheGityCOl.locJl,may approve salary adjustment of 
employees to:' '.. . . 

A. Obt~in persons with m~f"k'~lysuperiorqualifications; 
B. g~t~~t.~~I~ry ineq:UiJi¢~t:' . /'" .. 
C, {ReC:ognize$'~tptandihg(:'QerformanGe. 

This acti~~~~,~st be dOC~~~Q~~db;fmng a Personnel Action Form with the payroll clerk. 
, -', 

3.34 SKILt9~RETENTION 
'~;t';:~f\'" . "ii" 

Each employee sha1J.~R~ respon" e for maintaining the knowledge, skills, abilities, and physical 
condition necessary tcri orm.t duties and responsibilities for which he or she is employed. 

,<" ~p,',':)'~;) 

3.35 TYPES OF APPOINZfM~NT 

Vacancies in a position may be filled by reinstatement, transfer, demotion, promotion, 
appointment from an appropriate list, by appointment under provisional authority, or by initial 
employment of new employees. 

3.36 VOLUNTARY DEMOTION 

An employee for personal reasons may request demotion to a position in a lower class. Such 
demotions may be permitted upon the approval of Department Head. 

[28] 



3.37 WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 

1. Procedures for Reporting Improper Government Actions 

A. The City of Rio Dell employees who become aware of improper governmental actions 
should first raise the concern with their direct Supervisor. Where the employee believes that that 
the improper governmental action involves his or her Supervisor, or their Supervisor's Supervisor, 
the employee may raise the issue directly with any Department Head, City Manager or City 
Council Member. 

B. Complaints shall be submitted in writing except as described in Section C. The written 
complaint should state the nature of the alleged violation(s), t~,~gate(s), the times(s), the place of 
each occurrence, and the name(s) of the person(s) charge,~t'~fth the violation(s) if possible. Any 
and all documentation available as evidence to demonst~t~ the alleged violation(s) may be 
submitted with the complaint. . 

C. Any complaints received verbally will be trCiflslated into a written complaint by the receiving 
party to ensure that it properly reflects the co nceT"f:1 s that have been raise~;L All anonymously 
received complaints shall be processed, however, due to the difficulty ofv~rifying and/or obtaining 
evidence, investigation may be difficult .... 

2. Complaints, Investig~lions, Review and Epforcement 

A. All allegations of improperg9vet.rjro~ntal actioIl~;. filed against non-management 
employees shall be forwarded to the goveming Dep9lrtment Hea~Jor preliminary inquiry, 
allegations filed against g~R~grnent HeadS:$hall ber~fe,rred to'tht:3City Manager, and allegations 
filed against the City Mp;fI~ge~'sli~!J be forwaJ"{ied tottr~.C:ityCpuncil. 

B. If there are nO~~~f,)OnablegfQundS to~~li~~e that a~iol~tion has occurred, the initial City 
Manager (or City CoundFlf:~;ppliC9~le)shall dismiss the complaint. A written determination notice 
stating the r~Ci~~pj.l1g for ti1e;'dj§Q1i~s~L:~.llbe genf:3f;ated and distributed to the complainant, the 
employee~~ttged;~jttt.a violati~n,' the City:M~f1ager,~I1d the City Council. 

confidenfi~j(i;;~ will beJ~~~j9, and the name cWthe complainant will not be revealed in the 
determinatioPl1otice. c./ '. 

C. If it is·il!lJiIl.ved thatC~4·.Violati~~~as inadvertent and was or is being satisfactorily 
corrected and cur~~i(the inquir1]*~nd investigation will be considered complete and closed. A 
written determinati .... ',. otice slilting the facts and findings related to the closure of the 
investigation shall be 9 t~~/~hd distributed to the complainant, the employee charged with a 
violation, the City Manage .iJNhe City Council. 

Any disciplinary action required as result of the violation per the City's personnel rules, 
ordinances, or collective bargaining agreements shall be enforced. However, disciplinary actions 
are considered confidential per the City's Discipline Policy and will not be detailed in the 
determination notice. 

Confidentiality will be upheld, and the name of the complainant will not be revealed in the 
determination notice. 

D. If it is determined after the initial inquiry that a more detailed investigation is necessary, the 
City Attorney will be solicited for recommendation of formal investigation procedures. In addition 

[29] 

33 



the complaint may be forwarded to outside authorities such as the City's external auditors, the 
Police, or other appropriate governing authorities. 

After referral and investigation procedures are determined, the complainant shall be notified in 
writing of the process to be completed. 

E. After the completion of investigation, a written determination notice stating the facts and 
findings related to the closure of the investigation shall be generated and distributed to the 
complainant, the employee charged with a violation, the City Manager, and the City Council. 

If it is determined that violations of the provisions of this policy have occurred, the employee will 
be subject to disciplinary action. In addition to any other penaltj.berein or otherwise provided by 
law, a violation shall be cause for suspension, discharg~f;~r::any other disciplinary action as 
deemed appropriate and consistent with the City's PE%r,~~ril~1 rules, ordinances, or collective 
bargaining agreements. However, disciplinary actions,,?i~"c()u~i(jered confidential per the City's 
personnel policies and will not be detailed in the det~r:n11r'ration ndti~~. 

Confidentiality will be upheld, and the name ofttl~.~g~Plainant Will~~tll~revealed in the 
determination notice. . . 

3. Protection Against Retaliatory Acttijj1~ 

The Council will not tolerate any fom,~~~ij~J:~ssment or;victi.~ization and will take appropriate 
action to protect those who file compla:lllti·f~~@~q(tfaith. Assi~~nce will be provided at the request 
of the complainant in order to minimize a:t7i¥\PotE3i1t~EttQifficultie~;FllJd every effort will be made to 
ensure confidentiality if at,sonably pr~~tical.fl1~;'CBlJncil willgrovide protection under this 
policy and pursuant to> .~·~.tate and f$gerall~W~;" . ,'. 

Any investigation intd~l~gations"gfi~Ptential i~~~~~6r governni~ntal actions will not influence or 
be influenced by any distllpJi.[lary o('f'~dundancy ~fQcedures already taking place concerning the 
employees inX9~~~9~ . . .. .) .... '.,. . .........• 

No acti~!i~fft:':;;k"Jti~nst ··~:::1Wa~;~~lIegation in good faith, reasonably 
believingijt:to be true, eveQi~fJhe a~~tion(s) is not subsequently confirmed by the investigation. 

:'.rnan Resources will maintain complete documentation of all 
~any corresponding documentation including the final 

Each year Human Resourc will produce an annual report for the City Council and the public. 
The report will not mention any employees, only the concerns raised, the number of such 
concerns, from which department they related to, and what the outcome was. 

Governing Authorities 

The following is a list of agencies responsible for enforcing federal, state, and local laws 
and investigating issues surrounding improper governmental actions: 

Rio Dell Police Department 
(707)-764-5642 

[30] 



Humboldt County Grand Jury 
(707)-476-2475 

District Attorney's Office 
(800)- 962-8261 

Fair Labor & Housing 
(800 )-884-1684 

3.38 USE OF CITY PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

A. Policy 
","u,"\ 

</;:~ ,'}, 

1. City property is to be used only for conducting City bY§i«~~sunless otherwise 
authorized by the City Manager. City property in~l!-ldes, but isnptlimited 
to: telephones, cell phones, desks, computer~c~1uding hardwa'rela,nd software), 
file cabinets, lockers, communications stored?/ ansmitted on City<~tqperty (such 
as e-mail and voice-mails), vehicles and arW()!~er City property used;6~ 
City employees in their work. Employees do nbt~pve a reg~pnable expec{qtion 
of privacy in City property or equipment. .. ... 

2. City property may be monitored art~~ear~red at any:li(c,: and for any reason. 
Messages sent or received on City 'pfu~JJtjncluding . ~phones may be saved 
and reviewed by others. As a result,y er11pl~~y~S haven(j~~xpectation of privacy 
in the messages sent or rec~ived on CitypropertY&r~quipmenf~ 

3. Every City empIOY~~I~;reqUi;reij~t9 adhere;tqql",~JtV~~'~~~iid' P~"iCies while on 
City property or uSing'Gity propet}y or equipm~pt. .. 

4. The CitYY1JB~(;!~You toe~~rccj~~:~t:\f:~'i~y:sing~~qlJJPment and property, perform 
requir .' 'jntEi~~Q;p{~~ follbw~noperati~~i\H§t~uct1q"s, safety standards, and 
gui , and to {us~it.?nly f~f~EiJ,Jthorizea:·p~~9ses. You should notify your 
Sup r if any equlp'm~flt, ma~J§es, tools or vehicles appear to be damaged, 
defectl . r in need of re6~ir~ Prdfu{~Veporting of damages, defects, and the 
need for "rs could preve:fl:tdeteri6f~tjpn of equipment and possible injury to 
employeesUthers.· 

,~fij:;:h-

5. The improper, c~f~~~, negli~~rt, destructive, or unsafe use or operation of equipment 
or vehicles, as well a~;~Y9i~~~le traffic and parking violations, can result in 
disciplinary action, up fO:'~fldincluding termination of employment. A valid 
California Driver's Licensgmust be in your possession while operating a vehicle 
off or on City property. 

6. City employees who are permitted to take City vehicles home overnight may use 
the vehicle for City business only. 

[31] 



SECTION 4: HEALTH AND SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES 
AND CITIZENS 

4.01 ANTI·DRUG AND DRUG TESTING POLICY 

The City of Rio Dell takes reasonable measures within our power to establish a drug-free 
workplace as required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act. The City prohibits and does not tolerate 
the possession or use of alcohol or illegal drugs at any time during the workday or anywhere 
within the City's facilities, properties, or in its vehicles. 

Employees are forbidden to sell or make other transactions if\V91ving illegal drugs during work or 
on City's facilities, properties, or in its vehicles. Any sal~j~~;jUegal drugs during work or on the 
City's premises, facilities, or in City vehicles will resultir'l4\~~jelinary action, up to and including 
discharge, for any violations reasonably believed to hav~peenc()mmitted. 

The City of Rio Dell prohibits the unlawful manuf(ig~f~, distribution,dl~f?ensation, and possession 
of drugs and alcohol on City's premises or while:,Co'nducting business Offiqty's premises. 

Employees are expected and required to report t&~<,>r.k on tim~and in an ~pt.1[9priate mental and 
physical condition for work. To do.~o, employeesnlu~t':J'lpt be under theifl!lfluence of any 
substance that affects their ability top~Jf,orm their job fuhGiiohS. 

Employees using drugs or other sup:stc:nl~~~,/. whether'Ul(~~al, over-the-counter, or by a 
prescription, that may influence the empfo~:f3e'sab!filYJo perfo~:.their job functions should inform 
their Supervisor as so~rl~~~·'~9~sible. S~9r empi6~~~,~re re~RQnsible for disclosing to their 
Supervisor the possibl~;~ideeff~cts of the drug on.WorRp~tf9rmance and the expected duration 
of its use. .' "" .' . . . 

, . . 

1. Testing of~RQljcant~for Employ~eht . -. .-

As part ?:i~t~~i€}itY'6f~~i9Dell'S~;~l}'IPIOymehtj~o(~enjng process, any applicant for a City position, 
to wholPrgc(:mditiona'I<0ft~rof ethRJqyment h~i~~~en made, must pass a pre-employment drug 
and alcoQ~J .. Jest under theiPJPcedul"~§pescribed below. The offer of employment is contingent 
upon a neg~ti~~ test result. ' .. '. . ..... . 

2. ~~~~ljJlg of Empl~Y'¢~S in Designated Safety-Sensitive Positions 

It is the belief Of~~~;\{$ity thaJj4~e use of drugs or alcohol, or being under the influence, by 
employees in safety-se~~iti)~~i;pp~itions jeopardizes the welfare and safety of our employees, 
visitors, and the public. Ei;rI~leyees in safety-sensitive positions may be required to submit to 
annual drug testing, under;the procedures described below. The City Manager or his/her 
designee will schedule the testing. Safety-sensitive positions include the following: 

• Any employee who operates a City vehicle on a regular routine basis as part of their 
normal work activities; 

• Any employee who has a Class A or B driver's license as required by the City; 
• Any employee who operates City hea~ equipment. (i.e. backhoe, dump truck); 
• Department Directors and Supervisors. 

If an employee refuses to cooperate with the administration of a drug test, the refusal will be 
handled in the same manner as a positive result. 

[32] 



Violators of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, for any 
violation reasonably believed to have been committed. Violators of this policy also may be subject 
to arrest and/or prosecution by law enforcement authorities. 

If you know of possession or use of alcohol or illegal drugs by employees, you are encouraged to 
discuss your question, problem, complaint, or report with the Department Head. 

If you feel uncomfortable doing so or if your SupervisorlDepartment Head is the source of the 
problem, condones the problem, or ignores the problem, please refer to the City's Whistleblower 
Policy. 

You are not required to directly confront the person who istt)~!~~'urce of your report, question, or 
complaint before notifying any of those individuals listed:~~~~~heless! you are required to make 
a reasonable effort to make the possession and/or use of:alccibolor illegal drugs by an employee 
known should the situation exist. . . 

';:<'/ 

3. Testing of Employees Who Reg!da.t;'IYOperate vehiCI~~~~{Meavy 
Equipment Reasonably Suspectedto be Under the Influe'TlAA;9f Drugs 
and/or Alcohol. . .... . 

If an employee who regularly operat~\yehicles or he~V\t~gtJipment (Le. backhoEi, dump truck) is 
reasonably suspected to be under th~tjnfl.u~f'lpe of drugs~~P!or alcohol during work hours he/she 
shall be required to submit to an imme~1Ci!teqtl;l~and/or alco~pl test to determine if the employee 
has used drugs and/or alcohol during wor~houfs.· .. 

Reasonable suspicion qij#'brtlyb~initiallydetermin~~;l5y;'tI:l~ City~anager and/or a Department 
Head if the one of the:,f~'ijtbrs beloW-i$ apparel'll:: '0 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

/':::/;<'/,,/, -";t'<,' '<:'/': ,> 

Observable phe~~mena,§~¢:b as direct/~bservation of drug and/or alcohol use, or 
poss ~~~f,l,.\gr the pny~igfti(~»Q;JJi~tQmS of be!ng. under the influence of a drug; 
A~rtit~~.J')prmal C()Q~,,~ct or etr~t!~~~ehaVlbr; 

or convi '. 'Jor a dr;qgrelateddff~:llse, or the identification of an employee as the 
f a criminaPiUM~stigiiti~9;jnto illegaldrug possession, use or trafficking ("trafficking" 
so mean "dislti,~~tion"};:;~~; 
. provided)~jther by0.reliable and credible sources or independently 

. orNe"~ 0 

it;t~ emplo¥~~ had tampered with a previous drug test. 

If the City Manager an!ar~~ •• Q~J~~~rnent Head determine that there is a reasonable suspicion that 
an employee who regularlyj"§~erate vehicles or heavy equipment (Le. backhoe, dump truck) is 
under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol during work hours the City Manager and/or 
Department Head shall immediately contact law enforcement to make an independent 
assessment that a reasonable suspicion exists. 

If the law enforcement officer makes the assessment that a reasonable suspicion exists that an 
employee who regularly operate vehicles or heavy equipment (Le. backhoe, dump truck) is under 
the influence of drugs and/or alcohol during work hours, that employee shall submit to an 
immediate drug and/or alcohol test by an independent agency. 

If an employee refuses to cooperate with the administration of a drug test, the refusal will be 
handled in the same manner as a positive result. 

[33] 

37 



Violators of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, for any 
violation reasonably believed to have been committed. Violators of this policy also may be subject 
to arrest and/or prosecution by law enforcement authorities. 

4. Workplace Injuries. 

Employees with work related injuries will be asked to submit to post-injury drug testing within 24 
hours. 

4.02 CARELESSNESS POLICY 

• bits,Y()f;hlds, anddB~snottolerate weapons at the City's facility, on the 
organ anyEiv~nt spons6re~by the City. 

necessary 
inches, expl 
another individ 

",-" " 

visible a'~~h~onceal~q}weapons, including those for which the owner has 
Weapons:t~~n inclutI~c firearms, knives with a blade longer than three (3) 

rials or a:~yother object that could be used to harass, intimidate, or injure 
, m~o1;iger, supervisor or department head. 

Positions that by their:ct~:.<~ltbn are required to carry weapons or equipment defined as a 
weapon by City policy area,. {'ded from discipline. 

Violators of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, for any 
violation reasonably believed to have been committed. 

If you know of any employee possessing a weapon, you are encouraged to discuss your question, 
problem, complaint, or reports with your Supervisor/Department Head. If you feel uncomfortable 
doing so or if your Supervisor/Department Head is the source of the problem, condones the 
problem, or ignores the problem, report to the City Manager. 

[34] 



You are not required to directly confront the person who is the source of your report, question, or 
complaint before notifying any of those individuals listed. Nevertheless, you are required to make 
a reasonable effort to make violence and threats of violence known should they exist. 

4.04 EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY 

The City of Rio Dell is committed to providing a healthy and safe work environment. The City 
wants each employee to recognize his/her responsibilities to safe employment and requires that 
each employee live up to these responsibilities. 

If you observe conduct that creates an unsafe workplace, you must report the conduct to your 
Department Head immediately. If you feel uncomfortable doing so or if your 
Supervisor/Department Head is the source of the problem,condones the problem, or ignores the 
problem, report to the City Manager. 

You are not required to directly confront the personVllho is the so~rce of your report, question, or 
complaint before notifying any of those individual§listed. Nevertheless, you are required to make 
a reasonable effort to make unsafe conditions known should they exist 

4.05 VIOLENCE/THREATS OF VIOLENCE 

The City of Rio Dell prohibits and doesnot tolerate violent acts within its facility, on its property, or 
while conducting City business. 

Acts of violence, threats, or threatening behavior. against employees, visitors, guests or other 
individuals by anyone on City property will not be tolerated. This includes, but is not limited to, 
intimidation, harassment,assault, battery, stalking,orconduct that causes a person to believe 
that he or she is und$r a threat of death or serious bodily injqry. All threats of violence will be 
viewed with the assumptions that they will be carried out. 

Violators of this policy are subjecft() disciplinary aCtion, up to and including discharge, for any 
violation reasonably believed to have been committed. Violations of this policy may also result in 
arrest ang/or prosecution. Immediate threats should be reported to security and the Supervisor of 
the area ofoccurrence. 

If you know ofa violent act or behavior, you must report the act or behavior to the Department 
Head. If you feeltmcomfortabledoing so or if your Supervisor is the source of the problem, 
condones the problem, or ignoresthe problem, refer to the Whistleblower Policy. 

You are not required to directly confront the person who is the source of your report, question, or 
complaint before notifying anyof those individuals listed. Nevertheless, you are required to make 
a reasonable effort to make violence and threats of violence known should they exist. 

[35] 



SECTION 5: BENEFITS AND LEAVE 

5.01 ADMINISTRATIVE PAY CORRECTIONS 

The City of Rio Dell tries to make sure that you are paid correctly and on scheduled paydays. In 
case you find a mistake in your pay, tell the Payroll Department immediately so that the error can 
be corrected as quickly as possible. Any overpayment to an employee may be adjusted from 
future compensation, where permitted by law. 

5.02 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

The City of Rio Dell provides bereavement leave to employees Who need to take time off because 
an immediate family member has died. To ask for bereavement leave, see your Department 
Head. 

Regular full-time employees are eligible for up to fiye(5) days of bereavement leave with pay. 

While you are on a paid bereavement leave, youwill get your base pay rate but you will not get 
any special forms of pay, such as incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shiftdifferentials. 

We normally will give you bereavement/eave unless there are business reasons that require you 
to be at work. With your Department Head's approval, you can use any available paid leave 
benefits you have, such as vacation, if you need more timegft 

For bereavement leave, "immediate family" means your spouse; parent, child, brother, or sister; 
your spouse's parent, child, brother, or sister; youfCI1i1d's spouse; your grandparent or your 
grandchild. 

5.03 COMPENSATORYTIME OFF POLICY 

A. A non-exempt employee may opt to accrue compensatory time-off (CTO) in lieu of cash 
payment f6l"Overtime·worked if his or her$upervisor agrees prior to overtime work being 
performed. 

B. CTO accrues at the rate of 1.5 hours for each hour worked over 40 hours of actual work in the 
employee's workweek. CTO cannot beaccumulated in excess of the number of hours allowed 
under the empI6y~e's Memorandum of Understanding or written Employment Agreement at any 
given time. 

C. The City will grant an e{l1ployees' request to use accumulated CTO provided that: (1) the 
department can accommodate the use of CTO on the day requested without undue disruption; 
and (2) the employee makes the request in writing to the Supervisor no later than five (5) days 
prior to the date requested. If the employee does not provide five (5) days' notice, or if the 
department cannot accommodate the time off, the City will provide the employee the opportunity 
to cash out the CTO requested at the end of the current pay period. 

D. The City reserves the right to cash out accumulated CTO at any time. 

E. During employment, CTO is cashed out at the employee's current FLSA regular rate of pay 
(including all FLSA-applicable salary differentials). Employees separating from City service shall 
be compensated for all accrued, unused compensatory hours at the current FLSA regular rate of 
pay, or the average regular rate for the prior three years, whichever is higher. 

[36] 

4D 



5.04 EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE 

The City of Rio Dell may provide educational assistance to encourage employees to maintain and 
improve their job-related skills through formal education. 

Regular full-time employees are eligible for educational assistance. 

There is no waiting period once you are in an eligible classification. When you start getting 
educational assistance, you must continue to be an active employee and perform your job 
satisfactorily to stay in the program. 

Not every course is eligible for the educational assistance. TO be eligible, a course or a group of 
courses that are part of a degree, licensing, or certification program must be related to your 
current job duties or to a position you might have at the City of Rio Dell in the foreseeable future. 
The City of Rio Dell will make the final decision about Whether a course or program is eligible for 
educational assistance and is related to your current job or a future one. If you have questions 
about educational assistance, contact the City Manager for more information. 

We hope that educational assistance will develop your skills but we do notpromise or guarantee 
that more education will result in promotions, newJqbassignments, or pay increases. 

5.05 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The City of Rio Dell gives eligible employees many benefits.?ome benefits are required by law 
and cover all employees. The legally required benefits inclpde Social Security, Workers' 
Compensation, state disapility, and unemployment insurance. 

There are several factors that decide if you are eligible for benefits. One important factor is your 
employment classification. See you:rDepartmentHead to find out which benefits you are eligible 
fu~ . 

The following benefit programsareavailable to eligible employees: 

* Holidays 
* Vacc3tibn 
* Sick LeaveBenefits 
* Health Insurance 
* Vision/DentahOare Insurahce 

You may have to pay partor all of the cost for some benefits. 

5.06 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE (FLMA) 
Because of the constantly changing laws in regards to FLMA, if you feel that you need to apply for 
FLMA, please contact your Supervisor/Department Head. They will in turn help you understand 
the current law. 

5.07 HEALTH INSURANCE 

Our health insurance plan offers medical, dental, and vision care benefits to eligible employees 
and their dependents. All regular full-time employees are eligible for certain benefits. 

[37] 

LI/ 



If you have questions about our health insurance plan, contact the Finance Director for more 
information. 

5.08 HOLIDAYS 

The City of Rio Dell gives time off to all employees on the following holidays: 

• New Year's Day (January 1) 
e Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (third Monday in January) 
• Presidents' Day (third Monday in February) 
• Memorial Day (last Monday in May) 
• Independence Day(July 4) 
• Labor Day (first Monday in September) 
• Veterans' Day (November 11) 
• Thanksgiving (fourth Thursday in November) 
• Day after Thanksgiving 
• Christmas (December 25) 
• The day before Christmas or the day after Christmas as requested 30 days in advance 

by a majority of the employees or as designated by the CityCouncil if no request is 
made. 

• All other days as may be proclaimed by the president of the United States or Governor 
of the State, when approved by the City Council. 

Eligible employees will be paid for holiday time off. If you ar~eligible, your holiday pay will be 
calculated at your straight-tirne pay rate as of that holiday multiplied by the number of hours you 
would normally have worked that day. 

If a recognized holidayJalls on a Saturday, the City of Rio Dellwill observe it on the Friday before 
the holiday. If a recognized holiday falls on a Sunday, the City of Rio Dell will observe it on the 
Monday after the holiday. 

If you ar~eligible forpai<:jholidaysand a holidayoccurs during the time of your vacation, you will 
be paidhqUday pay not vacation pay. 

If eligible n(m,..~xempt employees work on a recognized holiday, they will receive holiday pay plus 
their wages at on~. and one-half times their straight-time rate for the hours they worked on the 
holiday. 

In addition to the recog.pizedhqlidays previously listed, eligible employees (non-exempt) will 
receive one (1) floating holidayin each anniversary year. To be eligible for floating holidays, you 
must complete one (1) year<of service as a regular full time employee. To use a floating holiday, 
you should first ask for advance approval from your Supervisor. 

5.09 JURY DUTY 

The City of Rio Dell encourages you to fulfill your civic responsibilities by serving jury duty if you 
get a summons. Employees in an eligible classification may request up to two (2) weeks of paid 
jury duty leave over any two (2) year period. Employee must endorse to the City any checks or 
warrants received in payment for jury duty exclusive of mileage for personal vehicle or other Qut
of-pocket expenses incurred due to jury duty. Upon being excused from jury duty, if four (4) or 
more hours are left in the employee's workday, the employee shall report back to work. 

[38] 



Regular full-time employees are eligible for jury duty. A full-time employee will be paid at their 
base rate of pay for the number of hours you would normally have worked that day. 

If you stay on jury duty longer than paid jury duty allows, you may use any available paid time off 
benefits you have, such as vacation, to be paid for the unpaid jury duty leave. 

If you get a jury duty summons, show it to your Supervisor/Department Head as soon as possible. 
This will help us plan for your possible absence from work. We expect you to come to work 
whenever the court schedule permits. 

Either you or the City may ask the court to excuse you fromjpryduty if necessary. We may ask 
that you be relieved from going on jury duty if we think that your absence would cause serious 
operational problems for the City of Rio Dell. 

Subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of the applicable plans, the City of Rio Dell will 
continue to provide health insurance benefits for the full period of unpaid jury duty leave. Your 
vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits will continue to accrue during unpaid jury duty leave. 

5.10 LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

A. Department Heads may grant a permanent or probationary employee leave of absence 
without pay. No leave of absence shaUbe granted except upon written request of the employee 
setting forth the reasons for the request, and the approvaJ,ifgranted, will be in writing. The 
convenience of the City of Rio Dell shall be a primary consideration in deciding whether or not to 
grant a leave of absence. 

The City Manager may determine that an employee's anniversary date, for purpose of merit pay 
increase, vacation accrual. or sick leave accrual. may change if leaves of absence taken by the 
employee exceed ten (10Jworking days in any one year. 

Upon expiratipnofanapprovedleave of absence, the employee shall be returned to the same 
position held at the timeleave was granted. Failure on the part of an employee to report promptly 
at the expiration of such leave may be just cause for disciplinary action, including, but not limited 
to, discharge, 

After an investigatiqn instituted upon his/her own motion or upon complaint, the City Manager may 
deny or revoke suchleave of absence upon determination that it was for the purpose of accepting 
other employment; enabling the employment of a temporary employee in the same position; 
improper influence; or fo'tanyother purpose contrary to the good of the City of Rio Dell; and 
appropriate disciplinary action may be instituted. 

B. An employee who is absent from duty for any reason shall report the reason thereof to 
his/her Department Head or an employee of the City immediately on the day of absence or 
before, if possible. 

C. All unauthorized and unreported absences shall be considered as absence without leave 
and a deduction of pay shall be made for each period of such absence. Voluntary absence 
without leave for five (5) consecutive working days shall be considered as an automatic 
resignation from City service, any shorter period of voluntary absence may also be cause of 
employment termination. 

[39] 



5.11 OVERTIME POLICY 

Overtime-eligible employees are not permitted to work overtime except as the Department Head 
authorizes or directs. Overtime-eligible employees directed to work overtime must do so. 
Working overtime without advance approval is grounds for discipline. 

Unless otherwise stated in a Memorandum of Understanding, "overtime" is all hours an overtime
eligible employee actually works over 40 in his or her work week. Overtime is compensated at 1.5 
times the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) regular rate of pay. Only actual hours worked will be 
counted toward the 40-hour threshold for purposes of calculating FLSA overtime pay. No 
overtime shall be recorded or reported for less than 15 minutes of work. 

5.12 PAYDAYS 

The pay periods at the City of Rio Dell run from Saturdaythrollgh a 14 day period and end on the 
following Friday. Time sheets are due in the City Hall office on Monday following the end of the 
pay period by 9 a.m. Paydays are every other Friday. All employees are paid by check or direct 
deposit on the above-mentioned payday. 

5.13 SICK LEAVE 

Sick leave with pay shall be granted by th~ City at a rate of3.69 hours per payroll period. Payroll 
is every two weeks. Temporary or intermittent employees or employees who work part-time shall 
not be entitled to sick leave. 

An employee shall be allowed to use one half of their yearly accrual of sick leave for the illness or 
injury of a parent, child, spouse, or domestic partner. (Labor Code Sections 233 and 234) 

Sick leave shall not b~.consider~d as a privilege which an employee may use at his/her 
discretion, but shall be aUbvved in.cases of necessity or actual sickness or disability. Sick leave 
may be used'\Nith prior Supervisor's approvaL for dental, eye, and doctor appointments. 
Employees way accumulate earned sick leave hours without limitations as to maximum number of 
sick hOHrsJlccumulated ...• ~9Iidays09curring durins;lthe first thirty (30) days of sick leave shall not 
be taken as days of sick le.~ve. For!he purposes of computing sick leave, each employee shall 
be considered.to work nofrl1ore than five (5) days each week, and the minimum sick leave 
chargeable inhol,Jrly increments. 

Sick leave credit shallcontinue lQ8ccrue while an employee is on sick leave in excess of thirty 
(30) days or on worker'sc;:ompensation leave. 

In order to receive compen~i3tion while absent on sick leave, the employee shall notify his/her 
Department Head or any employee of the City Clerk's Department prior to or within one (1) 
working hour after the time set for beginning his/her daily duties or as may be otherwise specified 
by the employee's Department Head. The City Manager or the employee's Department Head 
may, if he/she deems it necessary, require of the employee a doctor's certificate of fitness to 
return to employment and fitness to perform the regular duties of the employee from any 
employee who has taken three (3) or more consecutive days of sick leave or six (6) or more days 
during a thirty (30) day period. The Department Head shall not make unreasonable demands for 
such certification. The Department Head shall revoke pay and sick leave time if the employee 
has engaged in private or public work while on such leave. Misuse of sick leave privileges is 
grounds for disciplinary action. 

[40] 



If an employee has not recovered by the time his/her accumulated sick leave is exhausted, he/she 
may utilize accrued vacation; or a leave of absence without pay may be granted if requested by 
the employee in accordance with this Employee Handbook .. 

5.14 TIMEKEEPING 

Non-exempt employees are responsible for accurately recording the hours they work. The law 
requires the City of Rio Dell to keep accurate records of "time worked" in order to correctly 
calculate employee pay and benefits. "Time worked" means all the time that non-exempt 
employees spend performing their aSSigned work. 

If you are a non-exempt employee, you must accurately record the time you start and stop work, 
when you start and end any meal periods or split shifts, andwhen you leave the workplace for 
personal reasons. Before you work any overtime, you muslalw9Ys get advance approval. 

Falsifying time records is a serious matter. You may not change time after it is already recorded, 
enter a false time on purpose, tamper with time r~cords, or record oth~r employees' time for them. 
If you do any of these actions, you may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. 

Non-exempt employees must sign their time records to say they are accurate. Each 
SupervisorlDepartment Head will revieVVand initial the time record before submitting it for payroll 
processing. In addition, if correctionspfchanges are made to the time record, both you and your 
SupervisorlDepartment Head must initialthe changes on the time record. 

5.15 VACATION BENEFITS 

The City of Rio Dell offers vacatiorrtime off with pay to regularfull-time employees who have been 
employed with the City ·for one year. If an employee asks for time off before their one year 
anniversary, the City Manager will make the decision as to whether it will be granted with or 
without pay. 

You maYrGcrue your vac<:ilion upJo a maximum of 120 hours. After that time you will only be 
able to a9crue additional vacation time after utilizing some portion of the previously accrued 
maximum of120 hours. The.smallest amount of vacation time you may use at once is in one (1) 
hour increments: 

5.16 WORKPLACE INJURIES 

Upon injury notify your SU8~rvisotlDepartment Head IMMEDIATELY. Employees with work
related injuries will be askedtosubmit to post-injury drug testing within 24 hrs. 

The City of Rio Dell provides a comprehensive Workers' Compensation Insurance Program to our 
employees. This program does not cost you anything. 

The Workers' Compensation Program covers injuries or illnesses that might happen during the 
course of your employment that require medical, surgical, or hospital treatment. Subject to legal 
requirements, Workers' Compensation Insurance begins after a short waiting period, or if you are 
hospitalized, the benefits begin immediately. 

It is very important that you tell your SupervisorlDepartment Head immediately about any work
related injury or illness, regardless of how minor it might seem at the time. Prompt reporting helps 

[41 ] 

1../5 



to make sure that you qualify for coverage as quickly as possible and let us investigate the matter 
promptly. 

Workers' Compensation covers only work-related injuries and illnesses. Neither the City of Rio 
Dell nor its insurance carrier will pay Workers' Compensation benefits for injuries that might 
happen if you voluntarily participate in an off-duty recreational, social, or athletic activity that we 
might sponsor. 

[42] 



TERMS AND DEFINITIONS 

As used in this handbook, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated. 

ADVANCEMENT: A salary increase within the limits of a pay range. 

ANNIVERSARY DATE: Established for the purpose of calculating vacation and sick leave 
accrual, and shall be twelve (12) months from the first day of permanent employment and 
annually thereafter. 

ANNOUNCEMENT: All examinations for employment by the City shall be publicized by posting 
announcements in the City Hall, on official bulletin boards, and by such other methods as the City 
Manager deems appropriate. 

APPLICATION FORMS: Applications shall be made as prescribed on the examination 
announcement Application forms shall require information covering training, experience, and 
other pertinent information, and may include certificates of one or more examining physicians' 
references and fingerprinting. All applications must be signed by the personapplying. 

APPOI NTMENT: After interview andinvestigation, the Departrnent Head may mgke appointments 
from among those qualified candidates under consideration. If the applicant accepts the 
appointment and presents himself for dutywithin such period of time as the City Manger shall 
prescribe, he shall be deemed to be appointed; otherwise, he shall be deemed to have declined 
the appointment 

BARGAINING UNIT: A group of employees represented by a labor union or employees' 
association engaged in bargainin9 W;ith the City. 

CLASS: All positions grouped und~ra common title. 

CLOSEDEXAMINATION: AnexCitnination fqfg particular class which is open only to employees 
meeting the qualificationsf{)[ the cla~s who have permanent status. 

DEMOTION; The movemenlof an employee to a lower rate of payor a lower level of 
responsibility. 

DEPARTMENT HEAD: Means th!,?City Manager, Chief of Police, Public Works Director, Finance 
Director, City Clerk anOc,;ommljnity Development Director. 

DISQUALIFICATION: The.qepartment Head may reject any application which indicates on its 
face that the application does not possess the minimum qualifications required for the position. 

EMPLOYMENT LIST: An open employment list is a list of names of persons who have taken an 
open-competitive examination and have qualified. 

EXCEPTION: The following employees shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council, in 
accordance with State Law and City Ordinance, unless this provision is contrary to a 
Memorandum of Understanding entered into between the City of Rio Dell and such employee: . 

[43] 



1) City Manager 
2) Management and Confidential employees as defined under the Meyer

Milias-8rown Act, as from time to time amended. 

LAY-OFF: The separation of employees from the active work force due to lack of work or funds, 
or to the abolition of positions by the City Manager due to organizational changes 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: An agreement between the City of Rio Dell and any 
duly recognized employee association concerning the terms and conditions of employment. 

MEET AND CONFER: Contract negotiations for contract employees. The City Manager shall 
meet and confer with any duly recognized employee association under the Meyer-Milias-Brown 
Act, on those matters which are subject to the "Meet and Confer" process specified under Section 
3505 of the California Government Code or as otherwise agreed to between the City of Rio Dell 
and any duly recognized employee association pursuant tothe terms of any Memorandum of 
Understanding then in effect. 

PART-TIME EMPLOYEE: An employee who normally works no more than thirty (30) hours per 
week. 

PERSONNEL OFFICER: City Manager 

PROBATIONARY PERIOD: A working test period during which an employee is required to 
demonstrate his/her fitness for the position to Which he/she iSqPPointed by actual performance of 
the duties of the position. Ordinarily ona(1) year~ 

PROMOTION: The movemenfofan employee to a higherrate of payor responsibility. 

PROVISIONAL ITEMPOfRARY APPpNTMENt:>A provisional appointment may be made by the 
Department Head of a per§9n meeting the minimum training and experience qualifications for the 
position. Suchan appointrnent maybernade during the period of suspension or relief from duty 
of an employee or pending final actionort proceedings involving suspension, demotion or 
dischargeptan employee. 

RELIEF FROM DUTY: The temporary separation from service of an employee. 

RULES OF CONSTRUCTION: Any applicable Memorandum of Understanding entered into 
between the City and any employee or employee organization shall control over these Rules and 
Regulations where these Rulesclnd Regulations are silent or inconsistent. These Rules and 
Regulations shall control where Memoranda of Understanding are otherwise silent. 

SELECTION METHODS: In making a selection from among applicants for employment, use may 
be made of written, oral, or performance tests, evaluations of training and experience, and any 
combination of these, or any other forms or methods of evaluation which will determine fairly and 
thoroughly the qualifications of applicants. Investigations of the character, personality, education, 
experience, and physical and mental fitness may also be made as deemed appropriate. 

SENIORITY: Seniority shall be defined as the employee's length of continuous uninterrupted 
service with the City since his/her date of hire. 

SUSPENSION: The temporary separation from service of an employee for disciplinary purposes. 

[44] 



TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE: An employee hired on a temporary basis to fill a position temporarily 
vacated or to fill a position temporarily required. 

TRANSFER: A change of an employee from one position to another position. 

TUITION REIMBRUSEMENT: Training which will be beneficial to the City may be approved by 
the Department Head for tuition reimbursement, provided the operating budget of the City 
includes funds set aside for such expenses. 

VACANCY IN CITY SERVICE: If a vacancy in the City service is to be filled, and there is no re
employment list available for the class, the City Manager shall have the right to decide whether to 
fill the vacancy by reinstatement, transfer, demotion, appointm~nt from a promotion employment 
list, appointment from an open employment list or by undertaking such other means of recruitment 
as he or she deems necessary. 

VIOLATION OF RULES: Violation of the provisions of these rules shall be grounds for 
disciplinary action including suspension, demotion,or discharge. 

[45] 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Honorable Rio Dell City Council 

Ron Henrickson, City Manager ~ 

May 29,2012 

Consideration of Employment Agreements, Rio Dell 
Employees' Association and Rio Dell Peace Officers 
Association MOU's 

ATTACHMENTS: Employment Agreements and Associations Memorandum of 
Understandings 

Council Action: 

A. By motion receive and file the Employee Agreements and Memorandum 
of Understandings (MOU's) for the Peace Officers Association and 
Employees' Association and place them on the Council June 5, 2012 
meeting agenda for approval. 

B. Take no action. 

Background: 

All the Employee Agreements and Association MOU's will expire on June 30, 
2012. Employee Agreements include the positions of Chief of Police, Finance 
Director, City Clerk, Community Development Director, Water and Roads 
Superintendent and Wastewater Superintendent. The proposed Employment 
Agreements and MOU's were negotiated with staff and Association representatives 

50 



and cover a two year period from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2014. They have also 
been reviewed by the City Attorney. 

The existing Agreements were negotiated after completion of a salary survey by 
CPS in 2010 which found that most staff salaries were far below the median for 
equivalent positions in the market area. At that time the Council established the 
goal of compensation at the median salary range. However, due to financial 
constraints for the most part salaries were set at 85% of the median. The purpose of 
establishing a goal of median wage is threefold: 1. To establish salary schedules 
that enable the City to retain good staff, 2. To establish salary schedules that enable 
the City to hire experienced and competent staff if vacancies do occur, and 3. To 
avoid the significant cost to recruit and train new staff that occurs with constant 
turnover. It should be noted the City has been successful in retaining management 
staff over the prior two year period. 

The Council also set a goal of developing future budgets based on sustainability. 
To accomplish this objective positions were eliminated from prior budgets and will 
again be incorporated into the upcoming 2012-13 budget. 

One of the major factors impacting the City'S ability to sustain staffing levels is 
whether the City receives revenue in the form of a grant for Citizens Option for 
Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding or 
(COPS/SLESF). This funding is provided by the State but is contingent upon 
legislative approval. 

The proposed Agreements and MOU's are structured to begin to close the gap 
between 85% of median wage and the target of 100% of median wage in addition 
to providing a minimum cost of living increase. In general, wage increases the first 
year oftheUAgreemenls are set at 2% with an additionalT% only if the City 
receives at least $60,000 in COPS/SLESF funding for the fiscal year. This amount 
more than offsets the additional 1 '% increase. 

In the second year.ofthe proposed Agreements and MOU's incorporates an 
identical salary schedule increase of two percent plus one percent, again contingent 
upon COPS/SLESF funding. In addition, staff is only eligible for an increase if 
they receive a·satisfactory performance review and the increase is approved by the 
City Manager. Thus the proposed salary increase over two years could range from 
4% to 6%, partially closing the 15% gap in target salary levels. 

5L 



Financial Impact: 

The 2012-13 budget will incorporate the salary increases and total expenses will be 
well within projected revenue. The City will not need to use reserve funds as it has 
done in past years. The 2012-13 budget projects that revenues will exceed 
expenditures by $192,273. It is proposed that these monies be used to fhnd the 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) which will be presented to the Council in 
June or July. 

City Manger Recommendation: 

The City Manger recommends the Council receive and file the Employee 
Agreements and MOU"s and place them on the JuneS, 2012 Council agenda for 
approval. The City Manager also wishes to acknowledge the very fine job that 
City staff does in serving the community and carrying out their responsibilities. 



CITY OF RIO DELL 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

AND THE 
RIO DELL PEACE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 

July 1,2012 through June 30t \ 2014 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL 

1. This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) is entered into by representatives 
of the City of Rio Dell, hereafter referred to as the "City"; and representatives ofthe Rio Dell 
Peace Officers Association, hereafter referred to as "Association." 

2. RECOGNITION: Under the Provisions of Resolution No. 570, The City Council of the City 
of Rio Dell hereby recognizes the Association as the employee organization representing the 
bargaining unit consisting of the City classifications of Sergeant and Police Officer. 

3. PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS: All terms and conditions of the City of Rio 
Dell Employee Handbook shall apply to this MOU. This MOU is intended to supplement the 
Employee Handbook for the Unit represented by this MOU. In the event there is a conflict 
between the Employee Handbook and this MOU, the terms of the MOU shall apply. The City of 
Rio Dell Employee Handbook is subject to amendment during the term of this MOU at the 
discretion of the City of Rio Dell City Council. 

4. NON-DISCRIMINATION: The City and the Association shall comply with all applicable 
state and federal laws prohibiting discrimination as provided for in the City of Rio Dell Police 
Department's General Orders and Special Orders directly relating to matters within the scope of 
representation. 

5. MEET AND CONFER: Meet and confer sessions shall be set, subject to mutual agreement, 
as to date, time and place, as authorized by the City of Rio Dell Employee Handbook. 
Representing of the City as part of the negotiating team, will be the City Manager. The 
Association will be ~~presented by a negotiatjon team designated 1JY the Association President. 

6. AGREEMENT COPIES: Copies of this Agreement, the Employee Handbook of the City of 
Rio Dell and the Regulations of the City of Rio Dell Police Department shall be made available 
to all employees of this Unit. 

7. MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS: All written rights, privileges, benefits, terms and 
conditions of employment within the scope of the representation as of this date ofthis agreement, 
which are not specifically set forth in this agreement shall remain in full force unchanged during 
the term of this agreement except by mutual consent, or as otherwise allowed or required by law. 

8. MEMBERSIJIP DUES: Sworn and non-sworn members of the Associatipn shall pay the 
same dollar amoUnt ~ach.pay period as dues to cover administrative costs of the Association 
including but not limited to membership in PORAC, participation in the PORAC Legal Defense 
Fund, charitable contributions, and other expenditures as determined by a majority vote of the 
membership. The City agrees to facilitate the collection of membership dues through payroll 
deductions and to deposit those funds into the Association's bank account. 



ARTICLE II - TERMS 

The following terms when used in this Memorandum of Understanding shall have the following 
meaning: 

1. "ASSOCIATION" shall mean the Rio Dell Peace Officers Association. 
2. "CITY" shall mean the City of Rio Dell, California. 
3. "MOU" or "Memorandum of Understanding" shall mean this document entered into by 

representatives of the City and the Association. 
4. "EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK" shall mean the Employee Handbook of the City of Rio Dell, 

California, adopted by the City Council and may be amended. 
5. "FULL TIME EMPLOYEE" or "FULL TIME POLICE OFFICER" shall mean a member of 

the unit covered by this Memorandum of Understanding who is employed by the City of Rio 
Dell for a scheduled period of 80 hours or more per Work Period in a position authorized by 
the Rio Dell City Council. 

6. "WORK PERIOD" shall mean a period of 80 hours in two consecutive work weeks. 
7. "COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO)" shall mean a period of time that is worked to be 

taken off at another time in lieu of pay. 
8. "UNIT" shall mean all employees, members and non-members, represented by the 

Association. 
9. "SWORN EMPLOYEE" shall mean a member of the association with peace officer powers 

as defined by the California Penal Code. 

ARTICLE III - WORKING CONDITIONS 

EMPLOYEES HEALTH AND SAFETY: In order to provide a safe and healthy workplace, 
each party hereto shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws establishing minimum 
standards for occupational health and safety. 

Work Schedules: .The City and the Assoc!ation agree that the Ch!ef of P?lic~ may utilize 
any of the folloWIng work schedules dunng a two week pay penod begInnIng on a 
Sunday: 

10 working days at 8 hours per day. 
8 working days at 10 hours per day. 
8 working days at 9 hours per day plus 1 working day at 8 hours or 2 working days at 
4 hours each. 
6 working days at 12 hours per day plus 1 working day at 8 hours or 2 working days 
at4hotits each. 

It is further agreed between the City and the Association that the Chief of Police may modify the 
above work schedules to fulfill the needs of the department as they arise. 

ARTICLE IV - PROBATION 

Probation for original appointments of the Police Department shall not be less than 12 months. 
However, said probationary evaluation period may be extended where any cumulative absence 
during the probationary period from the performance of the employee's usual duties is in excess 
of 80 hours. In calculating said 80 hours, absences attributed to utilization of holiday time, 
bereavement leave and compensatory time off shall be excluded. If extended under the 
provisions of this article, the probationary period extension shall be a minimum of one month or 
an amount of time not less than the total number of hours absent during the probationary period 
which necessitated implementation of this article, whichever is greater. 



ARTICLE V - COMPENSATION 

1. WAGES AND SALARIES: Effective July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2013 the salary schedule A for 
employees represented by the Association shall be as follows: 

Schedule A - 2% 

Step A - Payable during first year of employment. 
Step B - Payable during second year of employment subject to performance. 
Step C - Payable during third year of employment subject to performance. 
Step D - Payable during fourth year of employment subject to performance. 
Step E - Payable during fifth year of employment subject to performance. 

Advancements to Steps B, C, D, and E require a performance evaluation rating of satisfactory or 
better. This performance evaluation shall be conducted in the month prior to the scheduled step 
increase. If an employee is rated below this standard, the employee shall be re-evaluated at six 
month intervals for reconsideration of a step ihcrease. 

Employees who are promoted in rank shall be paid at the same step from which was promoted 
without loss of seniority, or to a higher step if such is warranted in the judgment of the Chief of 
Police. 

If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law 
Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during 
said year Employees salary shall be increased as shown on the following schedule B and will be 
paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1, 2012, but applicable for prior full months. 

Schedule B - 3% 

During the second year of this MOU Employer also agrees that Employees annual 
salary beginning July I, 2013 through June 3D, 2014, may be increased, at Employer'S 
discretion without obligation, upon a satisfactory performance review and approval by 
the City Manager by Two (2) percent above that payable on June 3D, 2013. If Schedule A 
was applicable, then reference Schedule C which represents a 2% increase. If Schedule B 
was applicable, then reference Schedule D which represents a 2 % increase. 



Schedule C - 2% over 2% for the preceding year 

Job Title 

Schedule - 2% over a 3% increase for the preceding year 

Job Title 

If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental 
Law Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full 
months during said second year of the MOD Employee's salary shall be increased upon 
a satisfactory performance review and approval of the City Manager by an additional 
Two (2) percent of salary payable on June 30, 2013 and will be paid retroactively if 
funding is received after July I, 2013, but applicable for prior full months. If Schedule C 
was applicable, then reference Schedule E which.represents a 2% increase. If Schedule D 
was applicable, then reference Schedule F which represents a 2 % increase. 

Schedule E - 3% over a 2% increase 

Salary 
Job Title 

Schedule F - 3 % over a 3 % increase 

Job Title 



2. OVERTIME: Under this agreement, overtime is any hours worked in excess of the scheduled 
work period hours as defined under article II and article III above in accordance with California 
labor code. All overtime hours worked shall be either paid in either cash, at one and one half 
times the employee's regular rate of pay, or accumulated as compensatory time at overtime rates 
up to a maximum accrued amount of eighty (80) hours. Compensatory time does not count as 
time worked for determining overtime. 

Vacation, holiday and sick leave are not considered hours worked for determining overtime. 
Management and the employees shall make every reasonable effort to schedule time off at a 
mutually agreeable time. The City's Financial Department shall list accumulated compensatory 
time on the employees bi-weekly pay stub. 

3. STANDBY AND CALL OUT: An employee assigned to the Police Department on standby 
duty, or called out for duty during off duty hours, shall be compensated as follows: 
a) CALL OUT: Sworn shall receive a minimum of two hours time paid if called back to duty. 
b) STANDBY: Ifplaced on standby duty, police officers shall receive one hour of straight time 

for every four hours on standby call. This applies only to sworn employees. 
c) COURT: When required to appear in court on unscheduled work days or work shifts, he or 

she shall receive a minimum of two hours time paid. Officers will make a reasonable effort 
to contact the District Attorney's office to minimize court time hours. 

4. TRAVEL PAY: 
Actual travel time shall be counted as time worked. 

ARTICLE VI - FRINGE BENEFITS 

1. GENERAL: The benefits contained in this Article shall accrue and become available to the 
employee at the start of full-time employment with the City. These benefits apply to both sworn 
and non-sworn employees unless stated otherwise. 

2. MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION INSURANCE: Medical, dental, life and vision 
insurance benefits shall be provided by the City for all employees of this unit and their 
dependents. The contribution amount by the City will be 100% of the premium for the employee 
and 70% of the premium for their dependents. Should the City choose alternative medical 
coverage during the effective period of this MOU, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or 
gteafercbfitprehensivecoverage, than thatwhich iscl.l.ttently in place1.U1less the change was 
accepted by the Association. Employees may elect to substitute compensation for health, dental, 
and vision insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125.00 a pay period total for 
health, vision and dental coverage. Proof of health insurance must be provided to employer. 

3. LIFE INSURANCE: A $50,000 life insurance policy shall be provided by the City for each 
regular employee of the unit during the term of employment with the City and the period of this 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

4. DEFERRED COMPENSATION: The deferred compensation plan is the retirement program 
for the City. The City shall contribute Twenty percent (20%) of the employee's salary for regular 
hours worked to a deferred compensation plan for officers and Sergeant. 

5. SICK LEAVE: Sick leave shall be in accordance with the Employee Handbook except as 
modified by this Memorandum of Understanding. Sick leave may accumulate with no maximum 

51 



limit. When an employee leaves the City's employment, his or her sick leave shall revert back to 
the City without any compensation for unused sick leave. 

6. FAMILY SICK LEA VE AND FAMILY BEREAVEMENT LEAVE: Family sick leave 
and family bereavement leave shall be in accordance with the Employee Handbook except as 
modified by this Memorandum of Understanding. Up to three days of accumulated sick leave 
within a calendar year may be granted to any employee whose employment status no:i:mally 
entitles him or her to vacation and sick leave benefits as may be reasonable or required for care 
and attendance upon sick members of his or her family upon request to, and approval by the 
employee's department head. Up to five days of accumulated sick leave within a calendar year 
may be granted to employees whose employment normally entitles him or her to sick leave and 
vacation benefits for attending funerals that occur in the employee's immediate family upon 
request to and approval by the employee's department head. An additional five days may be 
allowed at the discretion of the Chief of Police. Immediate family is defined in the Employee 
Handbook. 

7. CATISTROPHIC LEAVE (SICK LEAVE TRANSFER): An employee or their designee 
may request the establishment of a Catastrophic Leave Bank on behalf of the employee. The 
employee or their designee shall follow the following procedures: 

A. The employee or their designee shall make a request of the Chief of Police for the 
creation of a sick leave transfer bank, which includes sufficient information to establish a 
need. The following guidelines shall govern: 

An employee who has suffered a medical condition or injury not covered by Workers 
Compensation Insurance, which has caused an employee to take a medical leave, and 
who has exhausted their accumulated sick leave and vacation benefits shall qualify for 
the creation of a sick leave transfer bank (Catastrophic Leave). The need to used sick 
leave must be supported by a qualified medical opinion. A Catastrophic Leave Bank may 
also be established if an employee's immediate-family-member has suffered an injury or 
illness which is life-threatening, as is confirmed by competent medical authority, and 
there is a demonstrable need for the employee to attend the so affected immediate-family
member. 

A Catastrophic Leave bank is subject to the following restrictions: 

1. An employee may not receive Catastrophic Leave donations that exceed 160 hours in 
any12-mon~ period. 

B. Any employee who is subjected to this MOU may voluntarily donate Sick Leave to 
another City employee subject to this MOU under the following condition: 

1) The donating employee must retain 80 hours of Sick Leave in their Sick Leave 
bank at the time of any Sick Time transfer. 

C. Once a Catastrophic Leave Bank is established the bank will be supervised by the City 
Finance Director or their designee. The bank will have a published starting date, and 
expiration date and history of use. 



8. LEAVE OF ABSENCE: Leave of absence shall be in accordance with the Employee 
Handbook except as modified by this Memorandum of Understanding. In all cases covered by 
the Family Medical Leave Act, the City shall provide leave in accordance with the requirements 
of the act. The City Manager may grant a full time regular employee a leave of absence. No 
leave of absence shall be granted to a probationary employee or part time employees. Requests 
for leaves of absence shall be submitted in writing by the employee to the Chief of Police who 
shall consider such requests on individual merits and circumstances before making a 
recommendation to the City Manager. 

9. VACATION TIME: Vacation time shall be in accordance with the Employee Handbook 
except as modified by this Memorandum of Understanding. Employees covered by this 
Memorandum of Understanding who are not full time employees shall not be eligible for any 
paid vacation leave. Employees vacation accrues at the rates below: 

Tenure Vacation Vacation 
Greater than hours hours per 
or equal to: Less than: per year pay period 

date of hire 6 full years 80 3.077 
7 full years 11 full years 120 4.615 
12 full years 16 full years 160 6.154 
17 th year 168 6.462 
18th year 176 6.769 
19th year 184 7.077 
20th year 192 7.385 
21 years and beyond 200 7.692 

The amount of vacation time allowed to be accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed 
the annual amount of vacation time for the year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon 
reaching the vacation accrual maximum, the employee will not accumulate additional vacation 
time until such time as the employee's accrued leave is below the maximum amount. 

The times at which an employee may take a vacation shall be determined by the employee with 
due regard for the needs ofthe department. The Chief of Police or his designee may decline to 
grant the employee the time off as requested. At no time shall the Chief of Police schedule 
vacation time off for any employee. Vacation sign-ups shall be handled in accordance with 
Police Department General Orders. 

Vacation credits shall continue to accrue while an employee is on vacation, paid sick leave 
and/or paid workers' compensation lost time injury. Employees who terminate employment shall 
be entitled to receive vacation leave, holiday time that they have accrued from the City, and 
compensatory time which they have accrued from the City. After the employee has completed 
twelve months of employment, accrued vacation time shall be available to him or her within the 
following month. Vacation time shall be taken in a minimum of eight hours a day. 

10. HOLIDAYS: The following holidays are recognized: 
1. January 1st, known as New Year's Day. 
2. Third Monday in January, known as Martin Luther King Jr. Day. 
3. Presidents' Day in February. 
4. Last Monday in May, known as Memorial Day. 
5. July 4th, known as Independence Day. 

59 



6. First Monday in September, known as Labor Day. 
7. November 11 th, known as Veterans' Day. 
8. Thanksgiving Day, as designated. 
9. The day following Thanksgiving Day. 
10. December 25th, known as Christmas Day. 
11. The day before or after Christmas Day. 
12 1 floating holiday per fiscal year. 
13. 1 holiday on the employee's birthday. 

Sworn and non-sworn employees who are on a continuous shift schedule are entitled to "holiday 
time" in lieu of paid holidays. Holiday time is earned as each holiday occurs, whether or not the 
employee is scheduled to work on the actual holiday date. The City and Association recognize 
that the intent of holiday time is for time off. The cash out provision should only be necessary 
when staff resources preclude the scheduling of time off. 

Sworn employees working four ten hour days with three days off each week earn ten (10) hours 
of holiday time as each holiday occurs, whether or not the employee is scheduled to work on the 
actual holiday date. The sworn employee has the option of being paid the ten (10) hours as 
straight time or using it as time off on another day within the same work period. Holiday hours 
may not be banked for use in the future. 

Non-sworn employees working five eight hour days with two days off each week earn eight (8) 
hours of holiday time as each holiday occurs, whether or not the employee is scheduled to work 
on the actual holiday date. The non-sworn employee has the option of being paid the eight (8) 
hours as straight time or using it as time off on another day within the same work period. 
Holiday hours may not be banked for use in the future. 

11. DEPARTMENT UNIFORM ALLOWANCE: Whenever a full time police officer of the 
Police Department is required to wear, on duty, a full insignia uniform, he or she shall be paid 
for the maintenance, repair and replacement of such uniform at a rate of $187.50 per calendar . 
quarter, beginning with a payment of$187.50 upon hire. The initial $187.50 uniform allowance 
payment will be deducted from the officer's final paycheck if the officer leaves City employment 
before his or her probationary period ends. Said uniform allowance is to be paid at the beginning 
of each quarter for the previous full quarter the full time police officer was required to wear the 
full insignia uniform. This allowance is recognized to. cover the additional cost ofa uniform 
over civilian dress and shall be used strictly for the maintenance, repair, and purchase of 
unifonns. This fringe benefit is authorized for sworn employees only. 

12.WO:RK:ERS' COMPENSAtION LEAVE: w()rkers' compensation leave shall be in 
accordance with State laws and the Employee Handbook except as modified by this 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

13. COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO) BUY-BACK: On one occasion during each fiscal 
year each Association member may, upon one payroll period of prior notice to the City's 
Financial Director, receive pay for a block of up to 80 hours of his or her CTO, providing that 
the employee has at least 40 hours of CTO accumulated at the time of the request. The employee 
understands that he/she cannot cash out additional CTO during that same fiscal year. 

ARTICLE VII- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

The grievance procedure for the administration of this Memorandum of Understanding shall be 
in accordance with the Employee Handbook. 



ARTICLE VIII- EVALUATIONS 

Employees shall be periodically evaluated in accordance with the City of Rio Dell Police 
Department's General Orders. 

ARTICLE IX- SEPARATIONS 

1. RESIGNATIONS: Resignation from City service procedure shall be in accordance with the 
Employee Handbook. 

2. LAYOFF AND REEMPLOYMENT: Layoff from, and reemployment by the City shall be 
in accordance with the Employee Handbook except as modified by this Memorandum of 
Understanding. For seniority purposes, management and supervisory personnel are considered 
to have first seniority status within the department and then those employees of this unit in 
accordance with the length of service; with the longest continuous service with the City being the 
most senior. Former employees who are placed on a list for reemployment with this department 
who were laid-off, shall retain eligibility for re-appointment, based upon accrued seniority for a 
period of one year from the date when their names were placed on the rehire list. Former 
employees who are notified for rehire must respond in writing to such notice, indicating their 
intention, within seven calendar days of receiving such notification. Notice shall be deemed to 
have been received when sent to the last known address on file with the City, and attempted 
delivery or delivery is certified by the Postal Service. 

3. DISMISSALS: Dismissal from City service procedure shall be in accordance with the 
Employee Handbook. 

ARTICLE X- ASSOCIATION SECURITY 

Employees of the City of Rio Dell Police Department other than management and supervisory 
employees are required to either join the association or pay the Rio Dell Police Officers' 
Association a service fee in an amount not to exceed the dues paid by members of the 
Association. However, any employee of the City of Rio Dell Police Department who is 
represented by the Rio Dell Police Officers' Association and who is a member of a bona fide 
religious body, sect, etc., which has historically held conscientious objection to joining or 

.fillatu:;ially §!lpportitlgap1.1lJlic~pl()ym~l1t organization shall nQt ben::qtlireciJo join or 
financially support the Rio Dell Police Officers' Association as a condition of employment; such 
employees shall be required to pay a sum equal to the Association's dues to a non-religious, non
labor charitable fund that is exempt from taxation under Section 50l(c) of the IRS Code as a 
condition of the continued exemption of the requirement of financially supporting the Rio Dell 
Police Officers' Association. Failure to supply proof of payment to the designated charitable 
fund will result in the like payments being made to the Rio Dell Police Officers' Funds as a 
service fee. 

ARTICLE XI- DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall be in effect for the period of July 1, 2012 through 
June 30th, 2014. In the event that this MOU is not replaced by a succeeding MOU on or before 
June 30th, 2014, this MOU shall be extended so long as good faith negotiations continue. 



ARTICLE XII- SAVINGS CLAUSE 

If any article or section of this Memorandum of Understanding, or any addendum thereto, shall 
be held invalid by operation of law or by a tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance or 
enforcement of any article or section should be reinstated by said tribunal, or enactment of 
superseding authority by any government body other than the City, such article or provision shall 
be immediately suspended and be of no force and effect. Such invalidation of a part or portion 
of this Memorandum of Understanding shall not it;lvalidate any remaining portion, if those 
remaining portions are not contingent upon the operation of the invalidated section. In the event 
an article or provision of this Memorandum of Understanding is suspended, pursuant to the 
above, either party to this Memorandum of Understanding has the right to initiate a meeting and 
confer on the effect of such suspension. 

RIO DELL PEACE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION CITY OF RIO DELL 

Joshua Wiener, President Date Ron Henrickson, City Manager Date 

John Beauchaine, Vice President Date 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN CITY OF RIO DELL AND 

RIO DELL EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION 
July 1, 2012 to June 30,2014 

ARTICLE 1: PREAMBLE 

The City of Rio Dell hereinafter the "City," and representatives of the Rio Dell Employees' Association, 
hereinafter the "Association," having met and conferred in good faith, have mutually agreed to recommend 
to the City Council ofthe City of Rio Dell and the general membership of the Association that the following 
Memorandum ofDnderstanding (MOD) be adopted and that the terms and conditions set forth herein be 
implemented. 

ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION 

The City Council of the City of Rio Dell hereby recognizes the Rio Dell Employees' Association as the 
employee organization representing the bargaining unit consisting of other than management, other than 
contract employees and other than Police Department employees of the City of Rio Dell. 

ARTICLE 3: TERM 

This MOD shall be effective July 1, 2012 and will continue in effect through June 30, 2014. In the event 
this MOD is not replaced by a successor MOD on or before June 30,2014, this MOD shall be extended so 
long as good faith negotiations continue. 

ARTICLE 4: NON-DISCRIMINATION 

It is agreed that neither the City nor the Association shall discriminate against any employee because of 
race, national origin, age, sex, and disability or union membership. 

ARTICLE 5: ASSOCIATION SECURITY 

When a person is hired in any of the classifications represented by the Association, the City shall notify that 
person that the Rio Dell Employees Association is the recognized bargaining group for the employee by 
. providing the employee with a copy of the currentM0U. ·Upon receipt of an agreement and authorization· 
for dues deduction signed by an individual employee, the City will withhold legitimate Association dues 
consistent with the terms of said authorization through payroll deduction and will remit funds so collected to 
the employee Association on a quarterly basis. 

The City shall provide and the Association shall have access to available bulletin board space in employee 
work areas for the purposes of posting notices of official Association business and information ofinterestto 
employees. 

Duly appointed and identified representatives of the Association are authorized access to City work 
locations for the purpose of conducting Association business within the scope of representation. Conduct of 
business shall occur during employee lunch and other non-duty time, unless otherwise authorized by the 
City Manager. The Association will notify the City Manager in advance when any City facility is requested 
to be used for employee meetings. 



Employees of the City of Rio Dell other than management or contract employees and Police Department 
employees are required to either join the Rio Dell Employees' Association or pay the Rio Dell Employees' 
Association a service fee in an amount not to exceed the dues paid by members of the Association. 
However, any employee of the City of Rio Dell represented by the Rio Dell Employees' Association who is 
a member of a bona fide religious body or sect, which has historically held conscientious objection to 
joining or financially supporting public employment organizations, shall not be required to join or 
financially support the Rio Dell Employees' Association as a condition of employment. Such employees 
shall be required to pay a sum equal to Association dues to a non-religious, non-labor, charitable fund 
exempt from taxation under Section 501 (c)(3) of the IRS Code as designated by the objecting employee. 

ARTICLE 6: TIME OFF FOR ASSOCIATION BUSINESS 

The Association shall notify the City Manager of the names of representatives selected to represent the 
Association prior to any formal meet and confer session or grievance process. A maximum of three 
employees shall be allowed reasonable time off, subject to approval of the employee's Department Head, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld, without loss of compensation or other benefits when formal 
meeting with City representatives on matters within the scope of representation. 

ARTICLE 7: EMPLOYEE HEALTH & SAFETY 

In order to provide a safe and healthy work place each party hereto shall comply with all applicable State 
and Federal laws establishing minimum standards for occupational health and safety. 

ARTICLE 8: SALARY SCHEDULE 

Effective July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2013 the salary schedule for employees represented by the Association 
shall be as follows: 

Schedule A - 2% 

Job Title 



If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law 
Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during 
said year Employees salary shall be increased as shown on the following schedule B and will be 
paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1, 2012, but applicable for prior full months. 

Schedule B-3 % 

Job Title 

During the second year of this MOD Employer also agrees that Employees annual salary 
beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, may be increased, at Employer's discretion 
without obligation, upon a satisfactory performance review and approval by the City Manager by 
Two (2) percent above that payable on June 30, 2013. If Schedule A was applicable, then 
reference Schedule C which represents a 2% increase. If Schedule B was applicable, then 
reference Schedule D which represents a 2 % increase. 

Schedule C - 2% over 2% for the preceding year 

Job Title 



Schedule D - 2% over a 3% increase for the preceding year 

Job Title 

If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law 
Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during 
said second year of the MOU Employee's salary shall be increased upon a satisfactory 
performance review and approval of the City Manager by an additional Two (2) percent of salary 
payable on June 30,2013 and will be paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1, 2013, 
but applicable for prior full months. If Schedule C was applicable, then reference Schedule E 
which represents a 2% increase. If Schedule D was applicable, then reference Schedule F which 
represents a 2 % increase. 

Schedule E 3% over a 2% increase 

Job Title 



Schedule F 3 % over a 3 % increase 

Job Title 

ARTICLE 9: TRAINING 

The City Manager and Department Heads will work with Association representatives on training needs for 
represented employees. Travel time will be treated as regular hours worked. 

ARTICLE 10: INSURANCE 

MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION INSURANCE: Medical, dental, life and vision insurance benefits 
shall be provided by the City for all employees of this unit and their dependents. The contribution amount 
by the City will be 100% of the premium for the employee and 70% of the premium for their dependents 
until June 30th, 2014. Should the City choose alternative medical coverage during the effective period of 
this MOU, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or greater comprehensive coverage, than that which is 
currently in place. Employees may elect to substitute compensation for health, dental, and vision insurance 
coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125.00 a pay period for health, vision and dental coverage. 
Proof of health insurance must be provided to employer. 

LIFE INSURANCE: A $25,000 life insurance policy shall be provided by the City for each regular 
employee of the unit during the term of employment with the City and the period of this Memorandum of 
Understanding, except the Accountant II who shall receive $50,000 coverage. 

ARTICLE 11: DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The Employer does not yet participate in and is not a party to the Public Employees Retirement 
System of the State of California. The Employer participates in a deferred Compensation Plan. 
The Employer shall contribute and pay an amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of the 
Employee's salary to the Deferred Compensation Plan to the extent accrued proportional to the 
amount of time worked during any given year. 



ARTICLE 12: SICK LEAVE 

Sick leave earnings at the rate of eight hours per month shall be granted. Rules pertaining to the use of sick 
leave are detailed in the Rio Dell Personnel Rules. 

Upon the employee's separation from City service, he or she shall be paid for any accrued sick leave 
beginning after five years of full time employment based upon the following schedule: 

5 -7 years 10% 
8 -12 years 15% 

13 - 20 years 20% 
21 + years 25% 

The amount paid out under this Article shall not exceed 240 hours. 

ARTICLE 13: JURY DUTY 

An employee who is required to report for jury duty shall receive full pay for such absence from 
work. Mileage expenses will be paid to the employee by the court directly and are therefore 
ineligible for reimbursement by the City. Upon being excused from jury duty, if four or more 
hours are left in the employee's workday the employee shall report back to work. The employee 
shall provide the employer documentation from the court detailing the time served for each day 
the employee is required to report for jury duty. 

ARTICLE 14: VACATION LEAVE 

All full-time employees shall be entitled to annual vacation leave with full pay. The times during which an 
employee may take vacation time shall be determined by the Department Head with due regard for the 
employee's request. No accrued vacation time may be used prior to completion of probation, unless 
authorized by the City Manager. Vacation leave shall be taken in minimum increments of four hours. All 
employees shall accrue vacation pursuant to the following schedule, based on continuous years of service: 

Tenure Vacation Vacation 
Greater than hours hours per 
Or equal to: Less than: per year pay period 

Date of hire 6 full years 80 3.077 
6 full years 11 full years 120 4.615 
11 full years 16 full years 160 6.154 
16 full years 17 ·full years 168 6.462 
17 full years 18 full years 176 6.769 
18· full years 19 full years 184 7.077 
19 full years 20 full years 192 7.385 
20+ full years 200 7.692 



Employees who terminate employment shall be entitled to receive vacation leave pay in a lump sum for all 
accrued vacation leave earned prior to the effective date of termination not to exceed the one year accrual 
limit up to a maximum of 120 hours. 

Holidays occurring during vacation leave shall not be counted as days of vacation. Vacation credit shall 
continue to accrue when an employee is on vacation or the first thirty days of sick leave. Employees shall 
not be recalled from vacation time unless the City has declared that a state of emergency exists. 

SECTION 15. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE 

The amount of vacation time allowed to be accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed 
the annual amount of vacation time for the year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon 
reaching the applicable vacation accrual maximum, the employee will not accumulate additional 
vacation time until such time that the employee's accrued leave is below the applicable vacation 
accrual maximum. 

ARTICLE 16: HOLIDAYS 
The following days shall be recognized and observed as paid holidays during the fiscal year: 

1. New Year's Day, January 1 
2. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, third Monday in January 
3. Presidents' Day, third Monday in February 
4. Memorial Day, last Monday in May 
5. Independence Day, July 4th 

6. Labor Day, first Monday in September 
7. Veterans' Day, November 11th 

8. Thanksgiving Day, fourth Thursday in November 
9. Friday following Thanksgiving Day 
10. Christmas Day, December 25th 

11. Day before or after Christmas Day 
12. One Floating Holiday per Fiscal Year 

The Association shall iriformilieCityManager at least thirty days prioito December 25 regardingthe· 
choice to take the day before or day after Christmas as a holiday. When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the 
proceeding Friday shall be a paid holiday. When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the Monday following shall 
be a paid holiday. 

An Association employee required to work on a holiday provided for herein, shall receive holiday pay 
which shall be either: 

1. Their regular pay plus compensatory time off at the rate of one hour of compensatory time for e;:lch 
hour worked. 

2. Their regular rate of pay plus one hour of pay for each hour worked. 



ARTICLE 17: OVERTIME 

Overtime shall mean the time that an employee is required to work in excess of forty hours per week in 
accordance with the California labor code. The workweek shall begin at 12:01 am on Saturday each week. 
Employees required to work more than eight hours per day or forty hours in a workweek shall be eligible for 
overtime pay at one and one-half time their regular rate of payor compensatory time off at the option of the 
employee. Compensatory time shall accrue at the rate oftime and one-half to a maximum amount not to 
exceed sixteen (16) hours. In the event of an occurrence which required an extraordinary amount of 
overtime the City Manager can approve an increase in the maximum amount of compensatory time accrued 
and a reasonable extension oftime in which to use it. An employee desiring to use earned compensation 
time off must first obtain department head approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld. 
Compensation time off-hours shall be paid to an employee upon separation from City service. 

ARTICLE 18: PUBLIC WORKS SCHEDULING 

Public Works employee work weeks shall be scheduled at least 14 days in advance with due consideration 
given to factors such as seniority and qualifications when scheduling Saturday, Sunday and holiday duty. 

ARTICLE 19: STAND-BY AND CALL-OUT 

An employee called-out for work during off duty hours shall be compensated with a minimum of two hours 
of overtime, regardless of actual hours worked. An employee required to be on call after hours shall be 
compensated $100.00 for every seven (7) days of on call duty regardless of actual hours worked. A second 
on-call employee shall be compensated $50.00 for every seven (7) days of on-call duty, regardless of actual 
hours worked. 

ARTICLE 20: ACTING PAY 

An employee covered by this MOU shall only be required to perform the supervisory duties of his or her 
supervisor when the supervisor is absent from the position and upon specific written assignment by the City 
Manager. Employees so assigned shall be compensated at an additional rate of one-halfthe difference 
between his or her pay and that of the supervisor; provided, however, that the employee shall only receive 
such additional comp~llsation when the assigIl1J1ent is for eleven consecutive work days or more. TheGity 
shall not rotate employee shifts for the purpose of avoiding payment of such compensation. 

ARTICLE 21: UNIFORM AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT 

Whenever a full-time Public Woks employee is required to have, or while on duty, wear 
protective clothing as defined by IRS Publication 529, he or she shall be reimbursed for the 
purchase of said protective gear in an amount not to exceed $325 per fiscal year upon 
presentation of applicable expense receipts. Protective clothing as defined by the IRS includes: 
safety boots, safety glasses, hard hats, work gloves, etc. 

7Q 



ARTICLE 22: LAYOFF AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 

Whenever it becomes necessary for employees to be laid off because oflack of work or lack of funds, all 
probationary employees of the department shall be laid-off before any regular full-time employees. If 
additional reductions are necessary, regular full-time employees shall be laid off in reverse order oftheir 
seniority within a department in the same job classification. Employees laid off shall be given written 
notice of such layoff at least thirty days prior to the effective date of the layoff. The names of employees 
laid off shall be placed on a re-employment list for the position. Persons on such lists shall retain eligibility 
for appointment there from in order of accumulated seniority for a period of two years from the date their 
names were placed on the list. Persons notified for rehire must respond in writing to such notice within 
seven calendar days of receiving such notification. Notice shall be deemed to have been received when sent 
to the last known address on file with the City and attempted delivery or delivery is certified by the Postal 
Service. 

SECTION 23: AUTOMOBILE 

For those employees who are required to have a valid driver's license and operate City vehicles 
failure to maintain a valid driver's license or failure to maintain an insurable driving standard as 
defined by City's insurance coverage shall be cause for termination. Subject employees shall 
provide employer with a Department of Motor Vehicle H -6 report annually to verify minimum 
driving standards. 

If employee's duties require that they have the use of employee's automobile to perform 
Employer's business. Employee's use of their private vehicle for City business shall be 
reimbursed to Employee at the current standard mileage rate as published by the IRS. Subject to 
all of the provisions of City's separate Travel and Reimbursement Resolution, Employee shall be 
responsible for paying for all gas, maintenance, and repair of said automobile. Employee shall 
be responsible for paying for all liability, property damage, and comprehensive insurance on said 
automobile. Proof of said insurance in force during the period of employment must be provided to 
employer. Failure to maintain a valid driver's license shall be cause for termination. 

ARTICLE 24: PERSONNEL RULES APPLICABLE 

Rather than duplicate personnel rules applicable to all employees, this article incorporates by reference the 
Rio Dell Personnel Rules Resolution and Rio Dell Employer-Employee Organization Relations Resolution 
regarding the following subjects: Disciplinary Actions, Grievance Procedure, Impasse Procedure, 
Counseling and Unfavorable Reports, Employee Performance Evaluation, Personnel Files, Family Sick 
Leave and Bereavement Leave, Leave of Absence, Maternity Leave and Worker's Compensation Leave. 

ARTICLE 25: MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS 

All written rights, privileges, benefits, terms and conditions of employment within the scope of 
representation as of the date of this MOU which are not specifically set forth in this MOU shall remain in 
full force, unchanged during the term of this MOU except by mutual consent or otherwise allowed or 
required by law. 

7) 



ARTICLE 26: IMPLEMENTATION 

This MOD constitutes a mutual recommendation by the parties, to the City Council, that one or more 
resolutions be adopted accepting this Memorandum and effecting the changes enumerated herein relative to 
wages, benefits, and terms and conditions of employment for the employees represented by the Association. 
During the term of this MOD, the City and the Association shall not be obligated to, but may by mutual 
consent, meet and confer on any matter within the scope of representation pursuant to provisions of the 
Myers-Millias-Brown Act. 

ARTICLE 27: PRECEDENCE 

Any and all prior or existing MODs are hereby superseded. In the event of an express written conflict 
between a specific written provision ofthis MOD and a written rule, regulation or resolution of the City of 
Rio Dell, the terms of this MOD shall prevail and said written rule, regulation or resolution shall be deemed 
physically amended to conform to the specific provisions of this MOD. 

ARTICLE 28: CONSITUTIONALITY 

If any article, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause or phrase of this MOD is for any reason held to be 
illegal or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this MOD. 

This Memorandum of Dnderstanding represents the full and complete understanding between the parties 
related to the subject matter set forth herein and all negotiations of whatever kind or nature are merged 
herein. The parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of Dnderstanding to be executed. 

RIO DELL EMPLOYEES' 
ASSOCIATION 

Carla Ralston, President Date 

Justin Barrrington, Vice President Date 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date 

CITY OF RIO DELL 

Ron Henrickson, City Manager Date 



CITY OF RIO DELL 
CHIEF OF POLICE 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

This employment agreement (this "Agreement), is made and entered by and between the CITY 
OF RIO DELL, a municipal corporation of the State of Cali fomi a, hereinafter referred as the 
"Employer" or "City" and Graham G. Hill, hereinafter referred to as "Employee" or "Chief of 
Police", both of whom understand as follows: 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said Graham G. Hill as 
CHIEF OF POLICE ofthe City of Rio Dell; and 

B. WHEREAS, it is the desire of the EMPLOYER, to provide certain benefits, 
establish certain conditions of employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

C. WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the Chief of Police of 
the said City. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 
agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DUTIES Employer hereby agrees to employ GRAHAM G. HILL as CHIEF 
OF POLICE of said Employer to perform the functions and duties specified in the Ordinances 
of said City, pursuant to California Government Code section 36506, and to perform other 
legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the City Manager shall from time to time 
assign. 

SECTION 2. TERM; EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION NOTICE; SEVERANCE 

A. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 
2014, unless terminated earlier as provided in this Section 2 or Section 3 of this Agreement, 
below. 

B. Voluntary Resignation by Employee. Employee may resign at any time during 
the term of this Agreement by providing Employer with thirty (30) days written notice prior to 
resignation. Should Employee resign, he shall be entitled to salary and benefits accrued up to the 
last day Employee is on thejob or up to the expiration of the thirty (30) day notice period, 
whichever date shall first occur. 

73 



C. Employer Issued Employment Termination Notice. At any time during the term 
of this Agreement, Employer shall have the right, in Employer's discretion, to terminate 
Employee's employment with the City, with or without cause, upon providing ninety (90) days 
written notice to Employee of termination (''Notice of Termination"). Should the City elect to 
give Notice of Termination, the City has the option to require the Employee to remain at his 
position for a period of ninety (90) days from date of said Notice of Termination or may require 
Employee to refrain from performing said duties in which event the Employee shall be paid his 
regular monthly salary for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of Notice of Termination, 
unless the termination is for cause as stated below. 

D. Severance Pay. If Employee is asked to resign by the City or is provided Notice of 
Termination, Employee shall receive a cash severance payment, or payments (without interest) at 
intervals specified by Employee totaling 3 months (90 days) salary and benefits. 

E. Non-Payment of Severance Under Certain Conditions. If the termination of 
Employee's employment is the result of conviction of a felony, he shall not be paid any severance 
pay. 

SECTION 3. FOR CAUSE TERMINATION; SUSPENSION, DEMOTION OR 
REMOVAL Subject to all terms of this Agreement, the Peace Officer Bill of Rights pursuant to 
the California Public Safety Officers Procedural Bill of Rights Act (California Government Code 
§§3300-3311) shall be followed by City in the event of suspension, demotion or dismissal. 
Without limitation on the forgoing, conviction of a felony shall be grounds for immediate 
termination without severance pay, as stated in this Agreement. 

SECTION 4. DISABILITY Employer may terminate Employee's employment if Employee 
suffers a disability that renders Employee unable, as determined in good faith by the City 
Council, to perform the essential functions of the position, even with reasonable accommodation, 
for four months (twelve weeks) in any 12-month period. If Employee's employment is 
terminated under this Section 4, Employee shall be compensated for all accrued obligations 
through the termination date, which for purposes of this section shall be a date specified by the 
City Council. EIIlpl{)yer shall also pay to EIIlpl{)y~e severance payas set forth in Section 2 
above. After the termination date, Employer shall not pay to Employee any other compensation 
or payment of any kind, or severance, of payment in lieu of notice. All benefits provided by 
Employer to Employee under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease on the Termination Date. 

SECTION 5. SALARY Employer agrees to pay Employee for their services rendered an annual 
salary of Eight One Thousand One Hundred Thirty One Dollars ($81,131) beginning July I, 
2012 through June 30, 2013, payable in installments at the same time intervals as other 
employees of Employer are paid. If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for· 
Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding 
applicable for any full months during said year Employees salary shall be increased to Eighty 
One Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty Six Dollars ($81,926) and will be paid retroactively if 
funding is received after July I, 2012, but applicable for prior full months. 



Employer also agrees that Employees annual salary beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2014, may be increased upon approval of the City Manager following a performance review by 
two percent (2%) above that payable on June 30, 2013. If the City receives at least $60,000 in 
Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding 
(COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during said year Employees salary may 
be increased upon approval of the City Manager by an additional one percent (1 %) of salary 
payable on June 30, 2013, and will be paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1, 2013, 
but applicable for prior full months. 

SECTION 6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION The City Manager shall review and evaluate 
the performance of the Employee not later than twelve (12) and twenty four (24) months from 
the effective date of this Agreement using such procedures as he deems appropriate. From time 
to time the City Manager and Employee shall define such goals and performance objectives 
determined necessary for the proper operation of the Department and City. In the attainment of 
policy objectives, the relative priority among those various goals and objectives shall be reduced 
to writing and considered as part of the annual performance review. 

SECTION 7. HOURS OF WORK It is recognized that Employee must devote a great deal of 
time outside normal office hours to the business of Employer and shall be expected to work in 
excess of eighty (80) hours per pay period at the direction of the City Manager in consideration 
of the annual salary above defined. Employee acknowledges that the position of Chief of Police 
is an administrative level, supervisorial position exempt from rights to overtime pay under 
California Wage and Hour law and regulations. 

SECTION 8. OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIE S Employee agrees to 
remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become employed by any other employer 
in other employment until termination of the employment relationship. The term "other 
employment" shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing, consulting, or 
military reserve service performed on Employees time off. Employees shall not spend more than 
four (4) hours per week in teaching, counseling, or other non-employer connected business 
without the prior written approval of the City Manager. 

SECTION·9.·.AU'fOMOBILE . Employee's duties require that he shall have the use at all times 
during his employment with Employer an automobile to perform Employer's business. 
Employee may take the vehicle home at night to expedite response time to a call when necessary. 
Employee will not use the City vehicle for personal use without prior permission from the City 
Manager. Driving a City vehicle is a requirement of performing the job. Employee shall maintain 
a valid driver's license and maintain insurable driving status as defined by City's insurance 
coverage. Employee shall provide employer with a Department of Motor Vehicle H -6 report 
annually to verify minimum driving standards. 

SECTION 10. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME 
Employee wiRreceive eighty(80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year. The taking of 
vacation and executive leave time shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Manager, 
who shall not unreasonably withhold their approval. 

75 



Employee may be paid any unused portion on the first pay period of December and/or the first 
pay period of June. Employee will accrue sick leave eight (8) hours each calendar month actually 
worked by Employee, and vacation time as follows: 

Years of Continuous Service 
One to three (1-3) 
Four to ten (4-10) 
Eleven to fifteen (11-15) 
Sixteen to twenty (16-20) 

Hours per Year 
80 hours 
120 hours 
160 hours 
200 hours 

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays granted to the Rio Dell Peace Officers 
Association. 

SECTION 11. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE The amount of vacation time allowed to be 
accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed the annual amount of vacation time for the 
year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon reaching the applicable vacation accrual 
maximum (i.e., 120 hours), the employee will not accumulate additional vacation time until such 
time that the employee's accrued leave is below the applicable vacation accrual maximum. 

SECTION 12. WORK RELATED EXPENSES REIMBURSMENT Employer agrees to 
reimburse the Employee such verifiable work related out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the 
Employee provided they are preapproved by the City Manager in writing. Employee shall submit 
an itemization schedule of his out-of-pocket expenses in writing in the form of a purchase order 
for payment. 

SECTION 13. MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT Medical, 
Dental and Vision Insurance shall be provided for the Chief of Police as the City provides for 
other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 100% of the premium 
costs for these benefits for the employee and 70% of the total premium costs for employee's 
dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in the plan document. 
Should the City choose alternative medical coverage during the effective period of this 
Agreement, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or greater comprehensive coverage, than 
which is currently in place. Employees may elect to substitute compensation. for health,dental, 
and vision insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125 per pay period for all 
hea:lth, vision and dental coverage, collectively. Proof of health insurance must be provided to 
employer. 

SECTION 14.DEFERRED COMPENSATION The Employer does not yet participate in the 
Public Employees Retirement System of the State of California. The Employer participates in a 
deferred Compensation Plan. The Employer shall contribute and pay an amount equal to Twenty 
Three percent (23%) of the Employee's salary to the Deferred Compensation Plan to the extent 
accrued proportional to the amount of time worked during any given year. 

SECTION 15. LIFE INSURANCE A term life insurance policy in the amount of Seventy Five 
Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) shall be provided by the Employer for the Employee, with the 
Employee entitled to designate Employee's beneficiary. 



SECTION 16. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE This Employment Agreement shall become 
effective July 1, 2012, and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, subject to potential early 
termination under Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement and changes pursuant to amendments or 
adjustments made at mutually agreed upon times throughout Employee's term of employment 
with Employer. 

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION Employer shall defend, save harmless and indemnify 
Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether 
groundless or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance 
of Employee's duties as CHIEF OF POLICE. Employer will defend and, if appropriate, attempt 
to compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or 
judgment rendered thereon. Employer's indemnity obligation shall not apply to any claims or 
liabilities, of any type or nature, arising out of any criminal acts, intentional torts or willful 
misconduct of Employee. 

SECTION 18. BONDING Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required ofthe Employee under any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 19. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS Employer agrees to budget and pay for the 
professional dues and subscriptions of Employee necessary for his contribution and participation 
in the: 

1). California Police Officer's Association; 
2). California Police Chief's Association; and 
3). Law Enforcement Chief's Association of Humboldt 

Employee shall distribute to and share with the City Manager written material and information 
distributed by the above associations. 

SECTION 20. LICENSING AND TRAINING Employer agrees to budget and pay for the 
professional licensing and continued education of Employee for training provided by the 
CalifomiaPeaceOfficersAssociation,The California Police Chief's Association, and the 
California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training. Employee is encouraged to 
enroll in and complete the POST Management Course and the POST Executive Course as time 
permits. 

SECTION 21. TRAVEL EXPENSES Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the 
travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for official and professional travel of Employee 
while on City Business, provided that the City Manager has first approved and authorized said 
travel and training expenses. 

SECTION 22. ATTORNEY'S FEES Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 
to this Agreement or the rights and duties of either relationship thereto, the prevailing party in 
such litigation shall be entitled in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to reasonable 
sum as and for attorney's fees which shall be determined by the court. 

77 



SECTION 23. NOTICES Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by deposit in the 
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

EMPLOYER 
City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

EMPLOYEE 
Graham G. Hill 
275 Ogle Avenue 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the same 
manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of 
personal service or as of the date of deposit of such written in the course of transmission in the 
United States Postal Service. 

SECTION 24. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. The text herein shall constitute the Agreement between parties. 
B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and 

executors of Employee 
C. This Agreement shall become effective commencing immediately, subject to Section 15 

above. 
D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 
thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

E. This Agreement (including all exhibits attached hereto) contains the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
understandings with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be modified, changed, 
supplemented or amended except by written instrument signed by the party to be charged 
or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein. 

F. Representation by Counsel: Employee and City acknowledge that they each did, or had 
the opportunity to, consult with legal counsel of their respective choices with respect to 
the matters that are the subject of this Agreement prior to executing it. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Rio Dell has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalfby its City Manager, and the Employee has signed and executed this 
Agreement, in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

EMPLOYEE 

Graham G. Hill, Employee Date 

EMPLOYER 

Ron Henrickson, City Manager Date 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date 



CITY OF RIO DELL 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered by and between the CITY 
OF RIO DELL, a municipal corporation of the State of California, hereinafter referred as the 
"Employer" and Kevin Caldwell, hereinafter referred to as "Employee" or "Community 
Development Director", both of whom understand as follows: 

RECTIALS 

A. WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said Kevin Caldwell as 
Community Development Director of the City of Rio Dell; and 

B. WHEREAS, it is the desire of the EMPLOYER, to provide certain benefits, 
establish certain conditions of employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

C. WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the Community 
Development Director of the said City; 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 
agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DUTIES. Employer hereby agrees to employ Kevin Caldwell as Community 
Development Director of said Employer to perform the functions and duties specified in the 
Ordinances of said City, pursuant to California Government Code section 36500, and to perform 
other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Community Development 
Director shall from time to time be assigned. These duties may include tasks related to planning, 
housing, building, code compliance and economic development projects. 

SECTION 2. TERM. This Agreement shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, unless 
Employee's term of employment is terminated earlier as provided in this Section 2 or Section 3 
of this Agreement, or by the voluntary resignation of Employee. Should Employee elect to 
resign, Employee shall provide Employer with thirty (30) days written notice prior to 
resignation. 

For purposes of calculating the anniversary date for annual salary increases the date shall be 
March 14,2011, his date of hire as Housing Program Director. 



a. Termination from Employment; 90 Day Limitation on Termination and 
Severance Pay. Except in the event of immediate termination for cause as a result of 
a conviction or a plea of no contest to a felony as stated in Section 2.b. of this 
Agreement, below, the Community Development Director shall not be terminated 
from employment within the ninety (90) day period following the appointment of a 
new City Manager. The purpose of this provision is to allow any newly appointed 
City Manager to directly observe the actions and ability of the Community 
Development Director in the performance of the powers and duties of his office. In all 
other circumstances, the Community Development Director can be terminated from 
employment with or without cause and for any reason (or no reason at all) 
following two (2) weeks written notice from the City Manager, and without notice 
under Section 2.b. of this Agreement. In the case of employment termination prior to 
expiration of this Agreement (i.e., prior to June 30, 2014) the Community 
Development Director shall be entitled to receive severance in a lump sum and all 
unused vacation, and executive leave time, as Employee's sole and exclusive 
remedy and right(s) to payment at employment termination. "Severance" shall be 
paid according to the following schedule: 

Years of Continuous Service 

0-1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 years 
3-4 years 

Severance Pay 

2 months salary 
3 months salary 
4 months salary 
5 months salary 

b. Severance Payment Exception. Should the Community Development Director be 
terminated for cause or as a result of a conviction or plea of no contest to a felony no 
severance pay will be provided upon employment termination. If the Community 
Development Director voluntarily leaves employment with the City of Rio Dell or 
resigns, no severance pay will be provided upon separation. 

SECTION 3. SUSJ>ENSION ORREMOV AL.The Employee may be suspended,removed, or 
dismissed from the service of the City of Rio Dell at any time during the term of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 2 above or to the provisions of any applicable City of Rio Dell Ordinances. 

SECTION 4. DISABILITY. Employer may terminate Employee's employment if Employee 
suffers a disability that renders Employee unable, as determined in good faith by the City 
Manager, to perform the essential functions of the position, even with reasonable 
accommodation, for four months (twelve weeks) in any l2-month period. If Employee's 
employment is terminated under this Section 4, Employee shall be compensated for all accrued 
obligations through the termination date, which for purposes of this section shall be a date 
specified by the City Manager. Employer shall also pay to Employee a severance pay as set 
forth in Section 2 above. After the termination date, Employer shall not pay to Employee any 
other compensation or payment of any kind, or severance, or payment in lieu of notice. All 



benefits provided by Employer to Employee under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease on 
the Termination Date. 

SECTION 5. SALARY. Employer agrees to pay Employee for their services rendered an annual 
salary of Seventy Two Thousand Six Hundred Eighty One Dollars ($72,681) beginning July 1, 
2012 through March 13, 2013, payable in installments at the same time as other employees of 
Employer are paid. If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public 
Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for 
any full months during said period Employees salary shall be increased to Seventy Three 
Thousand Three Hundred Ninety Four Dollars ($73,394) and will be paid retroactively if funding 
is received after July 1, 2012, but applicable for prior full months during the period. 

Upon review and approval of the City Manager said annual salary may be increased March 14, 
2013 to step C. 

Employer also agrees that Employees annual salary beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2014, may be increased upon approval of the City Manager following a performance review by 
Two (2) percent above that payable on June 30, 2013. If the City receives at least $60,000 in 
Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding 
(COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during said year Employees salary may 
be increased upon approval of the City Manager by an additional One (1) percent of salary 
payable on June 30,2013, and will be paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1, 2013, 
but applicable for prior full months. 

SECTION 6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. The City Manager shall review and evaluate 
the performance of the Employee in February of2013 and June of2013 using such procedures as 
he/she determines appropriate. From time to time as may mutually be deemed appropriate, the 
City Manager and Employee shall define such goals and performance objectives in writing 
which are determined necessary for the proper operation of the Department and City. Such goals 
and performance objectives shall be considered as part of the annual performance review of 
Employee. 

SECTION 7. HOURS OF WORK. It is recognized that Employee may be expected to work in 
excess of eighty (80) hours per pay period at the direction of the City Manager. Employee shall 
receive no overtime payor compensatory time off other than eighty (80) hours of executive 
leave. Employer through the City Manager may accommodate a flexible schedule in the form of 
a modified work week and/or working from home so long as the City Manager determines that 
the needs of the City are adequately met. 

SECTION 8. OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES. Employee agrees to 
remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become employed by any other employer 
in other employment until termination of the employment relationship. The term "other 
employment" shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing, consulting, or 
military reserve service performed on Employees time off. Employees shall not spend more than 
four (4) hours per week in teaching, counseling, or other non-employer connected business 



without the prior written approval of the City Manager. Other non-employer connected business 
may include provision of planning consulting services provided such services are not performed 
in the City of Rio Dell or provided to individuals or organizations which have business interests 
in the City of Rio Dell. 

SECTION 9. AUTOMOBILE. Employee's duties require that she/he shall have the use at all 
times during his/her employment with Employer an automobile to perform Employer's business. 
Employee's use of his/her private vehicle for City business shall be reimbursed to Employee at 
the current standard mileage rate as published by the United States Internal Revenue Service. 
Subject to the provisions of the City's separate Travel and Reimbursement Resolution, Employee 
shall be responsible for paying for all gas, maintenance, and repair of said automobile. 
Employee shall be responsible for paying for all liability, property damage, and comprehensive 
insurance on said automobile. Employee shall maintain a valid driver's license and maintain 
insurable driving status as defined by City's insurance coverage. Employee shall provide employer 
with a Department of Motor Vehicle H -6 report annually to verify minimum driving standards. 

SECTION 10. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME. 
Employee will receive eighty (80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year. The taking of 
vacation and executive leave time shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Manager, . 
who shall not unreasonably withhold their approval. 

Employee may be paid any unused portion on the first pay period of December and/or the first 
pay period of June. Employee will accrue sick leave at 8.00 hours each calendar month actually 
worked by Employee, and vacation time as follows: 

Years of Continuous Service 

One to three (1-3) 
Four to ten (4-10) 
Eleven to fifteen (11-15) 
Sixteen to Twenty (16-20) 

Hours per Year 

80 hours 
120 hours 
160 hours 
200 hours 

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays as the Rio Dell Employees' 
Association. 

SECTION 11. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE. The amount of vacation time allowed to be 
accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed the annual amount of vacation time for the 
year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon reaching the applicable vacation accrual 
maximum (i.e., 120 hours), the employee will not accumulate additional vacation time until such 
time that the employee's accrued leave is below the applicable vacation accrual maximum. 

SECTION 12. WORK RELATED EXPENSES REIMBURSMENT 
Employer agrees to reimburse the Employee such verifiable work related out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by the Employee as approved by the City Manger. Employee shall submit an 
itemization schedule of his out-of-pocket expenses to the City Manager in writing in the form of 
a purchase order for payment. Employer also agrees to pay employee a monthly cell phone 



allowance to ensure employee is contactable at all times. Employee must maintain cell phone 
service. The City's cell phone policy established by separate Resolution of the City Council is 
applicable in all regards for Employee. 

SECTION 13. MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT. Medical, 
Dental and Vision Insurance shall be provided for the Community Development Director as the 
City provides for other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 
100% of the premium costs for these benefits for the employee and 70% of the total premium 
costs for employee's dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in 
the plan document. Should the City choose alternative medical coverage during the effective 
period of this Agreement, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or greater comprehensive 
coverage, than which is currently in place. Employees may elect to substitute compensation for 
health, dental, and vision insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125 per pay 
period for all health, vision and dental coverage, collectively. Proof of health insurance must be 
provided to employer. 

SECTION 14. DEFERRED COMPENSATION. The Employer does not yet participate in 
and is not a party to the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of California. The 
Employer participates in a deferred Compensation Plan. The Employer shall contribute and pay 
an amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of the Employee's salary to the Deferred 
Compensation Plan to the extent accrued proportional to the amount of time worked during any 
gIVen year. 

SECTION 15. LIFE INSURANCE. A term life insurance policy in the amount of Seventy 
Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) shall be provided by the Employer for the Employee. 

SECTION 16. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE. This Employment Agreement shall become 
effective July 1, 2012 and shall remain in effect through June 30,2014, subject to potential early 
termination under Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement and changes pursuant to amendments or 
adjustments made at mutually agreed upon times throughout Employee's term of employment 
with Employer. 

SECTION 17 .. INDEMNIFICATION. . Employer shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action arising out 
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee's duties as Community 
Development Director. Employer's indemnity obligation shall not apply to any claims or 
liabilities, of any type or nature, arising out of any intentional acts, criminal acts or willful 
misconduct of Employee. 

SECTION 18. BONDING. Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required of the Employee under any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 19. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS. Employer agrees to budget and to pay for the 
professional dues and subscriptions of employee necessary to support growth, advancement and 
active communication for the good of the City. Employee shall distribute to and share with the 
City Manger written material and information distributed by the said associations. 



SECTION 20. LICENSING AND TRAINING. Employer agrees to budget and pay for the 
professional licensing and continued education of Employee for training as necessary and 
approved by the City Manager. 

SECTION 21. TRAVEL EXPENSES. Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the 
travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for official and professional travel of Employee 
while on City Business, provided that the City Manager has first approved and authorized said 
travel and training expenses. 

SECTION 22. ATTORNEY'S FEES. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 
to this Agreement or the rights and duties of either relationship thereto, the prevailing party in 
such litigation shall be entitled in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to reasonable 
sum as and for attorney's fees which shall be determined by the court. 

SECTION 23. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT. The City 
Manager may fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, not in conflict with City 
Ordinances, Rules or Policies, as he/she may determine from time to time, relating to the 
performance of Employee. 

SECTION 24. NOTICES. Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by deposit in the 
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

EMPLOYER 
City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

EMPLOYEE 
Kevin Caldwell 
P.O. box 614 
Miranda, California 95553 

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the same 
manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of 
personal service or as of the date of deposit . of such . written in . the course of transmission in the 
United States Postal Service. 

SECTION 25. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. The text herein shall constitute the Agreement between parties. 
B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and 

executors of Employee. 
C. This Agreement shall become effective commencing immediately, subject to Section 17 

above. 
D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 
thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 



E. This Agreement (including all Exhibits attached hereto) contains the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
understandings with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be modified, changed, 
supplemented or amended except by written instrument signed by the party to be charged 
or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Rio Dell has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalf by its City Manager, and the Employee has signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate. 

EMPLOYEE 

Kevin Caldwell Date 
Community Development Director 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date 

EMPLOYER 

Ron Henrickson 
City Manager 

Date 



CITY OF RIO DELL 
FINANCE DIRECTOR 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered by and between the CITY 
OF RIO DELL, a municipal corporation of the State of California, hereinafter referred as the 
"Employer" and Stephanie Beauchaine, hereinafter referred to as "Employee" or "Finance 
Director", both of whom understand as follows: 

RECTIALS 

A. WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the servIces of said Stephanie 
Beauchaine as Finance Director of the City of Rio Dell; and 

B. WHEREAS, it is the desire of the EMPLOYER, to provide certain benefits, 
establish certain conditions of employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

C. WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the Finance Director of 
the said City; 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 
agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DUTIES. Employer hereby agrees to employ Stephanie Beauchaine as Finance 
Director of said Employer to perform the functions and duties specified in the Ordinances of 
said City, pursuant to California Government Code section 36506, and to perform other legally 
permissible and proper duties and functions as the Finance Director shall from time to time be 
assigned. 

SECTION 2. TERM. This Agreement shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, unless 
Employee's term of employment is terminated earlier as provided in this Section 2 or Section 3 
of this Agreement, or by the voluntary resignation of Employee. Should Employee elect to 
resign, Employee shall provide Employer with thirty (30) days written notice prior to 
resignation. 

a. Termination from Employment; 90 Day Limitation on Termination and 
Severance. Pay. Except in the event of immediate termination for cause as a result of 
a conviction or a plea of no contest to a felony as stated in Section 2.b. of this 
Agreement, below, the Finance Director shall not be terminated from employment 
within the ninety (90) day period following the appointment of a new City Manager. 
The purpose of this provision is to allow any newly appointed City Manager to 
directly observe the actions and ability of the Finance Director in the performance of 



the powers and duties of his/her office. In all other circumstances, the Finance 
Director can be terminated from employment with or without cause and for any 
reason (or no reason at all) following two (2) weeks written notice from the City 
Manager, and without notice under Section 2.b. of this Agreement. In the case of 
employment termination prior to expiration of this Agreement (i.e., prior to June 30, 
2014) the Finance Director shall be entitled to receive severance in a lump sum and 
all unused vacation, and executive leave time, as Employee's sole and exclusive 
remedy and right(s) to payment at employment termination. "Severance" shall be 
paid according to the following schedule: 

Years of Continuous Service 

0-1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 years 
3-4 years 

Severance Pay 

2 months salary 
3 months salary 
4 months salary 
5 months salary 

b. Severance Payment Exception. Should the Finance Director be terminated for cause 
or as a result of a conviction or plea of no contest to a felony no severance pay will be 
provided upon employment termination. If the Finance Director voluntarily leaves 
employment with the City of Rio Dell or resigns, no severance pay will be provided upon 
separation. 

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OR REMOVAL. The Employee may be suspended, removed, or 
dismissed from the service of the City of Rio Dell at any time during the term of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 2 above or to the provisions of any applicable City of Rio Dell Ordinances. 

SECTION 4. DISABILITY. Employer may terminate Employee's employment if Employee 
suffers a disability that renders Employee unable, as determined in good faith by the City 
Manager, to perform the essential functions of the position, even with reasonable 
accommodation, for four months (twelve weeks) in any 12-month period. If Employee's 
employment is terminated under this Section 4, Employee shall be compensated for all accrued 
obligations through the termination date,which for purposes of this section shall be a date 
specified by the City Manager. Employer shall also pay to Employee a severance pay as set 
forth in Section 2 above. After the termination date, Employer shall not pay to Employee any 
other compensation or payment of any kind, or severance, or payment in lieu of notice. All 
benefits provided by Employer to Employee under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease on 
the Termination Date. 

SECTION 5. SALARY. Employer agrees to pay Employee for their services rendered an annual 
salary of Sixty Eight Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Two Dollars ($68,822) beginning July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013, payable in installments at the same time as other employees of 
Employer are paid. If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public 
Safety/SupplementalLaw Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for 
any full months during said year Employees salary shall be increased to Sixty Nine Thousand 



Four Hundred Ninety Seven Dollars ($69,497) and will be paid retroactively if funding is 
received after July 1, 2012, but applicable for prior full months. 

Employer also agrees that Employees annual salary beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2014, may be increased upon approval of the City Manager following a performance review by 
Two (2) percent above that payable on June 30, 2013. If the City receives at least $60,000 in 
Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding 
(COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during said year Employees salary may 
be increased upon approval of the City Manager by an additional One (1) percent of salary 
payable on June 30, 2013, and will be paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1, 2013, 
but applicable for prior full months. 

SECTION 6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. The City Manager shall review and 
evaluate the performance of the Employee not later than six (6), twelve (12) and twenty four (24) 
months from the effective date of this Agreement. From time to time as may mutually be deemed 
appropriate, the City Manager and Employee shall define such goals and performance objectives 
in writing which are determined necessary for the proper operation of the Department and City. 
Such goals and performance objectives shall be considered as part of the annual performance 
review of Employee. 

SECTION 7. HOURS OF WORK. It is recognized that Employee may be expected to work in 
excess of eighty (80) hours per pay period at the direction of the City Manager. Employee shall 
receive no overtime payor compensatory time off. Employee acknowledges that the position of 
Wastewater Superintendent is an administrative level, supervisorial position exempt from rights 
to overtime pay under California Wage and Hour law and regulations. Employer through the 
City Manager may accommodate a flexible schedule in the form of a modified work week and/or 
working from home so long as the City Manager determines that the needs of the City are 
adequately met. 

SECTION 8. OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES. Employee agrees to 
remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become employed by any other employer 
in other employment until termination of the employment relationship. The term "other 
employment" shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing,consulting, or 
military reserve service performed on Employees time off. Employees shall not spend more than 
four (4) hours per week in teaching, counseling, or other non-employer connected business 
without the prior written approval of the City Manager. 

SECTION 9. AUTOMOBILE. Employee's duties require that shelhe shall have the use at all 
times during hislher employment with Employer an automobile to perform Employer's business. 
Employee's use of hislherprivate vehicle for City business shall be reimbursed to Employee at 
the current standard mileage rate as published by the United States Internal Revenue Service. 
Subject to the provisions of the City's separate Travel and Reimbursement Resolution, Employee 
shall be responsible for paying for all gas, maintenance, and repair of said automobile. 
Employee shall be responsible for paying for all liability, property damage, and comprehensive 
insurance on said automobile. Employee shall maintain a valid driver's license and maintain 



insurable driving status as defined by City's insurance coverage. Employee shall provide employer 
with a Department of Motor Vehicle H-6 report annually to verify minimum driving standards. 

SECTION 10. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME. 
Employee will receive eighty (80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year. The taking of 
vacation and executive leave time shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Manager, 
who shall not unreasonably withhold their approval. 

Employee may be paid any unused portion on the first pay period of December and/or the first 
pay period of June. Employee will accrue sick leave at 8.00 hours each calendar month actually 
worked by Employee, and vacation time as follows: 

Years of Continuous Service 

One to three (1-3) 
Four to ten (4-10) 
Eleven to fifteen (11-15) 
Sixteen to Twenty (16-20) 

Hours per Year 

80 hours 
120 hours 
160 hours 
200 hours 

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays as the Rio Dell Employees' 
Association. 

SECTION 11. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE. The amount of vacation time allowed to be 
accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed the annual amount of vacation time for the 
year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon reaching the applicable vacation accrual 
maximum (i.e., 120 hours), the employee will not accumulate additional vacation time until such 
time that the employee's accrued leave is below the applicable vacation accrual maximum. 

SECTION 12. WORK RELATED EXPENSES REIMBURSMENT. Employer agrees to 
reimburse the Employee such verifiable work related out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the 
Employee as approved by the City Manger. Employee shall submit an itemization schedule of 
his out-of-pocket expenses to the City Manager in writing in the form of a purchase order for 
payment. Employer also agrees to pay employee a monthly cell·· phone allowance to ensure 
employee is contactable at all times. Employee must maintain cell phone service. The City's cell 
phone policy established by separate Resolution of the City Council is applicable in all regards 
for Employee. 

SECTION 13. MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT. Medical, 
Dental and Vision Insurance shall be provided for the Wastewater Superintendent as the City 
provides for other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 100% of 
the premium costs for these benefits for the employee and 70% of the total premium costs for 
employee's dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in the plan 
document. Should the City choose alternative medical coverage during the effective period of 
this Agreement, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or greater comprehensive coverage, 
than which is currently in place. Employees may elect to substitute compensation for health, 
dental, and vision insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125 per pay period 

9D 



for all health, VISIOn and dental coverage, collectively. Proof of health insurance must be 
provided to employer. 

SECTION 14.DEFERRED COMPENSATION. The Employer does not yet participate in and 
is not a party to the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of California. The 
Employer participates in a deferred Compensation Plan. The Employer shall contribute and pay 
an amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of the Employee's salary to the Deferred 
Compensation Plan to the extent accrued proportional to the amount of time worked during any 
gIVen year. 

SECTION 15. LIFE INSURANCE. A TERM LIFE INSURANCE POLICY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) shall be provided by the Employer 
for the Employee. 

SECTION 16. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE. This Employment Agreement shall become 
effective July 1, 2012 and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, subject to potential early 
termination under Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement and changes pursuant to amendments or 
adjustments made at mutually agreed upon times throughout Employee's term of employment 
with Employer. 

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION. Employer shall defend, save harmless and indemnify 
Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action arising out 
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee's duties as Wastewater 
Superintendent. Employer's indemnity obligation shall not apply to any claims or liabilities, of 
any type or nature, arising out of any intentional acts, criminal acts or willful misconduct of 
Employee. 

SECTION 18. BONDING. Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required of the Employee under any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 19. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS. Employer agrees to budget and to pay for the 
professional dues and subscriptions of employee necessary to support growth, advancement and 
active communication for the good of the City. Employee shall distribute to and share with the 
City Manger written material and information distributed by the said associations. 

SECTION 20. LICENSING AND TRAINING. Employer agrees to budget and pay for the 
professional licensing and continued education of Employee for training as necessary and 
approved by the City Manager. 

qI 



SECTION 21. TRAVEL EXPENSES. Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the 
travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for official and professional travel of Employee 
while on City Business, provided that the City Manager has first approved and authorized said 
travel and training expenses. 

SECTION 22. ATTORNEY'S FEES. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 
to this Agreement or the rights and duties of either relationship thereto, the prevailing party in 
such litigation shall be entitled in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to reasonable 
sum as and for attorney's fees which shall be determined by the court. 

SECTION 23. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT. The City 
Manager may fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, not in conflict with City 
Ordinances, Rules or Policies, as he/she may determine from time to time, relating to the 
performance of Employee. 

SECTION 24. NOTICES. Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by deposit in the 
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

EMPLOYER 
City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

EMPLOYEE 
Stephanie Beauchaine 
1228 Riverside Drive 
Rio Dell, California 95561 

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the same 
manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of 
personal service or as of the date of deposit of such written in the course of transmission in the 
United States Postal Service. 

SECTION 25. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. The text herein shall constitute the Agreement between parties. 
B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and 

executors of Employee. 
C. This Agreement shall become effective commencing immediately, subject to Section 17 

above. 
D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 
thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

E. This Agreement (including all Exhibits attached hereto) contains the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
understandings with respect 'thereto. This Agreement may not be modified, changed, 
supplemented or amended except by written instrument signed by the party to be charged 
or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Rio Dell has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalf by its City Manager, and the Employee has signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate. 

EMPLOYEE 

Stephanie Beauchaine 
Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date 

Date 

EMPLOYER 

Ron Henrickson 
City Manager 

Date 



CITY OF RIO DELL 
WASTEWATER SUPERINTENDENT 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered by and between the CITY 
OF RIO DELL, a municipal corporation of the State of California, hereinafter referred as the 
"Employer" and John R. Chicora Jr., hereinafter referred to as "Employee" or "Wastewater 
Superintendent", both of whom understand as follows: 

RECTIALS 

A. WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said John Chicora as 
Wastewater Superintendent of the City of Rio Dell; and 

B. WHEREAS, it is the desire of the EMPLOYER, to provide certain benefits, 
establish certain conditions of employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

C. WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the Wastewater 
Superintendent of the said City; 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 
agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DUTIES. Employer hereby agrees to employ John Chicora as Wastewater 
Superintendent of said Employer to perform the functions and duties specified in the 
Ordinances of said City, pursuant to California Government Code section 36506, and to perform 
other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Wastewater Superintendent shall 
from time to time assign. 

SECTION 2. TERM. This Agreement shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, unless 
Employee's term of employment is terminated earlier as provided in this Section 2 or Section 3 
of this Agreement, or by the voluntary resignation of Employee. Should Employee elect to 
resign, Employee shall provide Employer with thirty (30) days written notice prior to 
resignation. 

a. Termination from Emplovment; 90 Day Limitation on Termination and 
Severance Pay. Except in the event of immediate termination for cause as a result of 
a conviction or a plea of no contest to a felony as stated in Section 2.b. of this 
Agreement, below, the Wastewater Superintendent shall not be terminated from 
employment within the ninety (90) day period following the appointment of a new 
City Manager. The purpose of this provision is to allow any newly appointed City 
Manager to directly observe the actions and ability of the Wastewater Superintendent 



in the performance of the powers and duties of his office. In all other circumstances, 
the Wastewater Superintendant can be terminated from employment with or without 
cause and for any reason (or no reason at all) following two (2) weeks written 
notice from the City Manager, and without notice under Section 2.b. of this 
Agreement. In the case of employment termination prior to expiration of this 
Agreement (i.e., prior to June 30, 2014) the Wastewater Superintendent shall be 
entitled to receive severance in a lump sum and all unused vacation, and executive 
leave time, as Employee's sole and exclusive remedy and right(s) to payment at 
employment termination. "Severance" shall be paid according to the following 
schedule: 

Years of Continuous Service 

0-1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 years 
3-4 years 

Severance Pay 

2 months salary 
3 months salary 
4 months salary 
5 months salary 

b. Severance Payment Exception. Should the Wastewater Superintendent be terminated 
for cause or as a result of a conviction or plea of no contest to a felony no severance pay 

,will be provided upon employment termination. If the Wastewater Superintendent 
voluntarily leaves employment with the City of Rio Dell or resigns, no severance pay will 
be provided,upon separation. 

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OR REMOVAL. The Employee may be suspended, removed, or 
dismissed from the service of the City of Rio Dell at any time during the term of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 2 above or to the provisions of any applicable City of Rio Dell Ordinances. 

SECTION 4. DISABILITY. Employer may terminate Employee's employment if Employee 
suffers a disability that renders Employee unable, as determined in good faith by the City 
Manager, to perform the essential functions of the position, even with reasonable 
accommodation,Jorfour months (twelve weeks) in any 12-month period. If Employee's 
employment is termin~ted under this Section 4, Employee shall be compensated for all accrued 
obligations through the termination date, which for purposes of this section shall be a date 
specified by the City Manager. Employer shall also pay to Employee a severance pay as set 
forth in Section 2 above. After the termination date, Employer shall not pay to Employee any 
other compensation or payment of any kind, or severance, or payment in lieu of notice. All 
benefits provided by Employer to Employee under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease on 
the Termination Date. 

SECTION 5. SALARY. Employer agrees to pay Employee for their services rendered an 
annual salary of Fifty Two Thousand Two Hundred Sixty Dollars ($52,260) beginning July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013, payable in installments at the same time intervals as other 
employees of Employer are paid. If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for 
Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding 

95 



applicable for any full months during said year Employees salary shall be increased to Fifty Two 
Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy Two Dollars ($52,772) and will be paid retroactively if 
funding is received after July 1, 2012, but applicable for prior full months. 

Employer also agrees that Employee's annual salary beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2014, shall be increased by two percent (2%) above that payable on June 30, 2013. If the City 
receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement 
Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during said year 
Employees salary shall be increased by an additional one percent (1 %) of salary payable on June 
30, 2013, and will be paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1, 2013, but applicable 
for prior full months. 

SECTION 6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. The City Manager shall review and 
evaluate the performance of the Employee not later than twelve (12) and twenty four (24) 
months from the effective date of this Agreement. From time to time as may mutually be deemed 
appropriate, the City Manager and Employee shall define such goals and performance objectives 
in writing which are determined necessary for the proper operation of the Department and City. 
Such goals and performance objectives shall be considered as part of the annual performance 
review of Employee. 

SECTION 7. HOURS OF WORK. It is recognized that Employee may be expected to work in 
excess of eighty (80) hours per pay period at the direction of the City Manager. Employee shall 
receive no overtime payor compensatory time off. Employee acknowledges that the position of 
Wastewater Superintendent is an administrative level, supervisorial position exempt from rights 
to overtime pay under California Wage and Hour law and regulations. 

SECTION 8. OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES. Employee agrees to 
remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become employed by any other employer 
in other employment until termination of the employment relationship. The term "other 
employment" shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing, consulting, or 
military reserve service performed on Employees time off. Employees shall not spend more than 
four (4) hours per week in teaching, counseling, or other non-employer connected business 
without the prior written approval of the City Manager. 

SECTION 9. AUTOMOBILE. Employee's duties require that shelhe shall have the use at all 
times during her employment with Employer an automobile to perform Employer's business. 
Employee's use of hislher private vehicle for City business shall be reimbursed to Employee at 
the current standard mileage rate as published by the United States Internal Revenue Service. 
Subject to the provisions ofthe City's separate Travel and Reimbursement Resolution, Employee 
shall be responsible for paying for all gas, maintenance, and repair of said automobile. 
Employee shall be responsible for paying for all liability, property damage, and comprehensive 
insurance on said automobile. Employee shall maintain a valid driver's license and maintain 
insurable driving status as defined by City's insurance coverage. Employee shall provide employer 
with a Department of Motor Vehicle H -6 report annually to verify minimum driving standards. 

9& 



SECTION 10. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME. 
Employee will receive eighty (80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year. The taking of 
vacation and executive leave time shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Manager, 
who shall not unreasonably withhold their approval. 

Employee may be paid any unused portion on the first pay period of December and/or the first 
pay period of June. Employee will accrue sick leave at 8.00 hours each calendar month actually 
worked by Employee, and vacation time as follows: 

Years of Continuous Service 

One to three (1-3) 
Four to ten (4-10) 
Eleven to fifteen (11-15) 
Sixteen to Twenty (16-20) 

Hours per Year 

80 hours 
120 hours 
160 hours 
200 hours 

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays as the Rio Dell Employees' 
Association. 

SECTION 11. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE. The amount of vacation time allowed to be 
accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed the annual amount of vacation time for the 
year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon reaching the applicable vacation accrual 
maximum (i.e., 120 hours), the employee will not accumulate additional vacation time until such 
time that the employee's accrued leave is below the applicable vacation accrual maximum. 

SECTION 12. WORK RELATED EXPENSES REIMBURSMENT._Employer agrees to pay 
a $500.00 annual clothing allowance payable $125.00 quarterly. Employer also agrees to pay 
employee a monthly cell phone allowance to ensure employee can be contacted at all times. 
Employee must maintain cell phone service. The City's cell phone policy established by separate 
Resolution of the City Council is applicable in all regards for Employee. 

SECTION 13. MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT. Medical, 
Dental and Vision Insurance shaUbe provided for the Wastewater Superintendent as the City 
provides for other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 100% of 
the premium costs for these benefits for the employee and 70% of the total premium costs for 
employee's dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in the plan 
document. Should the City choose alternative medical coverage during the effective period of 
this Agreement, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or greater comprehensive coverage, 
than which is currently in place. Employees may elect to substitute compensation for health, 
dental, and vision insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125 per pay period 
for all health, vision and dental coverage, collectively. Proof of health insurance must be 
provided to employer. 

SECTION 14.DEFERRED COMPENSATION. The Employer does not yet participate in and 
is not a party to the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of California. The 
Employer participates in a deferred Compensation Plan. The Employer shall contribute and pay 



an amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of the Employee's salary to the Deferred 
Compensation Plan to the extent accrued proportional to the amount of time worked during any 
given year. 

SECTION 15. LIFE INSURANCE._A TERM LIFE INSURANCE POLICY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) shall be provided by the Employer for the 
Employee, with the Employee entitled to designate Employee's beneficiary. 

SECTION 16. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE. This Employment Agreement shall become 
effective July 1, 2012 and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, subject to potential early 
termination under Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement and changes pursuant to amendments or 
adjustments made at mutually agreed upon times throughout Employee's term of employment 
with Employer. 

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION. Employer shall defend, save harmless and indemnify 
Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action arising out 
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee's duties as Wastewater 
Superintendent. Employer's indemnity obligation shall not apply to any claims or liabilities, of 
any type or nature, arising out of any intentional acts, criminal acts or willful misconduct of 
Employee. 

SECTION 18. BONDING. Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required of the Employee under any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 19. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS. Employer agrees to budget and to pay for the 
professional dues and subscriptions of employee necessary to support growth, advancement and 
active communication for the good of the City. Employee shall distribute to and share with the 
City Manger written material and information distributed by the said associations. 

SECTION 20. LICENSING AND TRAINING. Employer agrees to budget and pay for the 
professional licensing and continued education of Employee for training as necessary and 
approved by the City Manager. 

SECTION 21. TRAVEL EXPENSES. Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the 
travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for official and professional travel of Employee 
while on City Business, provided that the City Manager has first approved and authorized said 
travel and training expenses. 

SECTION 22. ATTORNEY'S FEES. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 
to this AgreementQr the rights and· duties of either relationship thereto, the prevailing party in 
such litigation shall be entitled in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to reasonable 
sum as and for attorney's fees which shall be determined by the court. 



SECTION 23. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT. The City 
Manager may fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, not in conflict with City 
Ordinances, Rules or Policies, as he/she may determine from time to time, relating to the 
performance of Employee. 

SECTION 24. NOTICES. Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by deposit in the 
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

EMPLOYER 
City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

EMPLOYEE 
John Chicora 
1025 Riverside Drive 
Rio Dell, California 95561 

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the same 
manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of 
personal service or as of the date of deposit of such written in the course of transmission in the 
United States Postal Service. 

SECTION 25. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. The text herein shall constitute the Agreement between parties. 
B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and 

executors of Employee 
C. This Agreement shall become effective commencing immediately, subject to Section 17 

above. 
D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 
thereof, shall be deemed severable,shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

E. This Agreement (including all Exhibits attached hereto) contains the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
understandings with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be modified, changed, 
supplemented or amended except by written instrument signed by the party to be charged 
or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein. 

qq 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Rio Dell has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalf by its City Manager, and the Employee has signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate. 

EMPLOYEE 

John R. Chicora Jr., 
Wastewater Superintendent 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date 

Date 

EM}lLOYER 

Ron Henrickson 
City Manager 

Date 



CITY OF RIO DELL 
CITY CLERK 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered by and between the CITY 
OF RIO DELL, a municipal corporation of the State of California, hereinafter referred as the 
"Employer" and Karen Dunham, hereinafter referred to as "Employee" or "City Clerk", both 
of whom understand as follows: 

RECTIALS 

A. WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said Karen Dunham as 
City Clerk of the City of Rio Dell; and 

B. WHEREAS, it is the desire of the EMPLOYER, to provide certain benefits, 
establish certain conditions of employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

C. WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the City Clerk of the 
said City; 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 
agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DUTIES. Employer hereby agrees to employ Karen Dunham as City Clerk of 
said Employer to perform the functions and duties specified in the Ordinances of said City, 
pursuant to California Government Code section 36506, and to perform other legally permissible 
and proper duties and functions as the City Clerk shall from time to time be assigned. 

SECTION 2~T-ERM. This Agreement shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, unless 
Employee's term of employment is terminated earlier as provided in this Section 2 or Section 3 
of this Agreement, or by the voluntary resignation of Employee. Should Employee elect to 
resign, Employee shall provide Employer with thirty (30) days written notice prior to 
resignation. 

a. Termination from Employment; 90 Day Limitation on Termination and 
Severance Pay. Except in the event of immediate termination for cause as a result of 
a conviction or a plea of no contest to a felony as stated in Section 2.b. of this 
Agreement, below, the City Clerk shall not be terminated from employment within 
the ninety (90) day period following the appointment of a new City Manager. The 
purpose of this provision is to allow any newly appointed City Manager to directly 
observe the actions and ability of the City Clerk in the performance of the powers and 
duties of his /her office. In all other circumstances, the City Clerk can be terminated 

)OI 



from employment with or without cause and for any reason (or no reason at all) 
following two (2) weeks written notice from the City Manager, and without notice 
under Section 2.b. of this Agreement. In the case of employment termination prior to 
expiration of this Agreement (i.e., prior to June 30, 2014) the City Clerk shall be 
entitled to receive severance in a lump sum and all unused vacation, and executive 
leave time, as Employee's sole and exclusive remedy and right(s) to payment at 
employment termination. "Severance" shall be paid according to the following 
schedule: 

Years of Continuous Service 

0-1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 years 
3-4 years 

Severance Pay 

2 months salary 
3 months salary 
4 months salary 
5 months salary 

b. Severance Payment Exception. Should the City Clerk be terminated for cause or as a 
result of a conviction or plea of no contest to a felony no severance pay will be provided 
upon einployment termination. If the City Clerk voluntarily leaves employment with the 
City of Rio Dell or resigns, no severance pay will be provided upon separation. 

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OR REMOVAL. The Employee may be suspended, removed, or 
dismissed from the service of the City of Rio Dell at any time during the term of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 2 above or to the provisions of any applicable City of Rio Dell Ordinances. 

SECTION 4. DISABILITY. Employer may terminate Employee's employment if Employee 
suffers a disability that renders Employee unable, as determined in good faith by the City 
Manager, to perform the essential functions of the position, even with reasonable 
accommodation, for four months (twelve weeks) in any 12-month period. If Employee's 
employment is terminated under this Section 4, Employee shall be compensated for all accrued 
obligations through the termination date, which for purposes of this section shall be a date 
specified by the City Manager. Employer shall also pay to Employee a severance pay as set 
forth in Section 2 above. After the termination date, Employer shall not pay to Employee any 
other compensation or payment of any kind, or severance, or payment in lieu of notice. All 
benefits provided by Employer to Employee under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease on 
the Termination Date. 

SECTION 5. SALARY. Employer agrees to pay Employee for their services rendered an annual 
salary of Fifty Six Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Eight Dollars ($56,358) beginning July 1, 
2012 through June 30, 2013, payable in installments at the same time as other employees of 
Employer are paid. Subject to the approval of the City Manager after a performance evaluation to 
be conducted in December of 2012 and provided the City receives at least $30,000 in Citizens 
Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) 
funding applicable for the period January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013 the Employee's salary shall 
be increased up to Fifty Six Thousand Nine Hundred Eleven Dollars ($56,911). 

)D~ 



Employer also agrees that Employees annual salary beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2014, may be increased upon approval of the City Manager following a performance review by 
Two (2) percent above that payable on June 30, 2013. If the City receives at least $60,000 in 
Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding 
(COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during said year Employees salary may 
be increased upon approval of the City Manager by an additional One (1) percent of salary 
payable on June 30, 2013, and will be paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1,2013, 
but applicable for prior full months. 

SECTION 6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. The City Manager shall review and 
evaluate the performance of the Employee not later than twelve (12) and twenty four (24) 
months from the effective date of this Agreement. From time to time as may mutually be deemed 
appropriate, the City Manager and Employee shall define such goals and performance objectives 
in writing which are determined necessary for the proper operation of the Department and City. 
Such goals and performance objectives shall be considered as part of the annual performance 
review of Employee. 

SECTION 7. HOURS OF WORK. It is recognized that Employee may be expected to work in 
excess of eighty (80) hours per pay period at the direction of the City Manager. Employee shall 
receive no overtime payor compensatory time off. Employee acknowledges that the position of 
City Clerk is an administrative level, supervisorial position exempt from rights to overtime pay 
under California Wage and Hour law and regulations. 

SECTION 8. OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES. Employee agrees to. 
remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become employed by any other employer 
in other employment until termination of the employment relationship. The term "other 
employment" shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing, consulting, or 
military reserve service performed on Employees time off. Employees shall not spend more than 
four (4) hours per week in teaching, counseling, or other non-employer connected business 
without the prior written approval ofthe City Manager . 

. SECTION 9. AU.TO.:MOBILE. Employee'.sduties requirethatsheLheshallhave. the use at alL 
times during his/her employment with Employer an automobile to perform Employer's business. 
Employee's use of hislher private vehicle for City business shall be reimbursed to Employee at 
the current standard mileage rate as published by the United States Internal Revenue Service. 
Subject to the provisions of the City's separate Travel and Reimbursement Resolution, Employee 
shall be responsible for paying for all gas, maintenance, and repair of said automobile. 
Employee shall be responsible for paying for all liability, property damage, and comprehensive 
insurance on said automobile. Employee shall maintain a valid driver's license and maintain 
insurable driving status as defined by City's insurance coverage. Employee shall provide employer 
with a Department of Motor VehicleH-6 report annually to verify minimum driving standards. 



SECTION 10. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME. 
Employee will receive forty (40) hours of executive leave each fiscal year. The taking of 
vacation and executive leave time shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Manager, 
who shall not unreasonably withhold their approval. 

Employee may be paid any unused portion on the first pay period of December and/or the first 
pay period of June. Employee will accrue sick leave at 8.00 hours each calendar month actually 
worked by Employee and vacation time as follows: 

Years of Continuous Service 

One to three (1-3) 
Four to ten (4-10) 
Eleven to fifteen (11-15) 
Sixteen to Twenty (16-20) 

Hours per Year 

80 hours 
120 hours 
160 hours 
200 hours 

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays as the Rio Dell Employees' 
Association. 

SECTION 11. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE. The amount of vacation time allowed to be 
accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed the annual amount of vacation time for the 
year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon reaching the applicable vacation accrual 
maximum (i.e., 120 hours), the employee will not accumulate additional vacation time until such 
time that the employee's accrued leave is below the applicable vacation accrual maximum . 

. SECTION 12. MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT. Medical, 
Dental and Vision Insurance shall be provided for the Wastewater Superintendent as the City 
provides for other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 100% of 
the premium costs for these benefits for the employee and 70% of the total premium costs for 
employee's dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in the plan 
document. Should the City choose alternative medical coverage during the effective period of 
this Agreement, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or greater comprehensive coverage, 
than which is currently in ~place. Employees may elect to substitute compensation for health, 
dental, and vision insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125 per pay period 
for all health, vision and dental coverage, collectively. Proof of health insurance must be 
provided to employer. 

SECTION 13.DEFERRED COMPENSATION. The Employer does not yet participate in and 
is not a party to the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of California. The 
Employer participates in a deferred Compensation Plan. The Employer shall contribute and pay 
an amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of the Employee's salary to the Deferred 
Compensation Plan to the extent accrued proportional to the amount of time worked during any 
given year. 

JDL/ 



SECTION 14. LIFE INSURANCE. A TERM LIFE INSURANCE POLICY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) shall be provided by the Employer for the 
Employee, with the Employee entitled to designate Employee's beneficiary. 

SECTION 15. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE. This Employment Agreement shall become 
effective July 1,2012 and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, subject to potential early 
termination under Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement and changes pursuant to amendments or 
adjustments made at mutually agreed upon times throughout Employee's term of employment 
with Employer. 

SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. Employer shall defend, save harmless and indemnify 
Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action arising out 
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee's duties as City Clerk. 
Employer's indemnity obligation shall not apply to any claims or liabilities, of any type or 
nature, arising out of any intentional acts, criminal acts or willful misconduct of Employee. 

SECTION 17. BONDING. Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required of the Employee under any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 18. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS. Employer agrees to budget and to pay for the 
professional dues and· subscriptions of employee necessary to support growth, advancement and 
active communication for the good of the City. Employee shall distribute to and share with the 
City Manger written material and information distributed by the said associations. 

SECTION 19. LICENSING AND TRAINING. Employer agrees to budget and pay for the 
professional licensing and continued education of Employee for training as necessary and 
approved by the City Manager. 

SECTION 20. TRAVEL EXPENSES. Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the 
travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for official and professional travel of Employee 
while on City Business, provided that the City Manager has first approved and authorized said 
travel and training expenses. 

SECTION 21. ATTORNEY'S FEES. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 
to this Agreement or the rights and duties of either relationship thereto, the prevailing party in 
such litigation shall be entitled in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to reasonable 
sum as and for attorney's fees which shall be determined by the court. 

SECTION 22. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT. The City 
Manager may fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, not in conflict with City 
Ordinances, Rules or Policies, as he/she may determine from time to time, relating to the 
performance of Employee. 

SECTION 23. NOTICES. Notic.es pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by deposit in the 
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

JOS-



EMPLOYER 
City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

EMPLOYEE 
Karen Dunham 
136 Ogle Avenue 
Rio Dell, California 95561 

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the same 
manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of 
personal service or as of the date of deposit of such written in the course of transmission in the 
United States Postal Service. 

SECTION 24. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. The text herein shall constitute the Agreement between parties. 
B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and 

executors of Employee 
C. This Agreement shall become effective commencing immediately, subject to Section 17 

above. 
D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 
thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

E. This Agreement (including all Exhibits attached hereto) contains the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
understandings with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be modified, changed, 
supplemented or amended except by written instrument signed by the party to be charged 
or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Rio Dell has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalf by its City Manager, and the Employee has signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate. 

EMPLOYEE 

Karen Dunham 
City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney 

Date 

Date 

EMPLOYER 

Ron Henrickson 
City Manager 

Date 

}DlP 



CITY OF RIO DELL 
WATER AND ROADWAYS SUPERINTENDENT 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered by and between the CITY 
OF RIO DELL, a municipal corporation of the State of California, hereinafter referred as the 
"Employer" and Randy Jensen, hereinafter referred to as "Employee" or "Water and 
Roadways Superintendent", both of whom understand as follows: 

RECTIALS 

A. WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ the services of said Randy Jensen as 
Water and Roadways Superintendent of the City of Rio Dell; and 

B. WHEREAS, it is the desire of the EMPLOYER, to provide certain benefits, 
establish certain conditions of employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

C. WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the Water and 
Roadways Superintendent of the said City; 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 
agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DUTIES. Employer hereby agrees to employ Randy Jensen as Water and 
Roadways Superintendent of said Employer to perform the functions and duties specified in 
the Ordinances of said City, pursuant to California Government Code section 36506, and to 
perform other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Wastewater 
Superintendent shall from time to time be assigned. 

SECTION 2. TERM. This Agreement shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, unless 
Employee's term of employment is terminated earlier as provided in this Section 2 or Section 3 
of this Agreement, or by the voluntary resignation of Employee. Should Employee elect to 
resign, Employee shall provide Employer with thirty (30) days written notice prior to 
resignation. 

a. Termination from Employment; 90 Day Limitation on Termination and 
Severance Pay. Except in the event of immediate termination for cause as a result of 
a conviction or a plea of no contest to a felony as stated in Section 2.b. of this 
Agreement, below, the Water and Roadways Superintendent shall not be terminated 
from employment within the ninety (90) day period following the appointment of a 
new City Manager. The purpose of this provision is to allow any newly appointed 
City Manager to directly observe the actions and ability of the Water and Roadways 

JD7 



Superintendent in the performance of the powers and duties of his office. In all other 
circumstances, the Water and Roadways Superintendant can be terminated from 
employment with or without cause and for any reason (or no reason at aU) 
following two (2) weeks written notice from the City Manager, and without notice 
under Section 2.b. of this Agreement. In the case of employment termination prior to 
expiration of this Agreement (i.e., prior to June 30, 2014) the Water and Roadways 
Superintendent shall be entitled to receive severance in a lump sum and all unused 
vacation, and executive leave time, as Employee's sole and exclusive remedy and 
right(s) to payment at employment termination. "Severance" shall be paid 
according to the following schedule: 

Years of Continuous Service 

0-1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 years 
3-4 years 

Severance Pay 

2 months salary 
3 months salary 
4 months salary 
5 months salary 

b. Severance Payment Exception. Should the Water and Roadways Superintendent be 
terminated for cause or as a result of a conviction or plea of no contest to a felony no 
severance pay will be provided upon employment termination. If the Water and 
Roadways Superintendent voluntarily leaves employment with the City of Rio Dell or 
resigns, no severance pay will be provided upon separation. 

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OR REMOVAL. The Employee may be suspended, removed, or 
dismissed from the service of the City of Rio Dell at any time during the term of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 2 above or to the provisions of any applicable City of Rio Dell Ordinances. 

SECTION 4. DISABILITY. Employer may terminate Employee's employment if Employee 
suffers a disability that renders Employee unable, as determined in good faith by the City 
Manager, to perform the essential functions of the position, even with reasonable 
Cl~cQ11l1IlOclCltion,for Jour lllontl1S (tw~lYt:wet:ks) jn any 12-mOllthperiod, If Employee's 
employment is terminated under this Section 4, Employee shall be compensated for all accrued 
obligations through the termination date, which for purposes of this section shall be a date 
specified by the City Manager. Employer shall also pay to Employee a severance pay as set 
forth in Section 2 above. After the termination date, Employer shall not pay to Employee any 
other compensation or payment of any kind, or severance, or payment in lieu of notice. All 
benefits provided by Employer to Employee under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease on 
the Termination Date. 

SECTION 5. SALARY. Employer agreesto pay Employee for their services rendered an annual 
salary of Fifty Eight Thousand Seve11 Hundred Ninety Two Dollars ($58,792) beginning July 1, 
2012 through Ju11e 30, 2013, payable in installments at the same time as other employees of 
Employer are paid. If the City receives at least $60,000 in Citizens Option for Public 
Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding (COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for 

)05/ 



any full months during said year Employees salary shall be increased to Fifty Nine Thousand 
Three Hundred Sixty Eight Dollars ($59,368) and will be paid retroactively if funding is 
received after July 1, 2012, but applicable for prior full months. 

Employer also agrees that Employees annual salary beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2014, may be increased upon approval of the City Manager following a performance review by 
Two (2) percent above that payable on June 30, 2013. If the City receives at least $60,000 in 
Citizens Option for Public Safety/Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funding 
(COPS/SLESF) funding applicable for any full months during said year Employees salary may 
be increased upon approval of the City Manager by an additional One (1) percent of salary 
payable on June 30, 2013, and will be paid retroactively if funding is received after July 1,2013, 
but applicable for prior full months. 

SECTION 6. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. The City Manager shall review and 
evaluate the performance of the Employee not later than twelve (12) and twenty four (24) 
months from the effective date of this Agreement. From time to time as may mutually be deemed 
appropriate, the City Manager and Employee shall define such goals and performance objectives 
in writing which are determined necessary for the proper operation of the Department and City. 
Such goals and performance objectives shall be considered as part of the annual performance 
review of Employee. 

SECTION 7. HOURS OF WORK. It is recognized that Employee may be expected to work in 
excess of eighty (80) hours per pay period at the direction of the City Manager. Employee shall 
receive no overtime payor compensatory time off. Employee acknowledges that the position of 
Water and Roadways Superintendent is an administrative level, supervisorial position exempt 
from rights to overtime pay under California Wage and Hour law and regulations. 

SECTION 8. OTHER EMPLOYERS OR OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES. Employee agrees to 
remain in the exclusive employ of Employer and not to become employed by any other employer 
in other employment until termination of the employment relationship. The term "other 
employment" shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing, consulting, or 
military reserve service performed on Employees time off. Employees shall not spend more than 
f()ll1"~(4}. 4(·lll!~p~r~~~}(.iIlJ~~chitlg,c()ll1!~~lillE,()I othel" n()Il-tilllIJl()yer C(>Il1l~cted business 
without the prior written approval of the City Manager. 

SECTION 9. AUTOMOBILE. Employee's duties require that shelhe shall have the use at all 
times during his/her employment with Employer an automobile to perform Employer's business. 
Employee's use of hislher private vehicle for City busi~ess shall. be reimbursed to Employee at 
the current standard mileage rate as published by the. United States Internal Revenue Service. 
Subject to the provisions.ofthe City's separate Travel and Reimbursement Resolution, Employee 
shall be responsible for paying for all gas, maintenance, and repair of said automobile. 
Employee shall be responsible for paying for allliabiljty, property damage, and comprehensive 
insurance on said automobile. Employee shall maintain a valid driver's license and. maintain 
insurable driving status as defined by City's insurance coverage. Empl()yee shall provide employer 
with a Department of Motor Vehicle H-6 report annually to verify minimum driving standards. 

roq 



SECTION 10. VACATION, SICK LEAVE, HOLIDAYS, AND EXECUTIVE TIME. 
Employee will receive eighty (80) hours of executive leave each fiscal year. The taking of 
vacation and executive leave time shall be coordinated with and approved by the City Manager, 
who shall not unreasonably withhold their approval. 

Employee may be paid any unused portion on the first pay period of December and/or the first 
pay period of June. Employee will accrue sick leave at 8.00 hours each calendar month actually 
worked by Employee, and vacation time as follows: 

Years of Continuous Service 

One to three (1-3) 
Four to ten (4-10) 
Eleven to fifteen (11-15) 
Sixteen to Twenty (16-20) 

Hours per Year 

80 hours 
120 hours 
160 hours 
200 hours 

Employee shall also be entitled to the same paid holidays as the Rio Dell Employees' 
Association. 

SECTION 11. ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE. The amount of vacation time allowed to be 
accrued at the end of any pay period shall not exceed the annual amount of vacation time for the 
year of service up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon reaching the applicable vacation accrual 
maximum (i.e., 120 hours), the employee will not accumulate additional vacation time until such 
time that the employee's accrued leave is below the applicable vacation accrual maximum. 

SECTION 12. WORK RELATED EXPENSES REIMBURSMENT. Employer agrees to pay 
a $500.00 annual clothing allowance payable $125.00 quarterly. Employer also agrees to pay 
employee a monthly cell phone allowance to ensure employee can be contacted at all times. 
Employee must maintain cell phone service. The City's cell phone policy established by separate 
Resolution of the City Council is applicable in all regards for Employee. 

SECTION 13. MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT. Medical, 
Dental and Vision Insurance shall be provided for the Water and Roadways Superintendent as 
the City provides for other management positions. The contribution amount by the City shall be 
100% of the premium costs for these benefits for the employee and 70% of the total premium 
costs for employee's dependents, depending on their age and status as a student as provided in 
the plan document. Should the City choose alternative medical coverage during the effective 
period of this Agreement, that alternative insurance shall be of equal or greater comprehensive 
coverage, than which is currently in place. Employees may elect to substitute compensation for 
health, dental, and vision insurance coverage. The level of compensation shall be $125 per pay 
period for all health, vision and dental coverage, collectively. Proof of health insurance must be 
provided to employer. 

110 



SECTION 14.DEFERRED COMPENSATION. The Employer does not yet participate in and 
is not a party to the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of California. The 
Employer participates in a deferred Compensation Plan. The Employer shall contribute and pay 
an amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of the Employee's salary to the Deferred 
Compensation Plan to the extent accrued proportional to the amount of time worked during any 
given year. 

SECTION 15. LIFE INSURANCE. A TERM LIFE INSURANCE POLICY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) shall be provided by the Employer for the 
Employee, with the Employee entitled to designate Employee's beneficiary. 

SECTION 16. AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE. This Employment Agreement shall become 
effective July 1, 2012 and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2014, subject to potential early 
termination under Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement and changes pursuant to amendments or 
adjustments made at mutually agreed upon times throughout Employee's term of employment 
with Employer. 

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION. Employer shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
Employee against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action arising out 
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee's duties as Wastewater 
Superintendent. Employer's indemnity obligation shall not apply to any claims or liabilities, of 
any type or nature, arising out of any intentional acts, criminal acts or willful misconduct of 
Employee. 

SECTION 18. BONDING. Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required of the Employee under any law or ordinance. 

SECTION 19. DUES AND SUBSRIPTIONS. Employer agrees to budget and to pay for the 
professional dues and SUbscriptions of employee necessary to support growth, advancement and 
active communication for the good of the City. Employee shall distribute to and share with the 
City Manger written material and information distributed by the said associations. 

SECltONIo.LICENSING AND TRAINING. Employer agrees to budget and pay for the 
professional licensing· and continued education of Employee for training as necessary and 
approved by the City Manager. 

SECTION 21. TRAVEL EXPENSES. Employer hereby agrees to budget for and to pay the 
travel and sub~istence expenses of Employee for official and professional travel of Employee 
while on City Business, provided that the City Manager has first approved and authorized said 
travel and training expenses. 

SECTION 22. ATTORNEY'S FEES. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 
to this Agreement or the right~ and duties of either relationship thereto, the prevailing party in 
such litigation sfiitllhe entitled in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to reasonable 
sum as and for attorney's fees which shall be determined by the court. 

)11 



SECTION 23. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT. The City 
Manager may fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, not in conflict with City 
Ordinances, Rules or Policies, as he/she may determine from time to time, relating to the 
performance of Employee. 

SECTION 24. NOTICES. Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by deposit in the 
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

EMPLOYER 
City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, California 95562 

EMPLOYEE 
Randy Jensen 
3230 Tami Court 
Fortuna, California 95540 

Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the same 
manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of 
personal service or as of the date of deposit of such written in the course of transmission in the 
United States Postal Service. 

SECTION 25. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. The text herein shall constitute the Agreement between parties. 
B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and 

executors of Employee. 
C. This Agreement shall become effective commencing immediately, subject to Section 17 

above. 
D. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 
thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

E. This AgieemenC(inchiding all EXhibits attached h.ereto) contains the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
understandings with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be modified, changed, 
supplemented or amended except by written instrument signed by the party to be charged 
or by its agent duly authorized in writing or as otherwise expressly permitted herein. 

II '). 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Rio Dell has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalf by its City Manager, and the Employee has signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate. 

EMPLOYEE 

Randy Jensen Date 
Water and Roadways Superintendent 

Approved as to form: 

Russ Gans, City Attorney Date 

EMPLOYER 

Ron Henrickson 
City Manager 

Date 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

THROUGH: Ron Henrickson, City Manager 

FROM: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director 

DATE: May 29,2012 

SUBJECT: Draft Operating Budget 

RECOMMENDATION 

Receive and File 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 

The Revised Operating Budget provides for an operating surplus in the amount of 
$172,301 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Attached please find a copy of the Revised Operating Budget Summary for Fiscal-Year 
2012-2013. As proposed, the current budget provides for a surplus of funds in the amount 
of$172,301,whichis'proposedto be used for capital purchases to be discusseclat a later 
date. All of the . changes requested have been incorporated. However this is a working 
draft and additional changes may be made. 

Any detailed questions requiring research are encouraged to be asked prior to the meeting 
so we are able to address any and all concerns. 

Budget adoption is scheduled for June 5, 2012. 


	5.30.12SpecialMeetingAgendaPacketPart1
	5.30.12SpecialMeetingAgendaPacketPart2

